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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RAFRA - BRIFEXEREFIE - THIAZERNATRE

“2022 AGM”

[2022 FRFBF KL | 5

“Articles of Association” or “Articles”

RS RRANA] = T4R)] B

“Audit Committee”
[EZEZEE 5

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

= e
“China” or "PRC”

[ e
"CIA"

[ 45k ] e

“Company” or “Suxin Services”

[ARaE)] ek [RA]]) ek [ &R 15

“Corporate Governance Code”
[EERTR] ¥
"Director(s)”

== B

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company to be convened
and held on Thursday, 15 June 2023

ARREER 20236 A 158 (28M) 35 ME1TH) 2022 FRHIRE
FRE

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RARKET REFEBERMA - ETRHER] - FBRSAEM T
B

the audit committee of the Company

ARREZEZES

the board of Directors

R

the People’s Republic of China
i AR AR

China Index Academy
o BB EiAf ot b

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. (BR#FTFIFATE RIS ER A A))
(formerly known as Suzhou Xingang Property Service Co., Ltd.* (&R
AW ERE AR A G])), a company established in the PRC as an
enterprise owned by the whole people (2R FTA $I12) on 12 April
1994, converted into a company with limited liability on 25 March
2004 and then converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability on 23 April 2021

A EMATERBERMDABRDA(AIEHFMNFTEDERBEBERD
) —EKRI1994FAANRBEFERINERMAANEE  ©
20043 A25 ARBIRBEREFERR  Z&N20215F4 238K
Hl R AR AR

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

ETRRIM S 4 FE R E AT R

the director(s) of the Company
KARES



“Domestic Shares”

[RER]

“EIT Law”

[{ERAEHUA]

“Gaoxin Water”

[ =% B %K)

"GFA"

[ZEEmAE ]

“Global Offering”
[2IREE

"Group”
[REE

“H Share(s)”

[HA% |

“Hong Kong”

[&E]

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$”
[t ]

“Listing”
[

DEFINITIONS

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi

RARRAFGREBEARE1.00 TH TR - A RKERE R
&

the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC ({FRZE A R MBS
F27%)), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time
(REARAMBEEMENE)  BTRER]  HRICAREME RN
(0

Suzhou Gaoxin Water Supply Co., Ltd.* (&) & #7[& B KK ER A 1)
(formerly known as Suzhou New District Water Supply Construction
Development Management Company (#R/H ¥7[@ B K EREEE
A 7A]), a company established in the PRC and a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of SND Company

gMNEHEBEAKAERAR (RIEEHFNFEARKEREREER
a)  —KRHPEKINRE  RESTRAINEEENBER A

gross floor area
EEmE

has the same meaning as defined in the Prospectus

BEEHRERATRE

the Company and together with its subsidiaries

EAN/NGCI DS SN

overseas listed foreign share(s) in the share capital of the Company
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and
traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Stock Exchange
RARREAFFREBEARE1.00 THIRIN ETINER - UBTTR
BANEEW AR LT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China
hEARKANBEEFRITHR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BEBEEEEAT

the listing of the H Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
H AR B A2 AT =R BT

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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DEFINITIONS

“Listing Date”
[ TR E ]

“Listing Rules”
[ R A
“Main Board”
[ER]

“Model Code”
M@l

“Nomination Committee”

[(REEZEE]

“Qver-allotment Option”

[ R AR AC AR HE |

“PRC" or "China”’
B

"Prospectus”

[HERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FMEEE]

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
(AR

"SEQ"

(85 M EERAI )

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
BN ERFEERBEROERAT —F

24 August 2022, the date on which dealings in the H Shares first
commence on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
20228 H248 - HERBXX AR A RFHIREE ZH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time
ERBMARSMERARES EMHAA -
ftb 77 FAE 2

RHERT ~ FITEAR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the
Stock Exchange, which is independent from and operated in parallel
with GEM of the Stock Exchange

BRZFTEENELERR S (T BEMETS) - R PTGEM A
BEWITHIE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

EHRRIME0FE EMBETABERETEF R ZNRLETA

the nomination committee of the Company

ZAYNCIE R

has the same meaning as defined in the Prospectus

AEHRERATHRE

the People’s Republic of China
hE AR AFE

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 August 2022
RAFIEER202268 A 11 BHNHBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

/NI S

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEIEEEBE AR

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEREVESTI EFZHFLEEERA - KTRHER] ~ #R AR T
B



“Share(s)”

[ Bt

“Shareholder(s)"”
[BRR ]

“SND Chengjian”

[ &= HT 2 |

“SND Company”

“SND Gaoxin Tech”

[ R 37 [ =0 37 Bl

“SND Group”
[FRm s

“SND Yiyang”

“sq.m.”

[SFI5K]

"Stock Exchange”

[ B 22 Ffr |

DEFINITIONS

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising the Domestic Shares and the H Shares
RARBRAFEFREBEBARE1.00THRD - BEAERRHR

holder(s) of the Share(s)

BADFER A

Sugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (& & 7 iE 2
(8 M)A PR A a), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 29 September 2017 and one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company

e EER (BN BERAGF - —KN2017F9H29BESF
I BRAT - BARRRERRR 2 —

Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.* (BN &S FEEBER A F]), a
wholly state-owned company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 February 1988 and one of the controlling shareholders of
the Company

M EEARAF - —KN1988F2 AsBAEFRBEMKIZME
B2EARRAR  REARANERRER 2 —

SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.* (BRMN#T[E S EMTEZER NS
FR 2 &]), an A-share company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600736) which is owned as to approximately 43.79% by
SND Company

BMNITRSRMEERGERAG  —KELEBESFXSMET
B AR B (BRI R - 600736) - Ba&k = ¥R FIHEHR £)43.79% )
fisc e

SND Company and its subsidiaries, excluding the Group
e AR LEMBAR (TREREER)

SND Yiyang Health Management Company Limited, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on December 2022 and
49% equity interest of which is held by the Company
HEAEREREBERAR  —KN2022F 12 BEH B
BRG] - RAREAH49% BxiE

square meters

FHK
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

FEMARZMAERAR

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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DEFINITIONS

“Supervisors”

[EE%]

“Supervisory Committee”

“Suzhou Golden Lion”

S+t

[ &R

5]

“Suzhou Huirong”

[ & [ Rt

“Suzhou Xinjingtian”

[ERMFTRK

*  For identification purpose only

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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the supervisors of the Company

RREES

the supervisory committee of the Company comprising all the
Supervisors
AAFIESE  BREZEBES

Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development Management Co., Ltd.*
(BFMeMAEZEEEEBMRAF) a company established in the
PRC with limited liability on 28 October 1992 and a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

HMNEMAEZEREEARAR > —KN1992F 10 A28 BEH
BB RDE  AARARNEEZEEZEWNE AT

Suzhou Huirong Business Travel Development Company* (% /1l [ &
k3 B B BR A B]), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on October 2012 and 3.17% equity interests of which is held
by the Company

HINEREIRERBRAR - —KK2012F 10 AEFRBIKZHE
RAR] - ARREHFHEH3.17% kg

Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land Development Company* (Z# /1 &
K EZE AR A a]), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability on April 2007 and 8% equity interests of which is held
by the Company

N RAEBHEZRAR AT - —HKN2007F 4 AEFHBIRK
WAERRDR » AREFHEE 8% IRE



Suxin Services'’s successful listing on the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

In August 2022, Suxin Services was successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, becoming the first county-level state-
owned listed company engaging in property business in the country,
the first state-owned listed company of the property sector in Jiangsu
Province, and the first state-owned Hong Kong-listed company in
Suzhou. The listing has reflected its contribution to the development
of the “Two Districts and Two Priorities” (FI[& M AI%!) of the High-
tech Zone in its capacity as a state-owned enterprise.

Deepening the development of the integrated
reform of urban services of the High-tech Zone

With the launch and implementation of the “Implementation Plan for
the Integrated Reform of Urban Maintenance of the Suzhou High-
tech Zone” KB M@ E W M EE —BILREEE T R)), the
Company has undertaken the urban maintenance integrated
operation and management of the Business Innovation Functional
Zone (Hengtang Street, Shishan ( % | 5 ¥ 7 & ), and Fenggiao
Street (F#5 7)) and the Advanced Manufacturing Functional Zone
(Economic Development Zone (Town)). New urban maintenance tasks
have been included, such as municipal street lights, landscape
lighting, miscellaneous maintenance of municipal facilities, traffic
safety facilities, power facilities, and maintenance of bus stations and
of public toilets.

Development of smart urban sanitation service
system

Suxin Services has accelerated digital collaboration and carried out
smart service upgrades. Efforts have been made to extensively
integrate its customer service center and smart property service
system. Intelligent technology has also been applied in the
establishment of its loT system to significantly improve its service level.

EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRE

BB ESBBMEXSE T ERK
HhhE L

202248 A - BRHTARTSA IR X P EIRAK T
LT KARBEE -—REHEAEEDE L
M THAEF - XEEMETELTL
X EMNME-—REBEERLTEE AR
& [MEMATS ] M EARNBEEER -

REBASHEHETRE —BRE
ER

BEE(HEMN SR mEE B EERS
R)WMITNEE - QRAIEE T ABSAIET AL
B OMLBREEE  AREE)  TEREIE
B (R GH)) B AT EE —BLEE
B - FMIE T RKE - KRB THREE
B RERM - BARE - ARWEEHER
AHEEESWTHEERERETIE-

HEESHTRARBERS

ARG IMREFHR - HESSREA
RA—BIEERTONEZDERRB RSB
L2 EETT - WERERM AT - E1T8
BOEE - ARIRTTIRIEKF
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EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRE

Taihu Science City Functional Zone

The Suzhou High-Tech Zone will vigorously promote the development
of Taihu Science City with the Suzhou campus of Nanjing University
as its core. In 2022, the Company was engaged by the project
department of Nanjing University to assist in the development of the
district. Undertaking 10 kindergartens and elementary schools in the
area, the Company has provided high-quality, efficient and thoughtful
services to teachers and students, creating a clean, pleasant and
civilized campus environment conducive to an orderly teaching
atmosphere.

Kunshan First People’s Hospital (Eastern Medical
Center)

Suxin Services was officially engaged to provide services for Kunshan
First People’s Hospital (Eastern Medical Center), which is one of
Kunshan's key livelihood projects with a total area of 310,200 square
meters. The first phase of the construction measures 236,700 square
meters in area. The Company strives to capitalize on its extensive
management experience to establish a comprehensive quality service
target system based on the goal of ranking top in five major aspects.

Shushan Village Scenic Area

Suxin Services was engaged to provide services for Shushan Village
Scenic Area located in the northwest of the Suzhou High-tech Zone
with a total area of 5.2 square kilometers, including 1,600 mu of pear
orchards, 1,000 mu of tea plantation, 2,000 mu of myrica rubra
orchards (#3#8#K) and other ecological orchards. The scenic area has
won honors such as “National Civilized Village™ and “National
Ecological Village”. It is the commitment of the Company to provide
high-quality property management services that are both professional
and personalized for property owners and tourists.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
B EFEERBEROERAA T - —FFR

KB B INRE &

NSRS AR RAREHMNRER BZH KT
HEB AR BIWMER - 2022 F R AR R
REEE B NMEER  WAEKERAI10MH
PREMNE  BEEREED % B
BERT - EEERESX - XHAR LN RFRE
BRI EEIEENHERKT -

BUmE—ARER CRBBEF L)

ARG EXERRIITE - AR CREP
BRPL) ZBRERRUTEMRAEET
Bz— BIEMEE3.028F K —H2
EmMiE23.678F K- RAIAKBEBERA
FREERNEEEELR  RIAFE-INER
BE—E2HTUNEEREBIZERER -

LN RE

BTG ER S LN R EARFMN SR AL
B mEES2FARE - AM1,600 AAE
1,000 BAZE - 2,000 EMGIEMREERRRE - %
BES 2B XHAN]  [BEIRFEREN] FE
Z2HEE - RABMORAETRERREHEAM
bt - BEAENEREMEESERS -



AWARDS OF THE YEAR
FRERE

April 2022 2022 Leading City Services Companies in China
2022F4 A8 2022 EA T RIS R R K

In April, Suxin Services was honoured as one of the Leading City Services Companies in China (7 Bl i IR 7§48 o (b %)
by China Index Academy in 2022
4 7 - BRI M R B fe B T b A TE /5 2022 HP Bl T RS B S 1 2 o

April 2022 2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China
2022 4R 2022 HE MR AR

In April, Suxin Services was recognized as one of the 2022 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China (2022
B4R G52 %) by China Index Academy.
4 A BRI P BEE B R e R 2022 PRI R RIS B REE -

May 2022 2022 Property Management Company Worth Focusing by Capital Market
2022454 2022 HBEATSETNWERBE L X

In May, Suxin Services was recognized as a 2022 Property Management Company Worth Focusing by Capital Market
(022 BEBEAT S EMYIZERB ) by China Index Academy.

58 BRFTIRSE S R Ig Bt iR B 2022 BB EAM IS I ERETE -

August 2022 Enterprise with Harmonious Labor Relationship in Suzhou High-tech Zone
(Hugqiu District)
20228 A BENEHE(REE) SBRBEMERSE

In August, Suxin Services was awarded the “Enterprise with Harmonious Labor Relationship in Suzhou High-tech Zone
(Hugiu District)” (& /N = %7 [& (8 £ [2) %5 B) B8 (& A1 &8 1 %) in 2021 by Suzhou National New & Hi-tech Industrial
Development Zone Management Committee (BB RS FIMEXFAEREIEZ E ) and the People’s Government
of Hugiu District, Suzhou City (3N TR £ @ A RBT).

8 A HHMRBHHMNBERSHTRMEXHEREELZE S HMNTRLRARBNTER 2021 FEHMNSHE (R
ER)SEHEEMBRE -

September 2022 Enterprise with Vocational Qualification Level Accreditation

2022F9A BERESERAELHE

In September, Suxin Services was awarded the “Enterprise with Vocational Qualification Level Accreditation” (B Z 758
E4RELE) by the Human Resources and Social Security Department of Suzhou High-tech Zone (Hugjiu District) (&& /)
SR (EEE) ANERMTERER).

9A - BB EHMEIE (RERE) ANBRMHESRERTESBERESRRELE -
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AWARDS OF THE YEAR
FESRE

September 2022 2022 Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized
Operations with brand value of RMB1 billion
2022594 2022 FEERBEEERCELEALREER (REEE10ET)

In September, Suxin Services was awarded the “Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized
Operations” (R EIMEREEELE L E L BB DS in 2022 with a brand value of RMB1 billion by China Index
Academy.

9 R - FRFTARFS I P B IS B AR R 2022 F M E R E X FE X ELREMBEE (RBREE10ET)

December 2022 Five-star Member of Suzhou Property Management Institute in 2022
2022128 022 FEHMTYEEEHERESREN

In December, Suxin Services was recognized as a Five-star Member of Suzhou Property Management Institute in 2022
QO FEEHNTYEEEWHSAE S B EN) by Suzhou Property Management Institute.
128 B REEEHMN T EE B ME R R2022FEHMNMMEE R hESEEA -

As of 31 December 2022, Suxin Services received a total of 130 & It 20229 12 A318 ' %F WG LES
honorary titles, including 30 national-level honors, 24 provincial-level — 130TE2822 %558 - HhES 0 EH KR L2
honors and 48 municipal-level honors. 24THE MELEE  ASTHTHARLREE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is a city service and property management service provider
deeply rooted in the Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou.
The H Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
24 August 2022 by way of Global Offering.

The Group focuses on providing city services, commercial property
management services, residential property management services and
property leasing. Headquartered in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the
Group has established a solid market presence in the Yangtze River
Delta Region. The Group believes that its strategic focus on the
Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou, and the established
market position for providing city services and property management
services in Suzhou will continue to support the growth of the Group’s
business scale and enable the Group to enjoy competitive advantages
in the city service and property management service market of China.

The Group’s focus on city environment, citizen wellbeing and
commitment to customer satisfaction have shaped its brand image for
high-calibre services. The Group’s commitment to quality services has
earned the Group numerous industry awards and recognitions. The
Group has been recognized as one of the Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China for seven consecutive years since
2016 and was ranked 46th among the 2022 Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China (2022 B iR B E %) by
CIA* in terms of overall strength. The Group was honoured as one of
the “Leading City Services Companies in China” (7 B3 M AR 7548 %
& %) by CIA in 2022 and a “Leading Brand in the PRC Property
Management Industry in Specialized Operations” (1 B3 % BR 7% 5 %
LB 4285 S %) (with a brand value of RMB1,000 million) by
CIA for five consecutive years since 2018.

* Each year the CIA publishes the Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China in terms of overall strength based on the data from the previous
year on key factors such as management scale, operational performance,
service quality, growth potential and social responsibility of the property
management companies under consideration.

BEERWN D

B

AREER—REHR=ZAE  LEIEFHMND
W RGE RMEEERBGIRER - NRAFIHR
202268 A24 AN B HEE M A LR R
FTER ETT o

AEEB IR RHEUTIRYE BEYEEER
B EEMEEERELMERE - AREH
REMINIEHREHNT  EER=AMREYT
TRENMISHA - ARERA  AEEHE
=AE - CHREEHMNORIEIEREN LT
MNP IR M EEERBNEAT S
b7 78 AR S RS AR SR B TSR A IR RANE AR
SEEAPBEUMRELYEEERBHIHH

BFES -

AEEHHTIRE - AMRERIULELRTPHE
EREIHY T ARENEERERETLR
KEBHEERGNABEREERSREIT
ERBELRRA - RGEAENR  AKECEH
2016 F BB L F i h kT * S AP EMER
BABREEZ— BHE202297EMERE A
B ERHERE LN - NEEN 2022 F K
ERF R TFBEEmRFELEEl 22— &
R 2018 FEEE R F i Habeat B [FEYE
RBEX{ELRLRELE] (REEEAR
®10180T) -

* hERSFEEANTEBEANEEE AR E—
FEBMEEME KLEXE RBLE EE
EHARMEREEERRAINBIEFESHZS
RAMEEE S MR BT EDERS E %R
hE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

The Group provides comprehensive city services and property
management services to a wide variety of properties, including (i) city
services offered to local governments and public authorities to satisfy
local residents’ daily living needs and improve their living standards
and experience; (i) commercial property management services offered
to industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and commercial
complexes; and (iii) residential property management services. The
Group offers both traditional property management services and a
wide range of value-added services to commercial properties and
residential communities to address the diverse needs of its customers
while enhancing customer stickiness. The Group also provides
property leasing services where it leases out office buildings and
apartments to diversify its revenue streams. The Group believes that
provision of diverse services will improve customers’ loyalty, increase
its brand recognition and enhance business operations and financial
performance.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group was contracted to provide public
facility management services, basic commercial property management
services and basic residential property management services to 95
projects in China, with a total contracted GFA of approximately 9.1
million sq.m., among which 87 projects with a total GFA of
approximately 7 million sq.m. were under the Group’s management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group derived its
revenue primarily from four business lines, namely, (i) city services; (ii)
commercial property management services; (iii) residential property
management service; and (iv) property leasing services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Portfolio of Properties under Management

The following table sets forth the number of projects and GFA under
the Group’s management for public facility management services,
basic commercial property management services and basic residential
property management services as of the dates indicated by business
line:

BEERNWR DT

HENMRAES

TRFJIEEFRBPAKEIREEGRE D H
NEHEBEERY - EAEEYEREERS M
ENEEMEEERBHEENERME REE
FREEES -

As of 31 December

BZ12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
projects management projects  management
BEEE *EEZEEE EHEHAE MEEREEERE
sq.m."000 sq.m."000
FE7GK FEFK
Public facility management ‘A EI1H B & IR RS
services 29 1,709.4 18 1,292.3
Basic commercial property  EARNpHEYE
management services EIRRT 36 2,112.5 37 2,253.6
Basic residential property — EA{EEWE
management services IR AR 22 3,175.8 21 3,175.0
Total Fob 87 6,997.7 76 6,720.9
City Services 9T AR

The Group assists local governments and public authorities in their
provision of city services to improve local residents’ living experience
and environment. The Group’s city services primarily include (i)
municipal infrastructure services; (ii) public facility management
services; and (iii) operation of waste collection centres.

AR E R B BT R A SN RPTR G
PR - DABE MR R 04 E BB BB - A
S8 6035 T BRAS 20 ¢ ()T KRR R T ¢
(i) AR B B EIRARRS ¢ (i) i R R P L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR W N DA

Municipal Infrastructure Services

The Group offers municipal infrastructure services including cleaning,
greening, maintenance, regular inspection and refurbishment services
to ensure the cleanliness and normal operations of public
infrastructure under the Group’s management, including city roads,
external walls of buildings along main city roads, street lamps, water
supply network, as well as tram and tram platforms. The Group
charges service fees based on the length of roads or GFA of the site
area covered by its services. As of 31 December 2022, the Group
provided municipal infrastructure services to 13 projects.

Public Facility Management Services

The Group offers property management services including cleaning,
security, gardening and landscaping, as well as repair and
maintenance services to public facilities such as public museums,
libraries, art and sports centres, city parks and office buildings for
public authorities.

As of 31 December 2022, GFA of public facilities under the Group's
management was approximately 1.7 million sq.m., and the Group
was contracted to manage public facilities with a GFA of
approximately 2.7 million sq.m..

Operation of Waste Collection Centres

Underpinned by the Group’s extensive experience in maintaining
public facilities, the Group has been awarded by local governments
and public authorities for the construction and operation of waste
collection centres. Upon construction of waste collection centres, the
Group assists local governments and public authorities in operating
the waste collection centres and offering waste management services,
including collecting household waste from city roads, households and
commercial sources in the Suzhou Gaoxin District, transporting waste
to the Group’s operated waste collection centres, sorting and
compacting waste for better treatment, and disposing compressed
waste to incineration for burning or landfills for burying operated by
third parties.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had three waste collection
centres with the maximum capacity to process a total of 1,200 tons of
household waste per day and 50 tons of bulky waste per day.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commercial and Residential Property Management Services

The Group’s commercial and residential property management
services include both basic property management services and value-
added services. Basic property management services include security
services, cleaning, greening and gardening services, and common area
facility repair and maintenance services. Value-added services include
carpark space management services, resource management services,
property agency services, and other customized services such as
customized cleaning and maintenance services, security services,
hosting events, business support and/or assistance to customers in
leasing printing machines according to specific customer demands.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group provided basic commercial
property management services to 36 commercial properties with a
total GFA under management of approximately 2.1 million sq.m., and
22 residential properties with a total GFA under management of
approximately 3.2 million sq.m..

Property Leasing

The Group owns certain investment properties such as office buildings
and apartments which are leased out as staff dormitories or offices.
The Group charges rental fees and management fees.

As of 31 December 2022, the average occupancy rate of the Group’s
leased properties was approximately 60.23%. The Group recorded a
decrease in average occupancy rate from approximately 76.5% in the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 64.88% in the year
ended 31 December 2022. The decrease in occupancy rate was mainly
due to the suspension of certain local enterprises and factories as a
result of the pandemic prevention and control policies implemented
by the government to fight against the COVID-19 pandemic, leading
to a decrease in demand for leased properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

OUTLOOK

Firstly, the Group will manage the growth of project scale while
increasing profitability. The Group’s business scale will be expanded
through mergers and acquisitions, equity investment and other
methods. The Group will select high-quality state-owned city service
enterprises and complementary business partners as the targets of
mergers and acquisitions. Sound procedures for the selection of
acquisition targets as well as due diligence and judgment will be
implemented in order to maintain competitiveness and improve the
quality of the Group'’s services while expanding the project scale. The
Group will closely monitor key projects with a focus on major
processes such as project completion, tender and bidding. Through
strategic cooperation, the Group will target to manage properties
developed by its strategic partners.

Secondly, the Group will integrate various city services to seize the
potential of growth in demand. Grasping the opportunity from
growing demand for public and government facilities as well as city
operation services during the continuous transition in governmental
functions, and in coordination with the implementation of the “Three-
Year Action Plan for Sanitation Work in High-tech Zones” ({/= #T[& &
81 T {E = € 17 8) 51 &l )), the Group will actively participate in the
urban maintenance integration reform of the Suzhou High-tech Zone
to expand sources of income. The Group will effectively integrate
different city services with compression and transportation of waste
collection centers as the core to capture market shares of the
collection and transportation of household waste and the disposal of
bulky waste. The Group will provide collection and transportation
services for household waste and decontaminate and recycle bulky
waste, so as to realize the two-way extension of the waste disposal
industry chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Thirdly, the Group will expand the scope of business and services with
a focus on value-added innovation. The Group will offer more
diversified innovative value-added services to further enhance
customer loyalty and brand image. The Group will actively connect
with various sectors to explore and expand service types and customer
bases. Other value-added services (such as new home decoration and
home appliance repair) with higher profit margins will be offered to office
buildings, industrial parks and public properties, and essential life services
will be introduced. The Group will promote the professional operation
and standardized development of “Leju” (%4 /&) housing for talents to
improve the overall letting rate of housing for talents in the zone as well
as the occupancy rate via online platform.

Fourthly, the Group will accelerate digital development of the industry
and promote the upgrade of smart services. Leveraging big data,
cloud computing and other technologies, a smart city and smart
property service system will be built. The Group will further develop a
management system covering the smart properties, and procure and
upgrade existing hardware and software systems, so as to promote
the full operation of the city service smart platform and the
Company’s integrated customer service center. Smart property
management solutions will be provided to improve business operation
efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% [0l B8
Revenue Yy 2=

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by T & &5 AN E BB R EIRIIR £ /8 G 25 B UL
business line for the periods indicated: Z5EE4A -

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31MBLEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR® TR % ARETF T %
City services 3, IR I% 248,158 47.5% 169,353 36.7%
— Municipal infrastructure  — 7 BB RS 252 6 AR 755
services 123,585 23.7% 72,301 15.7%
— Public facility management — ‘A %218 B B IR R
services 83,241 15.9% 69,425 15.0%
— Operation of waste — IR EED L
collection centers AR & 41,332 7.9% 27,627 6.0%
Commercial property BENEEERKE
management services 184,562 35.4% 204,378 44.2%
— Basic property — EAYEEBIRTE
management services 163,359 31.3% 178,337 38.6%
— Value-added services — EERT 21,203 4.1% 26,041 5.6%
Residential property EEYEEERK
management services 65,622 12.6% 60,550 13.1%
— Basic property — EAYEEBIRTE
management services 46,117 8.9% 42,891 9.3%
— Value-added services — EERT 19,505 3.7% 17,659 3.8%
Property leasing LIEZiEh - 23,623 4.5% 27,700 6.0%
Total et 521,965 100.00% 461,981 100.00%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue of the Group increased by approximately 13.0% from

approximately RMB462.0 million for the year ended 31 December

2021 to approximately RMB522.0 million for the year ended 31

December 2022, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(ifi)

revenue from city services increased by approximately 46.5%
from approximately RMB169.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB248.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services, as well as the expansion of
the Group’s public facility management services as it began to
manage certain public facilities in the second half of 2021
including, among others, a newly constructed museum building
(Suzhou Museum West: August 2021) and a city square (Shishan
Cultural Square: August 2021);

revenue from commercial property management services
decreased by approximately 9.7% from approximately
RMB204.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB184.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, primarily due to the non-renewal of property
management service agreements in relation to (a) certain public
rental houses that expired in December 2021, as the Group
collaborated with well-known independent third-party property
management companies, including Suzhou Mingsu Commercial
Management Co., Ltd.* (&R M a8k B E B2 H R 2 7)) and
Suzhou Langyiju Commercial Management Service Co., Ltd.* (&
INBAEE B B X B E IR B R 2 7)), tojointly establish
companies to co-manage these projects, which is in line with
the Group's strategic focus; and (b) a shopping mall named
Tiandu Square that expired in November 2021, given that the
project carried relatively low profit margin;

revenue from residential property management services
increased by approximately 8.3% from approximately RMB60.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB65.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the increase in unit price of property
management fees of Mingcheng Garden (& 7E&) project in
Suzhou Gaoxin District, and the increase in revenue for the full
year 2022 compared to 2021 with certain buildings of the Haixu
Lanting (&& BEE) project in Suzhou Gusu District delivered in
September 2021; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

(iv) revenue from property leasing services decreased by
approximately 14.8% from approximately RMB27.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB23.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to
the waiver or partial reduction of rental due from its tenants in
2022 as a result of the Group’s compliance with the local
government'’s rent relief policy in response to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales increased from approximately RMB355.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB400.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 primarily
due to the increase in the Group's subcontracting costs and utilities
expenses.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margin by business line for the periods indicated:

vy VMEHERBWEBEZE2021F12 4
BTHIEFEHOARE27.7EBETTRADH
14.8% 2 H £2022F 12 A31HILFE
WARMK236BEL TERENESE
]38 <7 & Hh BT FE ¥ COVID-19 & 15 H97E
EREBER MM 2022 FRBE D EE
HPHEMNHES o

NEEMHEERABEZ2021F12 A31H1E
FENONARBIC8SHETIEINEHE 20224
NANBLEFENAREA06EET =
ERARTEEN DB AR AR EHMTE
TN -

ERRENE

TRFIIAEERFRAERESREDNE
MREMNE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MBLLEE

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
ER ERR EA ER=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
City services T AR 61,482 24.8% 40,410 23.9%
Commercial property EEYEEERR
management services 33,868 18.4% 37,002 18.1%
Residential property FEYHEEERRTE
management services 6,301 9.6% 5,531 9.1%
Property leasing WEHE 19,696 83.4% 23,282 84.1%
Total st 121,347 23.2% 106,225 23.0%

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 14.2% from
approximately RMB106.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB121.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, primarily due to the Group's business expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s gross profit margin remained stable during the year

ended 31 December 2022, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

gross profit for city services increased by approximately 52.1%
from approximately RMB40.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB61.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services, as well as the increase in
revenue from public facility management services as the Group
began to manage a newly constructed museum building, and a
city square in the second half of 2021, among others;

gross profit for commercial property management services
decreased by approximately 8.5% from approximately RMB37.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB33.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the non-renewal of property management
service agreements as described above;

gross profit for residential property management services
increased by approximately 14.5% from approximately RMB5.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB6.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022; and

gross profit for property leasing services decreased by
approximately 15.4% from approximately RMB23.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB19.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to
the waiver or partial due from its tenants in 2022 as a result of
the Group's compliance with the local government’s rent relief
policy in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains increased by approximately
83.5% from approximately RMB9.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB17.8 million for the year ended

31 December 2022, primarily due to the receipt of listing subsidies

provided by the government as a reward during the year ended 31

December 2022 and the gains of foreign exchange rate changes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

Selling and Marketing Expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses remained relatively stable
at approximately RMB2.8 million and RMB3.0 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 14.1% from
approximately RMB29.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB33.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to (i) the increase in property tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as the Science & Technology City Waste
Collection Center was transferred to buildings from construction in
process after the completion of the construction in October 2021; and
(i) the increase of professional fees as compared with that of last
year.

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by approximately 57.1% from
approximately RMBO.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB1.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment.

Finance Costs

Finance cost increased by approximately 189.7% from approximately
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB11.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the decrease in interest capitalized after the
Group completed the construction of the Science & Technology City
Waste Collection Center in October 2021.

Share of Loss of an Associate

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has invested RMB9.8 million in
SND Yiyang, a provider of elderly care, nursing and medical services,
for 49% of its shares.

The Group's share of loss of an associate arising from the investment
in SND Yiyang amounted to approximately RMB3.0 million and
RMB2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
respectively, primarily because SND Yiyang was newly established and
incurred relatively high upfront expenses in the early development
stage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 14.0% from
approximately RMB20.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the expansion of the Group which led to the
increase in the Group's profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year increased by
approximately 16.3% from approximately RMB56.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB65.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased by approximately 13.8%
from approximately RMB359.8 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB409.6 million as of 31 December 2022.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Cushman & Wakefield has valued our
property interests as of June 30, 2022. The total value of the five
properties held for own use and held for development (which was
subsequent completed and for own use) was RMB382,260,000.

Such properties were carried at historical cost less depreciation less
impairment loss, and have not been stated at such valuation in the
audited consolidated financial information in this annual report. If
such properties have been stated at such valuation, the additional
depreciation for the year ended 31 December 2022 would be RMB2.9
million.

Investment Properties

The Group's investment properties mainly represent commercial
properties and rental apartments. The value of the Group's investment
properties remained relatively stable at approximately RMB349.9
million as of 31 December 2021 and approximately RMB353.0 million
as of 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

Equity Investment Designated at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income

As of 31 December 2022, the Group recorded equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income of
approximately RMB70.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB92.4 million).

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income reflect the value of (i) the Group’s equity
investment in Suzhou Huirong; and (ii) the Group’s investment in
Suzhou Xinjingtian, details of which are set out below:

BEEAUQXFEIAEMEEBAN
RERE

HE2022F12 A31 8 » "EBREBIET AN
NEEFAEMEEmBRANBREREHARE
7078 B t(2021F 128318 : H AR

e —

RNABBTT) °

B RARFHETIAEM 2 ERARNBRERE
RER AT IR B MEME « () A5 B8 & ER
MBI B - R (i) AN B M T R R
B BRI

Size relative
Percentage of Fair value to the
equity through other Company's
attributes comprehensive total Fair value
as of income as of assets as of loss as of
31 December Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December
Principal Business 2022 costs 2022 2022 2022
BE2224F
8ZE2022% 12A318 BZE20224F
12A31H FIAEM 1283184 #HZE2022F
FEfBRE 2EBAL AAFEE 1283181
TEXEH Aok REMAK DYHE HBELH NFEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Suzhou Huirong Property leasing 3.17% 57,000 59,469 4.5% -11,831
ERMERD FEMEE
Suzhou Xinjingtian Property development 8.00% 24,000 11,204 0.9% -9,936
and leasing
IR R BHERERFEEHRE

No dividends were received on the above investments during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

The Group remains susceptible to the risk of fair value change of its
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and may record a fair value loss on the equity
investments in the future, which would lead to a decrease in the total
assets as well as net assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To monitor the performance of the Group’s equity investments, the
Group has adopted the following internal control policies: (i) the
manager and supporting staff of each equity investment report the
investment budget, the operational status of the investment target,
and the major issues and their potential consequences to the Group’s
management on a quarterly basis; (ii) the Group will review the equity
investments at least annually, and conduct periodical or special audits
of its investment assets; and (iii) all the files related to each equity
investment are documented and archived.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from independent third-party
customers for services provided by the Group in its ordinary course of
business. The Group’s trade receivables increased by approximately
74.4% from approximately RMB101.2 million as of 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB176.5 million as of 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the expansion of the Group’s city services, which
includes undertaking of an urban facility maintenance integration
project in early 2022.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

The Group's prepayments, other receivables and other assets
decreased by approximately 36.2% from approximately RMB51.1
million as of 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB32.6 million as
of 31 December 2022, mainly due to (i) the decrease in other
receivables as the share premium was partially offset by the
capitalization of listing expenses during the year ended 31 December
2022; and (ii) the decrease in tax deductible due to the receipt of tax
refund from the municipal government.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily represent the Group’s obligations to pay for
services acquired in the ordinary course of business from independent
third-party subcontractors and construction parties of waste collection
centres. The Group's trade payables increased by approximately
10.0% from approximately RMB192.5 million as of 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB211.8 million as of 31 December 2022,
primarily due to the ongoing construction and development of the
waste collection center, which led to an increase in trade payables to
contractors who provided services and delivered supplies to the Group
in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals represent (i) deposits that the Group
collects from (a) property developers, property owners, residents and
tenants before the Group commences its provision of property
management services; and (b) property owners and residents before
they begin renovating or refurnishing their units; (ii) payroll and
welfare payable; (iii) maintenance funds; (iv) receipts of payments on
behalf of customers, which primarily include payments from third
parties for common area advertising and temporary parking; and (v)
other tax payables.

The Group's other payables and accruals remained relatively stable at
approximately RMB103.1 million as of 31 December 2021 and
RMB95.2 million as of 31 December 2022.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities mainly arise from payments the Group receives
from customers based on billing schedules prescribed in the service
agreements. A portion of payments are usually received in advance of
the performance of services under the contracts.

The Group’s contract liabilities decreased by approximately 46.9%
from approximately RMB75.0 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB39.8 million as of 31 December 2022, primarily
because certain public institutions, including Suzhou Museum West,
Suzhou Museum and Suzhou Library, prepaid the property
management fees for 2022 due to sufficient budget in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Current Assets

The Group's total current assets increased by approximately 18.2%
from approximately RMB490.7 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB580.0 million as of 31 December 2022, primarily
due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents as a result of the
proceeds from the Listing during the year ended 31 December 2022.
Total current liabilities decreased by approximately 17.4% from
approximately RMB450.2 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB371.9 million as of 31 December 2022, primarily
due to (i) the Group's settlement of substantial non-trade amounts
due to related parties; and (ii) the decrease in contract liabilities as
described above. As a result, the Group’s net current assets increased
substantially from approximately RMB40.5 million as of 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB208.1 million as of 31 December 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s main source of liquidity mainly came from cash flow
from operations, interest-bearing borrowings and the Net Proceeds
(defined below). As of 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB350.9 million, of which
RMB157.2 million was denominated in RMB and HK$216.9 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB193.7 million) was denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (31 December 2021: approximately RMB302.6
million, all of which were denominated in RMB).

Bank Borrowings

As of 31 December 2022, interest-bearing bank loans of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB122.5 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB133.8 million), all of which were denominated in
RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEB W& DT

The following table sets forth the components of the Group’'s T Z #7526 B E Frx B B A& 3048 5 20

borrowings as of the dates indicated: D
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022 5 2021 £
12H31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
Current BN A
— Current portion of long-term bank — RESRITEROANERE S
loans — guaranteed — BER 11,250 11,250
Non-current JEENHA
— Bank loans — guaranteed —RITER — BER 111,250 122,500
Total et 122,500 133,750

The table below sets forth a repayment schedule of the interest- & &HF|E EFR AT ERITERH B R

bearing bank loans as of the dates indicated: HEE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
Repayable within one year or on demand R—FRNIIEERKEE 11,250 11,250
Repayable within two to five years, inclusive ~ MRWMERAFREE (BREEEMF) 78,250 58,500
Beyond five years AFEALE 33,000 64,000
Total et 122,500 133,750
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Liabilities

As of 31 December 2022, the Group recorded other liabilities of
approximately RMB171.0 million (31 December 2021: approximately
RMB168.1 million). Other liabilities arose from an earmarked
governmental loan granted by the Suzhou Finance Bureau to Suzhou
Xingang Municipal Greening Service Co., Ltd. (% 778 i B 4k (L IRFS
BIRA7F]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with a nominal
value of RMB200.0 million at an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37%
payable semi-annually with a maturity date on 27 February 2030 to
facilitate the construction of waste collection centres.

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2022, the Group’s bank loan of approximately
RMB122.5 million were secured by certain investment properties and
buildings of the Group with an aggregated carrying value of RMB57.2
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB133.8 million with an
aggregated carrying value of RMB67.5 million).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total bank loans and other
liabilities divided by total equity as of the end of that period. The
Group’s gearing ratio for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
38.4% (31 December 2021: 54.5%).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any outstanding
material contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: nil).

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure primarily represented expenditures
incurred for purchase of property, plant and equipment and additions
to leasehold land. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group incurred capital expenditures of approximately RMB57.4 million
(31 December 2021: RMB61.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

MARKET RISK ANALYSIS

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank loans, finance
leases, other liabilities, which primarily consist of government bonds
and cash and time deposits. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign exchange risk.
The Directors manage and monitor these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Credit Risk

The Group enters into transactions only with recognized and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is insignificant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Group’s head of credit control.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its exposure to liquidity risk primarily by
monitoring current ratio. The objective of the Group is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of interest-bearing loans. The Group’s policy is that all the borrowings
should be approved by the chief financial officer of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's operations are primarily conducted in RMB, which is the
functional currency of the Group. Material fluctuations in the
exchange rate of the RMB against the Hong Kong dollar may
negatively impact the value and amount of any dividends payable on
the shares of the Company. Currently, the Group does not implement
any foreign currency hedging policy and the management of the
Group will closely monitor any exposure to foreign exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any other
significant investment or significant acquisition of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2022.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

A total of 26,047,000 H Shares were issued at a price of HK$8.6 per
share in connection with the Global Offering including the Over-
allotment Option (as defined in the Prospectus raising a total of net
proceeds of HK$176.3 million after deducting the underwriting
commissions and other expenses in connection with the Global
Offering and the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (the “Net
Proceeds”). The Company intends to utilise the Net Proceeds
according to the plans set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company did
not have any future plans for material investments or additions of
capital assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group intends to use the Net Proceeds (amounting to
approximately HK$176.3 million) in accordance with the method and
schedule set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

An analysis of the utilization of the Net Proceeds is set out below:

LTS 5IA
A SR B R AR R IR B A2 [ RS B R AT B 30E

R | —fiprE T A R R E RS RIEE
BR(EBWORI763AEET) °

PSSR EB A BRSO NESIAT

Utilised Unutilised
Net Proceeds ~ Net Proceeds
Approximate as of as of
% of Net December 31,  December 31,  Expected time of
Proceeds  Net Proceeds 2022 2022  full utilisation

Proposed use of Net Proceeds as set out in the Prospectus Bz20F BZ0%

RRERFAMSRERERTAZ NS 12A318 12A318

Major categories Sub-categories/Specific plans REEE & EBAME RBAKE

TEEH FER /ARt BRI REFE REEE NEFE RA2UBANEE

(HK$ million) (HKS million) (HK$ million)
(BBET) (BB%ET) (AEET)

Acquisitions Acquisitions of other property management 300 52.9 0 52.9 By 31 December 2024
companies and companies providing city FBAT2024 512 A31HA
services and property management
services

Ui AR ER AR RIREATRER
NEERRBEORA

Strategic Investments ~ Investments in waste collection centers and 30.0 52.9 0 529 By 31 December 2024
companies providing operational and EiH2024F 12 A31 87
management services to waste collection
centers

i BANIREER D RALREERL
REBERERRBHA

Expansion and Establishment of the Group’s own brand 15.0 26.4 0 264 By 31 December 2024

diversification of “Suxin Leju (ER¥T£/E)" and launch of B:12024 512 A31 HA
value-added services apartment management and operational
services for housing for talents
BARGEEERYE BRUASERERE[HNLE] Rt
A ABEERELRE
Investments in companies providing elderly 8.0 14.1 0 141 By 31 December 2024
care, nursing and medical services Eit2024F 12 A31 87
RENEHEEZ EERBRRENAR

Technological Investments in the Group's Technologies 4.0 7.1 0 7.1 By 31 December 2024

investment and Intelligent Operations EEF2024F 12 A31 BA

RiRE RERAEENRIRELER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Utilised Unutilised
Net Proceeds ~ Net Proceeds
Approximate as of as of
% of Net December 31,  December 31,  Expected time of
Proceeds  Net Proceeds 2022 2022  full utilisation
Proposed use of Net Proceeds as set out in the Prospectus BZ20F BZ0%
RRERFAMSIEFERTAR N 12A318 12A31H
Major categories Sub-categories/Specific plans TEFE igc EBAME RBAKE
TEEH TR/ Rt BOESH REFE REEE NEEE RAUBANEE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million
(B8ATL) (B&AT) (B8ATL)
Talent Training and - Cooperation with top-tier 3.0 53 0 5.3 By 31 December 2024
Retention universities in the PRC and overseas E5H2024F 12 A31 87
ANTHERBE — EREREN-RKREEME
— Improvement and expansion of
training and talent recruitment
programs
— HERRRATEIIREEHE
— Recruitment of at least 30 young
talents in the next three years to
meet our needs for acquisition
investment, establishment of
information management system
and other business needs
— RREFHBEELNEFFRT
MEYE A BUREERER
GREMEBTE
Working capital and Expansion of the Group's business scope and 10.0 176 0.89 16.71 By 31 December 2024
other general scale of general business operations and B:12024 512 A31 HA
corporate purposes working capital funding
BEESRAM BRAKENEBEERREN—RER
—REERSE EBREELD
Total &5t 100.0 176.3

As of 31 December 2022, the Directors are not aware of any material
change in the planned use of the Net Proceeds. The remaining Net
Proceeds which had not been utilized were placed in short-term
demand deposits with licensed financial institution. The unutilised Net
Proceeds and the above timeline of intended utilization will be applied
in the manners disclosed by the Company. However, the expected
timeline for the unutilised Net Proceeds is based on the Directors’ best
estimation barring unforeseen circumstances, and would be subject to
change based on the future development of the Group’s business and
the market conditions.

HZE2022%12A318 - BEEHA - ISR
HFEN SRR ETMEAESE - HipK
B AR ERIEF BT AR RS BE S
JERRE R c REAMAMSRIEFER LilikTE
HRENMERERARREEN A XNEA - R
o BRIEHIBT R B R M ER L A g A A K E
EBMAREREMAMBEMEE - TAIXD
BB FENESREMR A EENRE
CHGES X
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W R DT

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,226 full-time
employees in China. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the staff
cost recognised as expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB150.7 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB144.1
million).

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The Group
proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with relevant
working experience in property management to support the
sustainable growth of business. The remuneration package of
employees of the Group includes salary and bonus, which are
generally based on their qualifications, industry experience, position
and performance. In addition, the Group provides training programs
regularly and across management levels, in compatible with practical
needs, covering key areas in its business operations, including but not
limited to corporate culture and policies, technical knowledge
required for certain positions, leadership skills and general knowledge
about the nature of the Group’s services.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX  ESkeAEEERE

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are listed below. As of the date of this
annual report, none of the following Directors, Supervisors or senior
management had any relationship with any other Directors,
Supervisors or senior management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (£ %), aged 44, was appointed as a Director
on 14 March 2018, chairman of the Board on 17 December 2020 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Cui is
primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of
the Group. Mr. Cui has served as general manager of the Company
since October 2016. Mr. Cui has also served as assistant to the
general manager of SND Company since November 2020, director of
Gaoxin Water since December 2020 and general manager of Gaoxin
Water since April 2020. Since April 2022, Mr. Cui has served as a
director and general manager of Suzhou Gaoxin Talent Development
Group Co., Ltd. (BRM &I A A R EEBR A F]), a subsidiary of
SND Company.

Mr. Cui joined the Group in August 2004 and successively served as
manager of the marketing department, project manager and assistant
to the general manager at the Company from August 2004 to June
2013, where he was responsible for marketing and project
management. From June 2013 to November 2014, he served as
deputy general manager at Suzhou Xinjingtian Commercial Real
Estate Co., Ltd (&k N T & K 7% #b & B R 2 7)), a real estate
company, where he was responsible for operations and management.
From November 2014 to October 2016, he rejoined the Company as
branch party secretary and deputy general manager.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in tourism management from
the Suzhou Institute of Science and Technology (& M &t £ 2 3) in
the PRC in June 2002 and obtained his master’s degree in architecture
and civil engineering from the Suzhou University of Science and
Technology (E&NTEHEAZR) in the PRC in June 2017.

ARAEER EENRREEENREESIRN
T-BEXAFHEH > TIES EFIRK
EREREMEAMES EFASNEEER
ETIRRE

#
HITES

BEEKELE 4457 M2018F3H14BEZR
EAEE MR2020F 128 17HEZTAESE
SEER N201F4B16BATARITE
F-EALEFTEHEASENBRBELRE
oo EAAEE20164F 10 ARET AR BIEK
o EAANNE2020F 11 ARETHESTA
AIMAEASIERNIE - 2020 12 B RIE(E S H
BHRKNEENB202064 AREESH A
RKHIHALSTR - B2022F 4 iR - BERAEET
BNEAASEEEEER AR (e A
MKIBARE) MESE RBLLIR -

B 2004F 8 A MMAARLER - W H 2004
FRHAE2013F6 AL BEEARRRITIHILKL
I FHEERAEIREE  BEMISNEHR
B - B2013F6 AE2014F 118 HEE
HE N mER N R RS S E B R A REEE
Bl BRELCREE - B204F11MAE
2016F10A » HEHMARRAR - EAESX
B ER R BIE -

ERET 200256 AESH BN B 2R
REEEEXETSM - WN2017F6 A%
BRBEEFMNBRARRERET R TIEERRL
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Mr. Cui was awarded as Pacemaker in the Property Management
Industry (#13ARFSTTEIZ E) by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association (/T
BRA R EXRE) in December 2011. He was elected as a member
of the Suzhou City Preliminary Property Management Bidding and
Bidding Evaluation Expert Committee (&M T [ AT Hi ¥ % B I HRILIZ
2 & X £ B )by the Suzhou Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (&M T (T 5 A 48 32 2% #% 2 =) in December
2018 and a member of the Jiangsu Province Property Management
Expert (T 2k & ¥ % B 1 ZE R E X §) by the Jiangsu Real Estate
Association (JT# & BHIEZRE) in August 2019. He was awarded
the 2020 China Property Service Brand Contributors (2020 # B 5 b
EREMEEENAY) by CIA in September 2020. He obtained the
senior economist qualification issued by the Human Resources and
Social Security Department of Jiangsu Province (GL&x& A 1 &Rt
E{RZEE) in December 2020.

Mr. Zhou Jun (& ), aged 55, was appointed as deputy general
manager of the Company in September 2014 and an executive
Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Zhou is primarily responsible for the
overall management of projects and customer service.

Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2003 and successively served as
project director, project manager and assistant to the general
manager at the Company from April 2003 to September 2014, where
he was responsible for project management.

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in hotel management from
Shanghai Institute of Tourism (_E /@& = %5 HEHE4R) in the PRC in
January 1991. He obtained the level one project manager certificate
(— # 1B B #& 12 ) issued by the Suzhou Property Management
Association (BT BB E) in December 2008.
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Ms. Zhou Lijuan (E RE18), aged 44, was appointed as deputy general
manager of Suzhou Golden Lion in September 2019 and an executive
Director and the secretary of the Board on 16 April 2021. Ms. Zhou is
primarily responsible for the operations of Suzhou Golden Lion and Board
matters of the Group.

Ms. Zhou joined the Group in June 2005 and successively served as
back office staff, deputy director (&l|ZE) and director (E{E) at the
Company, manager of the general department (434 &8) and assistant
to general manager of Suzhou Golden Lion and from June 2005 to
September 2019, where she was responsible for the day-to-day
operations of property projects of the Company and general

administration and human resource affairs of Suzhou Golden Lion.

Ms. Zhou obtained her bachelor’s degree in business management via
online education from Beihang University (1t RAZEHAAER) in the
PRC in July 2016. Ms. Zhou obtained the assistant accountant
qualification issued by the Suzhou Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau (E-/NTH A N ERFALEZRER) (formerly known as
Suzhou Personnel Bureau (RN A ZE/3)) in May 2007, the certified
property manager qualification jointly issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FFZE AR KEFIBE A HE R
A EREER) and Ministry of Housing and Urban-rural Development
of the PRC (AP ZE A R EFIE(E B A 4822 5% 26) in January 2015 and
the intermediate economist qualification issued by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FR#E A R AL FNE A
TE R ELRESD) in November 2017.

BAEELZLT 4455 R2019F9ABZEAR
BN B RLIE - R2021F4R16HEE
FROTESRESENE - AXTEFEAE
BNemmEa R rEBEEeEH -

B2 7200556 AMAREE - 372005
FOHAE2019FIAKEEERRAVEIAS
BIEEREMT BN SR A SPEIR R ABLLTR
BE - BEARAFYMEEENBTES UL
MEMERE TR RANERELR

AR LR2016F7 ARBESHEESS
IEMEMAABLEEEEEBL B - [F
2+ 2007 G5 AES#RIN T A 71 E IR 44
SRER(NBHNTAZR) BENYES:

EE - R2015F 1 AEEHEARFEMEH
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cai Jinchun (2£ %), aged 49, was appointed as a Director on
4 January 2021 and re-designated as a non-executive Director on 16
April 2021. Mr. Cai is primarily responsible for provision of guidance
for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Cai has also been a
director of Gaoxin Water since April 2021 and the assistant of the
general manager at SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd. since March
2022.

Mr. Cai joined SND Group in September 2009. From September 2009
to December 2013, he served as manager of the general department
(#% & &) and finance department and finance manager at Suzhou
Xinshi Redevelopment Co., Ltd (BR M T EE X R BR 2 7)), a
subsidiary of SND Company. From May 2019 to March 2022, he
served as director (£ 1E) of the financial planning and settlement
department of the Company, where he was responsible for financial
management.

Mr. Cai obtained his diploma degree in accounting from Central
China Normal University (£ Bl #E KE2) in the PRC in January 2016
via online education. Mr. Cai was accredited as an accountant by the
Suzhou Finance Bureau (&% N ™ 8/ B &) in May 2002 and obtained
senior accountant qualification issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security in Jiangsu Province (JL&x& A 71 & R H
& IREERE) in August 2015.

Mr. Tang Chunshan (E#&#2), aged 43, was appointed as a Director
on 17 December 2020 and re-designated as a non-executive Director
on 16 April 2021. Mr. Tang is primarily responsible for provision of
guidance for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Tang has also
been a director and general manager of SND Urban Renewal Co., Ltd.
(BN ER = I M EFMABRR2AF]), a subsidiary of SND Company, since
September 2021.
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The following table shows the relevant experience of Mr. Tang:

Period of time

i 58

Name of entity

BEEH

Position(s)

B

TRINRERENHELR

Principle business
activities

FREKED

Responsibilities

BE

September 2002 to
July 2006

2002F9AZE
20067 A

July 2006 to
August 2009

20065F7 AZE
20094 8 H

September 2009 to
April 2010

20099 A%
201054 A

May 2010 to

September 2017

20105 3%
201759 A

Suzhou Agriculture,
Industry and
Commerce Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
BENTEImEME
FEBRAR

Suzhou Huaye Baifu
Real Estate Co., Ltd.
HMNTEXAREM
BRAR]

Suzhou Junzhidi Real
Estate Co., Ltd.
BMNEZHEESR

YN

Suzhou Xinhu
Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

BN EBRA
IR

Accountant and
deputy finance
manager

SR MU RIEE

Finance manager

B 438

Finance manager

Ly SE

Deputy finance
manager, finance
manager and finance
director

IS RIASTE - BATSAE
BRI HEES

Property development

MEFRE

Property development

SEES

Property development

UE S

Property development

SEEES
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Mr. Tang joined SND Company in September 2017. From September
2017 to January 2020, he served as a deputy director of the
investment management department at SND Company. From January
2020 to October 2021, he served as a director of the investment
management department at SND Company, where he is responsible
for asset and investment management. From October 2018 to
October 2021, Mr. Tang served as a director of Gaoxin Water.

Mr. Tang obtained a diploma in accounting from the Xuzhou Institute
of Architectural Technology (1R /1 72 £2 8% % #2 i1 2B ) in the PRC in
July 2002 and completed the undergraduate curriculum in accounting
from the China Central Radio and TV University (FF R ZIEEIR A L)
in the PRC in January 2011. Mr. Tang obtained the senior accountant
qualification issued by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security in Jiangsu Province L & & A 71 & R f - & (R [Z BE) in
August 2015.

Mr. Zhang Jun (3& &) (formerly known as 3k & I&), aged 37, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Zhang is
primarily responsible for provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group.

Mr. Zhang joined SND Company in July 2012 and has since held various
investment and strategy roles within the SND Company, including
general manager at SND Technology Industrial Development (Liyang)
Co., Ltd. (BB EZEER (Z5)BR2AF]), a subsidiary of SND
Company and deputy director (8] = {F) of the strategic merchants
department at SND Company. From January 2021 to March 2022, Mr.
Zhang served as the deputy general manager of Zhongshan Suxin
Development Co., Ltd (S |L & #T R G R R 7)), a subsidiary of SND
Company, where he was responsible for presiding over the work of the
company. Mr. Zhang currently serves as the deputy director of the
investment management department at SND Company, where he is
primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operations of the
department.

Mr. Zhang obtained his master’s degree in economics with a major at
finance from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (7 9 B4 A< B
JA R E) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Zhang obtained the economist
qualification issued by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Jiangsu Province (L& & A &R Mt € REEEE) in
February 2014.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Yun (/& &), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Zhou is primarily
responsible for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

From September 1984 to February 1996, Ms. Zhou successively served
as teaching assistant and lecturer in the geography department of
Xinjiang Normal University (37 52 Bl #3 KX 2). From March 1996 to
August 2001, Ms. Zhou served as deputy director and associate
professor in the urban management department of Suzhou Urban
Construction and Environmental Protection Institute (&R /M 3k IR (R E2
Bt ). Since September 2001, Ms. Zhou successively held numerous
roles at the Suzhou University of Science and Technology (&M 4
X £). From September 2001 to June 2006, she served as associate
professor at the management science and engineering department.
From July 2006 to July 2007, she served as deputy dean and party
branch secretary of the faculty of management. From August 2007 to
December 2012, she served as professor and party branch secretary
of the faculty of civil engineering. From January 2013 to May 2016,
she served as head of human affairs ( ASEZ) and head of the office
of high level personnel (=& X AA TIEHAZE). From June 2016 to
September 2018, she served as head of the higher education research
institute (&= ZXAF 98 FT). Since October 2018, she has been professor
of the faculty of civil engineering and head of the research institute
for real estate (FHbEMFTAT).

BYFHITES

BAELZL 605 R2021F4F16 BEZR(T
RBEVIIHTES - ARTTEETERNEEE
REBIER -

E1984F 98 E1996F2 7 - ALkt
TEEME RS IE X)X ERD - 81996
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B % @B - 82001498 =2006%6A -
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FELIERT - B2007F8AE2012F12A
BREETAIREERNAERESIHERD - 8
2013F 1B &E2016F58  HETAZTERE
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Ms. Zhou has been a member of the Second Suzhou Property
Management Tender Evaluation Panel (Bf/NTH 58 — @ WX ERBE
1Z 3F 12 &= R &) since October 2005, a committee member of the
Engineering Management Professional Committee (T2 BB HEXR
B & Z 8) of the Seventh Council of Jiangsu Civil Engineering and
Architectural Society (T # & T R Z R ES FE LB E L) since
October 2005, a committee member of the Engineering Management
Professional Committee of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil and
Architectural Society and the deputy head (8] £ £ & &) of the
Construction and Real Estate Economic Professional Committee (222
HEMELEREZBE) of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil
and Architectural Society (T & & T /RIEEEZSE \[ZIEEE) since
September 2009. Since January 2015, Ms. Zhou has been serving as
the deputy head of the Construction and Real Estate Economics
Professional Committee (BEMHEMELEZELZE SR EAEE)
of the Ninth Council of Jiangsu Civil and Architectural Society (L& &
tAREEEZSFNFIEEES). Since December 2018, Ms. Zhou has
been the deputy head (&8l % {FZ §) of the Suzhou City Preliminary
Property Management Bidding and Bidding Evaluation Expert
Committee (BAM M ERATHAMEETERRIZFZEREZES). Ms.
Zhou served as a director (32 5) of the seventh council of the China
Architectural Society Economy Branch (Bl SR AKL TS @
% + B ¥ %) and a committee member of the seventh Real Estate
Economy Professional Committee of China Architectural Society
Economy Branch (FBIZESeRE LB, SE L EF MBS R
Z 8&) from March 2014 to 2018.

Ms. Zhou obtained her bachelor’s degree in geography from China
Xinjiang University ( BI¥f§8 A2 ) in the PRC in July 1984.
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Ms. Xin Zhu (&), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Xin is primarily responsible for
the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Ms. Xin has over 20 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From December
2002 to February 2005, Ms. Xin served as a financial director of
Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited (former Hong Kong
stock code: 0124), a subsidiary of Guangdong Holdings Limited (&=
B4 E), where she was responsible for the financial management.
From February 2005 to December 2005, Ms. Xin served as a deputy
general manager of finance department of Guangdong Holdings
Limited (&3 255 @), a state-owned enterprise of the Government
of Guangdong Province, where she was responsible for the financial
management of the group. From April 2006 to July 2008, she worked
in Hopson Development Holdings Limited (&£ 8IBEE B R AF]) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
754), a property developer, where she last served as a group
accounting controller, and was primarily responsible for financial
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China
Aoyuan Group Limited (/1 Bl 2 B & & i {7 B R 2 &) (previously
known as China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (7 B0 2 (& 1 7= & &
f% 1 & BR A 7)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3883), a property developer, with her last
concurrent positions held as an executive director and executive vice
president, and was primarily responsible for financial management.
She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions making of
land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group Limited.
From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (&E ¢ b 12 %
B B 2 7)) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3380).
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Since June 2018, Ms. Xin has been an independent non-executive
director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (FE& £ F]) (@ company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a
company engaging in the development, manufacturing and sales of
vaccines. Since April 2020, she has been an independent non-
executive director of Central China New Life Limited (¥4 EH
FR /A d]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 9983), a property management service provider. Since
November 2020, she has been an independent non-executive director
of Datang Group Holdings Limited (X & 52 B £ % A R 2 7)) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
2117), a real estate company.

Ms. Xin obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (Ff B A R K 2) in the PRC in July 1990 and a
master’s degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of
Studies in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin became a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the
PRC in January 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January
2010.

Mr. Liu Xin (287), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Liu is primarily responsible for
the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Liu has served successively as an associate professor, professor
and a doctoral supervisor of the School of Public Administration and
Policy in Renmin University of China (FF B A R K B2 D HE 12 E6R)
since February 2001. He is also a researcher at the National Academy
of Development and Strategy in Renmin University of China (FF Bl A
RARBE 3R MEBSITT) in the PRC. He has been teaching in
Renmin University of China since 1997 and served successively as a
lecturer and an associate professor of the School of Labor and Human
Resources from June 1997 to February 2001. From August 1998 to
July 1999, Mr. Liu served as a visiting scholar at Ghent University in
Belgium. From August 2009 to July 2010, Mr. Liu served as a senior
visiting scholar of the Fulbright Program at Harvard University in the
United States. From September 2011 to December 2011, Mr. Liu
served as a visiting professor of Gerald R. Ford School of Public Policy,
University of Michigan in the United States. From May 2003 to
October 2013, he served as a chief expert and senior partner of
Beijing Boom HR Consulting Co., Ltd (It RIEB P EEEEPAR A
Al) and participated in the management and operation of the
company.
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Mr. Liu has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (HAIEXRMHDBER A F]), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2868), since
December 2017. He has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of Sinic Holdings (Group) Company Limited (7745
f% (@) BR A7), acompany listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2103), since November 2019. Since August
2020, he has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Yangde Environmental Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
(UL RBEREREREE M BB A F]), a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (stock code:
833755).

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree, a master’'s degree and a
doctorate degree in Labor Economics from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1991, June 1994 and June 1997, respectively.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Feng Jingen (J5®148), aged 58, was appointed as a Supervisor
and the president of the Supervisory Committee on 16 April 2021.
Mr. Feng is primarily responsible for presiding the work of the
Supervisory Committee, supervising the Board and the senior
management of the Company.

Mr. Feng joined SND Company in January 2001 and successively held
various financial management roles and served as finance director at
SND Company and its respective subsidiaries from January 2001 to
April 2009 and since March 2012. From April 2009 to March 2012,
Mr. Feng served as finance director at Suzhou Gaoxin Business and
Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (BN S M@ R ZEERBR 2 7)), a
company engaged in commerce. Mr. Feng has been a director of the
internal control department of SND Company since June 2017.

Mr. Feng obtained his bachelor’s degree (online education) in
accounting from the Wuhan University of Technology (B2 T A £2)
through online education in the PRC in January 2008 and an EMBA
degree from Xi’an Jiaotong University (PFEZ 2B AER) in June 2012.
Mr. Feng obtained the senior economist qualification issued by the
Human Resources and Social Security Department of Jiangsu Province
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Mr. Huang Wei (&), aged 43, was appointed as a Supervisor on
16 April 2021. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for supervising the
Board and the senior management of the Company.

From October 2018 to June 2020, Mr. Huang served as a deputy
general manager at Suzhou Golden Lion, where he was responsible
for business and assets operations and real estate sales and leasing.
Since June 2020, Mr. Huang has been deputy director (&l|EfT) of the
discipline inspection commission office of SND Company, where he is
responsible for supervision of discipline at SND Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a diploma in journalism from Renmin University
of China (FF Bl A & K £) in the PRC in December 2004 and his
bachelor’s degree (self-study) in management administration from
Wuhan University (EUZ X2 ) in the PRC in June 2012.

Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (RAL%8), aged 41, was appointed as a Supervisor
on 16 April 2021. Ms. Yuan is primarily responsible for supervising the
Board and the senior management of the Company.

Ms. Yuan joined the Company in November 2006. From November
2006 to September 2020, she successively served as management
staff, project director and manager of the management department
at the Company. Since October 2020, she has been manager of the
operations department at the Company, where she is responsible for
quality and operations management.

Ms. Yuan obtained her diploma (self-study module) of human
resource management from Nanjing University (F 5 A2 ) in the PRC
in June 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Jinrong (%), aged 53, was appointed as deputy branch
secretary, deputy general manager and chairman of the labor union
of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Wu is primarily responsible for
party affairs, safety management and the labor union.
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Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu successively served as
technician, deputy operations director, deputy director (&l = 1) for
mining operations, director of the chief engineering office and deputy
chief engineer at Suzhou Xiaomaoshan Copper-Lead-Zinc Mine (&R
m/NF LRSS R ), a subsidiary of SND Company from August 1994
to March 2003. From March 2003 to May 2017, Mr. Wu successively
served as assistant to the mine manager and deputy mine manager,
where he was responsible for the production management and safety
technology of the mine.

Mr. Wu joined the Company in May 2017 as deputy branch secretary,
deputy general manager and chairman of the labor union at the
Company where he is responsible for party affairs, safety
management and labor union in the Company.

Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in mining engineering from
Jiangxi University of Science and Technology (T 753 T A &) (formerly
known as Southern Institute of Metallurgy (R /5 /& & £ F%)) in the
PRC in July 1994. He obtained the senior engineer qualification issued
by the Jiangsu Province Human Resources and Social Security Bureau
(I#E ANERMEERER) formerly known as the Jiangsu
Province Personnel Department (;T#%& A S [2)) in November 2006.

Ms. Xie Xiaoning (f# B £), aged 44, was appointed as finance
director of the Company in December 2019. Ms. Xie is primarily
responsible for financial, asset and internal control management.

Ms. Xie has over 19 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xie successively served
as accountant, deputy manager and manager of the finance
department in Suzhou National Environmental High Tech Industrial
Park Development Co., Ltd (B&RMBERRRSFEMEXERZERER
A 7]), a subsidiary of SND Company, from January 2003 to March
2014. From March 2014 to December 2019, Ms. Xie served as finance
director at Suzhou SND Technology Industry Development Co., Ltd.
(BB EHEE X EAMR A F]), a subsidiary of SND Company.
From April 2014 to January 2017, Ms. Xie served as finance director
at Suzhou Xiaomaoshan Copper-Lead-Zinc Mine (&M /N5 1L SR $5
##7%), a subsidiary of SND Company. Ms. Xie joined the Company in
December 2019 as finance director of the Company.

Ms. Xie obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from Northeast
Forestry University (RR1E#ZFE A ) in the PRC in July 2001.
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Mr. Wang Xinfeng (£ %7 #), aged 45, was appointed as deputy
general manager of the Company in August 2021. Mr. Wang is
primarily responsible for project management, operations and public
relations.

Mr. Wang joined the Company in June 2002 and successively served
as administrator, deputy director (&) = fE), director (£ fE), project
manager and assistant to the general manager at the Company from
June 2002 to August 2021, where he was responsible for project
management.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
management from Beijing Foreign Language University (1t R 4MNEI 28
X&) in July 2016 via online education. Mr. Wang obtained the level
two project manager certificate (—#%I8 B 4832 7&) issued by Suzhou
Property Management Association (& N ™ #) % & 2 % €)in
December 2008, the certified property manager qualification (% &
H2AM) issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the PRC (A2 A R A FIER{E 5 Fy 4032 22 26) in November 2013.

Ms. Hong Lijuan (G B 18), aged 39, was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Ms. Hong has served
as the assistant to the general manager of the Company from
November 2019 to April 2022. Ms. Hong is primarily responsible for
project management, sales and marketing.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hong worked at Suzhou Japan-
China Bridge Economic Development Co., Ltd* (&r/N B o 2248 £¢ 75 3%
RAEBRRAT]) from 2006 to May 2010. She served as assistant to the
general manager at Jiangsu Zhongke Times Electric Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* OI#F R R REREERKD AR 2 R]) from July 2010 to
March 2011. Ms. Hong joined the Company in December 2014. From
December 2014 to October 2019, she successively served as deputy
manager and manager of the marketing department at the Company.

Ms. Hong obtained her bachelor’'s degree in law from Suzhou
University in the PRC in June 2005.
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Mr. Jin Xin (£ ), aged 40, was appointed as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company in November 2022. Mr. Jin is
primarily responsible for project management, sales and operation.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jin worked for Suzhou Taihu
Wetland World Tourism Development Co., Ltd.* (&) A 820 it 57
ik 5 % B B PR A 7 ) from December 2009 to December 2017,
Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development Co., Ltd.* (ER/NEILEISEREAR
FR2 7)) from January 2018 to July 2019, Sugaoxin Education Industry
Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.* (BRmFI B EEXZRE (BN ARA
7] ) from August 2019 to September 2021, Suzhou Sugaoxin
Commercial Development Co., Ltd.* (&R e T EERER A F])
from September 2021 to September 2022, Sugaoxin Education
Industry Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.* (= ¥ B E XL E (&
M) ABR2ARF]) from March 2022 to November 2022, respectively. Mr.
Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree of public affairs management from
the Southwest University of Science and Technology in January 2017.

Mr. Liu Chun (8] %), aged 43, was appointed as the assistant to
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the project management and operations.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu worked at Suzhou Dongshan
Hotel Co., Ltd. (kMR ILEEBREF2AA]) from January 2001 to
May 2005. From June 2005 to September 2015, Mr. Liu worked at
Suzhou Tianxiang Property Management Co., Ltd. (BN K%
ERBRAT).

Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in business management from Jiangnan
University (T # A £2) in the PRC in January 2015. He also obtained
the certified property manager qualification issued by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (FR % A R F1E
3 5= A #F 72 5% 50) in February 2014.

For the biographical details of Mr. Cui Xiaodong and Mr. Zhou Jun,
please refer to “Board of Directors — Executive Directors” in this
section.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Yang Lingbo (# % %), aged 28, was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 10 June 2021.

Ms. Yang joined the Company in July 2018. She served as an
operation specialist from July 2018 to September 2019, where she
was responsible for management of property value-added business,
operational contracts and social media operation. From September
2019 to November 2020, she joined the Youth League Committee of
Suzhou Gaoxin District (%% /N & #7 [@ B Z), where she was the
Assistant to the Youth League Secretary and was responsible for
organizing line work and office matters of the Youth League. Ms.
Yang rejoined the operations department of the Company in
December 2020 and is responsible for the management of value-
added businesses, business contracts and social media.

Ms. Yang obtained her bachelor of management degree majoring in
business management in June 2015 and a master of management
degree majoring in corporate management in April 2018, with both
degrees from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F

RMEMARAR).

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit (#8#2t), aged 35, was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 10 June 2021. Mr. Cheng is
an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, a professional service provider specializing in corporate
services. He has over 10 years of experience in the field of corporate
secretarial matters.

Mr. Cheng holds bachelor of commerce degree in finance from the
University of Queensland in Australia and a Master of Laws degree in
Chinese law from the University of Hong Kong. He has been an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom since June 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which are crucial to the development of the Group and would
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. During the period from
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2022, the Company has
applied the principles of good corporate governance and complied
with the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code, save for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 as
disclosed below:

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been separated as required by code provision C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The roles of the chairman and general
manager of the Company are both performed by Mr. Cui Xiaodong,
an executive Director. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and general manager in the same individual enables
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. Furthermore, in view of Mr. Cui Xiaodong's extensive
industrial experience and significant role in the historical development
of the Group, the Board believes that it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Cui Xiaodong continues to act as the
chairman and general manager of the Group following the Listing
Date, and that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the Board, comprising the executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

Since the Listing, the Company has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct for dealings in the securities of the Company by
the Directors and Supervisors.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors and Supervisors confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and
up to 31 December 2022.
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors with three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board is set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. Zhou Jun

Ms. Zhou Lijuan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cai Jinchun

Mr. Tang Chunshan

Mr. Zhang Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Yun

Ms. Xin Zhu

Mr. Liu Xin

Personal particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. No relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
exist between any member of the Board and other directors,
supervisors, and senior management.
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The Role of the Board and the Management

The Board shall be accountable to the Shareholders’ general meeting
and responsible for the management and conduct of the Group’s
business. The duties of Board include but not limited to convene
Shareholders’ general meeting and report its work to such meeting;
implement the resolutions of a general meeting; decide on the
Group’s business plans and investment plans and formulate the
annual financial budgets and final accounts of the Company; prepare
the profit distribution plan and plan for recovery of losses; decide on
the establishment of the internal management structure of the
Company; appoint or remove the senior management officers and
decide on their remunerations; establish a basic management system
of the Company; and exercise other duties and powers specified in
relevant laws, regulations, and the Articles of Association.

Matters relating to the daily operations and management of the
businesses of the Group shall be handled by the management
authorized by the Board. The Board provides clear guidelines on the
management authority of the management team and what the
management team should report, and regularly reviews the
authorized functions, rights and tasks to ensure that they remain
applicable.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play an essential role in the
Board through their independent professional judgment, and their
views play an important role in the decisions of the Board. Their
extensive experience has contributed significantly to enhancing the
decision-making capability of the Board and achieving a sustainable
and balanced development of the Group.

For the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Board
has complied with the requirements of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
(which specified that an issuer must appoint independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the board), and
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
(which specify that every board of directors shall include at least three
independent non-executive directors, and at least one of the
independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to
the requirements of the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent professional advice to perform its
responsibilities if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and
express their views to the Board and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of
other Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will
be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided
to the Board during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
B EFEERBEROERAA T - —FFR

ARRIBEWBI S B IFRITESRIZ EMARA
%“3 13REREMEA S B R FERE
RE - ARFAR/EBBUINTESTIES

-
VAR

BN EYRHINRRESEIEELS
" @?Eﬁi%ﬁf tR R ERABITERE -
ANMBEFEASKBIEXRERANETHER
£ %ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁ GIES:

o

EXQARRBREL =B UFNTES
(AMEEZERBABEL=02—) " L/(ii
ERRRRITFTECRNE I - BB RULE
B H I -

D\E

EE(PREEERTES) AT EK
@&%ﬁﬁié% BBRRERTER - WA
BEREYEBASEEEAR  LEEDM
EHRE EERNEMESTEENEBR
BFEELHEBYUFNTEEFRIT—AE
% AR kA= -

kp

2

MEMEEXEBEALEESSHTERNE
R FANGEER  AREESURTESS
S (MIFSERZ) TAEE - AREFEAN

SHAPHRAN G YHERERAMBAARSR
HT?&&‘U\‘“’ DEEABL  BIUIFMITEEN

BMBANNEBEETALENDRE - RIE
ij“ﬁ EH

EEeCORNTRE - é&iézozziuﬂ 31 H
I FEHRFIEE R ESS I BB E
ZHAE R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Term of Appointment of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The term of office of each Director shall be three years. Upon maturity
of the term of office, Directors shall be eligible to offer himself/herself
for re-election and re-appointment in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association but the independent non-executive
Directors should not hold office for more than nine consecutive years
except for the other requirements of relevant law and regulations.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Directors should participate in appropriate continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged training for its Directors and provided them
with reading material on relevant topics. Every newly appointed
Director shall receive a formal and comprehensive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company. In
addition, in preparation for the Listing, all Directors have received
formal and comprehensive training regarding their responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant laws. All Directors
have been trained in respect of the duties and responsibilities of
Directors, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to Directors
and the duty of disclosure of interests, and have read materials
relevant to the Company’s business or the Directors’ functions and
powers.

All the Directors namely, Mr. Cui Xiaodong, Mr. Zhou Jun, Ms. Zhou
Lijuan, Mr. Cai Jinchun, Mr. Tang Chunshan, Mr. Zhang Jun, Ms.
Zhou Yun, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code and participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.
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Training received by Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022:

HE2022F12A31BILFE - EFEIHE
AER

Types of training Nt
g R e

Directors =

Mr. Cui Xiaodong EBLSAE

Mr. Zhou Jun AERE

Ms. Zhou Lijuan EBELZ T

Mr. Cai Jinchun BeHRE

Mr. Tang Chunshan BELLE

Mr. Zhang Jun SR1& A&

Ms. Zhou Yun AEZ L

Ms. Xin Zhu FIRZE

Mr. Liu Xin Lt

Notes: Types of training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars
and conferences.

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group, risk
management and internal audit; (ii) provide advice and comments to
the Board and perform other duties and responsibilities as may be
assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of one non-executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Cai Jinchun, Ms.
Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin. The chairlady of the Audit Committee is Ms.
Xin Zhu, who is an independent non-executive Director and has been
a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of
the PRC in February 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in
January 2010.
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During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the
Audit Committee held one meeting to review the unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial information of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and discuss matters with respect to the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company and the
internal control and risk management systems and the internal audit
function.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) establish,
review and provide advices to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies concerning such remuneration; (ii)
determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management; (iii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Directors from time-to-time; and (iv) to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, if any.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tang
Chunshan, Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu Xin. The chairman of the
Remuneration Committee is Mr. Liu Xin.

As the Company was listed on 24 August 2022, during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee did not hold any meeting.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of the Board; (i) identify, select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the Board
members; (iii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee consists of one non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jun,
Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu Xin. The chairlady of the Nomination
Committee is Ms. Zhou Yun.

As the Company was listed on 24 August 2022, during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee did not hold any meeting.
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GENERAL MEETINGS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE BOARD COMMITTEES" MEETINGS

During the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 December
2022, the Board held 2 meetings. The following table sets out the
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Board
committees and general meetings during the said period:
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Number of attendance/Number of meetings held

HERY ERBTRY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee meeting

Name of Director EEpER Exg ERZE® ¥FHEEE REZEE BRAE
Mr. Cui Xiaodong EEXLt 212 - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun AELAE 212 - - - -
Ms. Zhou Lijuan BABExt 212 - - - -
Mr. Cai Jinchun BEERLE 21 1/1 - - -
Mr. Tang Chunshan BEVEE 212 - - - -
Mr. Zhang Jun RIETLAE 212 - - - -
Ms. Zhou Yun AZEx+ 2/2 - - - -
Ms. Xin Zhu Rt 2/2 111 - - -
Mr. Liu Xin Eliipites 212 11 - - -

As the Company was listed on 24 August 2022, during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Company did not
hold any general meetings.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee identifies suitably qualified individuals
and makes recommendations to the Board for nomination as Directors
to ensure that the members of the Board have the skills, experience,
and multiple perspectives necessary to meet the business needs of the
Company. The Nomination Committee will evaluate candidates based
on the Company’s business model and specific needs with reference
to the following factors, including but not limited to the provisions of
the Articles of Association, skills, experience and expertise, diversity,
commitment, status, and independence.
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The procedure for nominating Directors of the Company is as follows:

(i) To make nominations, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee shall convene the Nomination Committee meeting
and invite nominations from the Board members, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to the
meeting. The Nomination Committee may nominate candidates
without nomination from the Board members.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee conducts preliminary review on the
qualifications and background of the candidates for Directors
and submits qualified candidates to the Board for consideration;
after consideration and approval by the Board, the candidates
for Directors are submitted to the general meeting in the form
of written proposal; the Nomination Committee or other
organizations authorized by the Board are responsible for
specific matters on the election of Directors.

(i)  In order to provide information on the candidates nominated by
the Board for election at the general meeting and to invite
Shareholders to provide nominations, the Company will issue a
circular to the Shareholders, setting out the information on the
candidates to the Shareholders in accordance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

(iv)  Until such time as a circular to the Shareholders is issued, a
nominee may not assume that he/she has been recommended
by the Board for election at the general meeting.

(v)  The proposal of the Nomination Committee shall be submitted
to the Board for consideration and approval. After the
nomination of the candidates for Directors has been considered
and approved by the Board, it shall be submitted to the
Shareholders’ general meeting for approval.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has put in place a Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration policy to determine the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management. The objective of remunerating the
Directors and senior management is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and
development.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
B EFEERBEROERAA T - —FFR

ARREZNREBEFWT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

SR REHAREEE R

RETRE REZBSIFRECMIE
FEZEEeH UHBFEFETINERRS
ANE(WB)HERZESREMERE
RAZEQURAARESTENERS
HIRIEA o

REZBEHEEREANTRERM
BERETINIEZ GRABRRERES
CER KEFTSFSBER UEE
RENAABRRASRBESHEEA
REZEBEAEFERENHMBEER
BEFERARER -

REHEREEESRZERRARE L
ZENREAEHRBEBERERA

B ARABEMBEE AL - Ko
HIRIBEREER R RIAPIRII R
BARH -

HEBRHBRBEA - A AL DA
BRERECRESSHEBEERRAG LS

b

REZEGNRERREFETIAT
HPEERBEANRRLEZTSES
& ARIBRASEZBETAIER -

\

BUR

ARRERIEEERSREEENFHMEE
NETEERSRERENTMTE - MES

= AR E IR B B E N S R AR F BN K

B RUARSIRRESERELRATEER
SEEGRER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in the
Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration comprise basic salaries, allowances,
performance related bonuses and contributions to a pension scheme.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executive and the respective remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note
8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements. None of the
Directors and the Supervisors had waived or agreed to waive the
receipt of any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration level (RMB)

HEER(ARH)
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500,001-1,000,000

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diversed Board and sees
increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, gender, age, ethnicity, experience, independence and
knowledge.
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The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
accounting and financial management, and corporate governance.
They obtained degrees in various majors including accounting,
marketing, financial management, business administration and law.
The Company has three independent non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing a third of the members
of the Board. Taking into account the Group's existing business model
and specific needs as well as the different background of the
Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity
policy of the Company.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Company
recognizes the particular importance of gender diversity. The Board
currently comprises three female Directors and six male Directors. The
Board considers that the Company has achieved gender diversity at
the Board level and targets to maintain at least the current level of
female representation. The Company will ensure that gender diversity
is taken into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior
level and ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing
appropriate trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of
potential successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

The Company will continue to implement measures and steps to
promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels. The Company will
select potential Board candidates based on merit and his/her potential
contribution to the Board while taking into account the board
diversity policy and other factors. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
the Board members and will review the board diversity policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.
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EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. In order to avoid child labor
and forced labor, the Group, in strict compliance with the provision of
Article 15 of the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
prohibits the employment of juveniles under the age of 16, and
strictly check whether the actual age of the candidates meets the
employment criteria by checking their identity card, etc. By the end of
31 December 2022, the Group had 1,341 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as of 31 December 2022 are set out below:
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As of 31 December 2022
M2022%12831H

Percentage

of total

Number of number of

persons employees

HEEEAH

Indicator BiE A ERl4
Male employees BltEE 844 63%
Female employees ZHERE 497 37%
Employees aged 30 and under 30 M EE 107 8%
Employees aged from 31 to 50 31BES05EE 617 46%
Employees aged 51 or above 515 BB 617 46%

The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
as the property management industry mainly involves provision of
security services, fire services, water and electricity services, repair and
maintenance services for engineering equipment, etc., roles which are
generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make achieving
gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintain at least the current
proportion of female employees. To achieve diversity at workforce
level, the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment and
selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates with
different age, gender and experiences are considered. The Group has
also established talent management and training programs to provide
career development guidance and promotion opportunities to develop
a broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees.
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DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS" INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions against
them arising out of the Company’s business, and the insurance
coverage will be reviewed annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has a duty to perform the functions set out in Code
Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Board has developed
and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; reviewed and monitored the training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior management and
the Company’s policies and practices in relation to compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; developed, reviewed and
monitored the code of conduct and compliance manual to employees
and Directors; and reviewed the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has established risk management systems with relevant
policies and procedures that are appropriate for its business
operations. The key risk management objectives include: (i) identifying
the different risks relevant to the Group’s operations; (i) assessing and
prioritizing the identified risks; (iii) developing appropriate risk
management strategies for different risks; (iv) monitoring and
managing risks and risk tolerance level; and (v) executing measures to
respond to those risks.

The Company focuses on the “14th Five-Year Plan” strategic plan and
its annual business development goals. Firstly, all departments and
subsidiaries of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Units”)
closely cooperate to carry out risk identification, analysis and
assessment. Secondly, the risk assessment results of the Units are
summarized and reported to the Company’s internal control and
internal audit department, which is responsible for organizing the
assessment of various risks and assisting the Audit Committee and the
Board in decision-making. Thirdly, as a risk audit and monitoring
department, the internal control and internal audit department assists
the Audit Committee in reviewing risks of the Company and promptly
reports any risks discovered during the internal audit process to the
Audit Committee and the Board. The Audit Committee formulates
the risk management strategy, which is then evaluated and approved
by the Board. Based on the risk level and the results of risk analysis,
the Company generally adopts strategies to avoid, accept, reduce or
share risks.
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By implementing the internal control system, the Company controls
risks associated with its business operations with the adoption of
control and acceptance strategies. Each business department of the
Company and its subsidiaries constitute the first line of defense for
the above risk management, and implement risk control measures in
business processing and operations. The Company’s internal audit
department, as a comprehensive risk management functional
department, forms the second line of defense together with other
functional departments, responsible for professional risk management
and playing a role in addressing gaps in risk control by enhancing and
monitoring risk management. The Company has also established an
internal audit mechanism for risk management, which is also an
internal control monitoring and evaluation mechanism, i.e. the audit
department is responsible for monitoring and evaluating risk
management and internal control. It represents the third line of
defense for the Company’s risk management. In respect of financial
risk, the Company has implemented a series of control measures, such
as formulating and implementing financial reporting management
systems and adopting internal approval and external audit processes
to reasonably ensure the effective internal control over financial
reporting and the financial reporting risks within control. Regarding
the safety production management risks, by establishing a safety
production management system and formulating safety accident
prevention and control measures, the Company strictly fulfills its
corporate responsibility. For the non-compliance risk associated with
property management services, a service standard system has been in
place to clarify compliance obligations and effectuate compliance
operation.

The Board believes that, in 2022, the Company’s risk management
and internal control system were effective and the overall risk level
was within its acceptable level.

The Board confirms that it is responsible for the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and regularly reviews the
effectiveness of such systems. It acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
the risks associated with the achievement of business objectives but
not to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve them. In addition, it can
only make reasonable rather than absolute assurance that no material
misstatement or loss will result.
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The Company has adopted and implemented the “Anti-bribery Policy
(REBEIHIE)” and “"Employees’ Professional Ethics Policy (8 T
B EEEIEHIE)"” to recognize and deal with bribery or corruption
acts, professional ethics and risks arising from fraud and corruption.
All Directors, management and employees are strictly prohibited from
accepting or offering bribes, rebates, kickbacks or other authorized
payments and any other kind of bribery or corruption acts. Anti-
bribery policies and procedures are incorporated in the employees’
handbook and relevant professional ethics trainings are provided to all
new and existing employees. The internal audit department is
responsible for assessing and identifying risks arising from fraud and
corruption at the company, department and account level,
respectively, at the beginning of the year until 31 December 2022.

The Company also has a whistle-blowing policy under which the
internal audit department’s investigation and reporting of relevant
incidents would be subject to the Board’s oversight. The whistle-
blowing policy serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties of the
Company, in order to report and escalate any suspicious misconducts.
In accordance with the policy, the Group protects all whistle-blowers
from any kind of retaliation. All the information provided by the
whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended December 31, 2022 to ensure their
effectiveness and adequacy. The review shall be conducted on an
annual basis. The Board is of the view that the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended
December 31, 2022 were effective and adequate.

PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company maintains a policy on disclosure of inside information
with reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The policy sets out
procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating inside
information in an appropriate and timely manner, such as taking steps
to determine sufficient details, conducting internal assessment of the
matter and its possible impact on the Company, seeking professional
advice when required and verifying the facts. Anyone in possession of
the information must ensure such information is kept in strict
confidentiality and is not allowed to buy or sell any securities of the
Company until the information is fully disclosed to the public.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022, which give a true and fair view of the condition of the
Company and the Group and of the Group'’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The auditor’s statement on its reporting responsibilities in respect of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company’s remuneration
to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of
its audit services was RMB2 million. Apart from this, the Company’s
external auditor did not provide any other audit or non-audit services
to the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Yang Lingbo, the department supervisor of the general management
department of the Company, and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit, an assistant vice
president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an
external professional corporate service provider of the Company, have
been appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Ms. Yang Lingbo has been designated as the principal contact person
of Mr. Cheng Ching Kit at the Company and cooperates and
communicates with Mr. Cheng Ching Kit on corporate governance
matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Yang Lingbo and Mr.
Cheng Ching Kit have received relevant professional training of not
less than 15 hours respectively in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convening of General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more of the
Shares carrying voting rights at the meeting to be convened may, by
signing one or more counterpart written requisition(s) stating the
object of the meeting, require the Board of Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or a class shareholders’ meeting. The
Board shall as soon as possible after receipt of such written
requisition(s) proceed to so convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class shareholders’ meeting. The shareholdings referred to
above shall be calculated as at the date of the delivery of the written
requisition(s).

Where the Board of Directors fails to issue notice of convening
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the above written request,
the requesting shareholder(s) may request the Supervisory Committee
to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class shareholders’
meeting.

Where the Supervisory Committee fails to issue notice of convening
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the above written request,
Shareholder(s), for more than 90 consecutive days, individually or
collectively holding more than 10% of the Shares carrying voting
rights at the meeting to be convened may convene the meeting on
their own accord within four months upon the Board having received
such request. The convening procedures shall, to the extent possible,
be identical to procedures according to which general meetings are to
be convened by the Board of Directors.

All reasonable expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the
Shareholders as a result of the failure of the Board of Directors and
the Supervisory Committee to convene a meeting as required by the
above request(s) shall be borne by the Company and be set off
against sums owed by the Company to the defaulting Directors or
Supervisors.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

When the Company convenes a general meeting, Shareholders
individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting Shares
shall be entitled to propose a new motion in writing to the Company
and submit the same to the convener 10 days before the date of
general meeting. The convener of the general meeting shall issue a
supplemental notice of Shareholders’ general meeting within two
days after the receipt of such motion to notify other Shareholders and
include the matters within the scope of duty of Shareholders’ general
meeting in the motion into the agenda of the meeting and submit it
to the Shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval.

Enquiries to the Board

The Company maintains a website at www.suxinfuwu.com, where
information on the Company’s businesses and projects, key corporate
governance policies and announcements, financial reports and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company by the
following ways:

Address:Room 3001, 30/F, SND International Commerce Tower, 28
Shishan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Telephone number: +86 0512 68251855

Email:  investors@suxinfuwu.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring the Shareholders are provided with equal and timely access
to information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to engage actively with the Company.

The Board will maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and will review this policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to the Shareholders
will be ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy will be
directed to the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders will be provided with designated contacts, email
addresses and enquiry telephone number of the Company in order to
enable them to make any query in respect of the Company.

Since the Listing Date, all corporate communications and regulatory
announcements were published by the Company on its website and
the website of the Stock Exchange in a timely manner. The Board
considers that the shareholders communication policy is effective
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Dividend Policy

The payment and amounts of dividends (if any) depend on the
Group's results of operations, cash flows, financial position, statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the dividends to be paid by the
Company, future prospects and other relevant factors. Save for the
above and subject to applicable laws and regulations as well as the
Articles of Association, the Company expects to pay a dividend no less
than 30.0% of the profit after tax after the Listing each year. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Company'’s discretion. The proposed payment of dividends is also
subject to the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, and any
declaration of final dividend for the period will be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes in the Articles of Association from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2022. The latest version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website (www.suxinfuwu.com)
and the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Board is pleased to present its Directors’ report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of city services,
commercial property management services and residential property
management services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review and its future business development, an
analysis of the Group’s business using financial key performance
indicators, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of RMBO0.17 per
Share (before tax) in the form of cash for the year ended 31 December
2022 to the Shareholders. If the resolution for the proposed final
dividend is passed at the 2022 AGM, the proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid on or before Thursday, 31 August 2023.

As of 31 December 2022, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

DIVIDEND TAXATION

Under applicable PRC tax laws, regulations and rules, non-PRC
resident individuals and non-PRC resident enterprises who are holders
of the H Shares are subject to different tax obligations.
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Under the Individual Income Tax Law of the PRC (2018 Revision) (¢
#= AR AAMEE A BTE 5 %(20181& 5T))) and its implementation
regulations, non-PRC resident individuals are required to pay PRC
individual income tax at a 20% rate for dividends received from the
Company and the gains realized upon the sale or other disposition of
the H Shares held by them. The Company is required to withhold such
tax from dividend payments, unless applicable tax treaties between
China and the jurisdictions in which the foreign individuals reside,
reduce or provide an exemption for the relevant tax obligations.
Generally, a tax rate of 10% shall apply to the dividends paid by
domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises issuing shares in Hong
Kong to overseas resident individuals, pursuant to Circular of the
State Administration of Taxation on Individual Income Tax Collection
Issues upon Abolishment of Document Guoshuifa [1993] No. 045 ((E
RIS 48 B B P BIHE 85 [1993]045 5k X - EE IE B B B A FT 5 B &
E M M B A ). Where the 10% tax rate is not applicable, the
withholding company shall: (i) return the excessive tax amount
pursuant to the relevant procedures if the applicable tax rate is below
10%; (i) withhold such income tax payable by the foreign individual
at the applicable tax rate if the applicable tax rate is between 10%
and 20%; and (iii) withhold such foreign individual income tax at a
rate of 20% if no double tax treaty is applicable.

For non-PRC resident enterprises that are set up in accordance with
the law of the foreign country (region) whose actual administration
institution is outside China, but have set up institutions or
establishments in China or, without institutions or establishments set
up in China but have income originating from China, under the EIT
Law, dividends paid by the Company and the gains realized by such
non-PRC resident enterprises from the sales or other disposition of H
Shares are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 20%. In
accordance with the EIT Law Implementation Rules and the Notice on
the Issues Concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the
Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprise to Shareholders Which
are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises (BB E R MBI
MEE R EERFIRERERMABEEMEHE BRENEM))
issued by the he State Taxation Administration of the PRC (FF 2 AR
el R 15 4 /®), such tax rate has been reduced to 10%,
which is subject to a further reduction under an applicable treaty or a
special arrangement between China and the jurisdiction of the
residence of the relevant non-PRC resident enterprise. On 21 August
2006, China and Hong Kong entered into the Arrangements between
Mainland China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion
with Respect to Taxes on Incomes ({ I AN B 15 Bl 17K (& BE AR 49 B
1St e BHB A LLART AL HE)), pursuant to which any non-
resident enterprise registered in Hong Kong that holds directly at least
25% of the shares of the Company shall pay enterprise income tax
for the dividends declared and paid by the Company at a tax rate of
5% subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions such as approval
by the relevant PRC tax authority.
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Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding the ownership and disposal of H Shares in the PRC
and in Hong Kong and other tax effects.

SHARE CAPITAL

The H Shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange by way of Global Offering. On the
Listing Date, the Company issued 25,000,000 H Shares at HK$8.6 per
H Share. On 19 September 2022, the Company issued and allotted an
additional of 1,047,000 H Shares at HK$8.6 per H Share pursuant to
the partial exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

After deducting the underwriting fees and other related expenses, the
Company received aggregate net proceeds of approximately
HK$176.3 million. Accordingly, the net price per H Share was
approximately HK$6.77.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, details of the changes in share
capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and in the section headed ”Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity” in this annual report.

As of 31 December 2022, the Company’s aggregate amount of
reserve available for distribution to equity Shareholders was
approximately RMB239.2 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties mainly represent commercial
properties and rental apartments. The value of the Group’s investment
properties remained relatively stable at approximately RMB349.9
million as of 31 December 2021 and approximately RMB353.0 million
as of 31 December 2022.

RIGHTS OF PRE-EMPTIVE

According to the PRC laws and the Articles of Association, there is no
arrangement for the rights of pre-emption.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION TO HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company due to their holding of the
Company’s securities.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into by the Group or still in effect.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Directors and the Supervisors during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cui Xiaodong

Mr. Zhou Jun

Ms. Zhou Lijuan

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cai Jinchun

Mr. Tang Chunshan

Mr. Zhang Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Yun

Ms. Xin Zhu

Mr. Liu Xin

Supervisors
Mr. Feng Jingen
Mr. Huang Wei
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors entered into a service contract
or appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The principal particulars of these service contracts and appointment
letters comprise (a) the term of the service; (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective term; and (c) a dispute resolution
provision. The service contracts and appointment letters may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations from time to time.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has or is proposed to have a
service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no Director, Supervisor or any
entity connected with the Directors or Supervisors of the Company
was materially interested in, either directly or indirectly, any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance relating to the
business of the Company to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no Directors, the Supervisors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete
with the Company’s business as required to be disclosed under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF PERSONS OTHER THAN THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As of 31 December 2022, the following persons other than the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Shares held in the relevant class of

Zﬁvt%%%&ﬁ%%ﬁ$
JPE fm

HE2022F12A318  ARREE - BEEN
BE1THA B ZINIA T ATRAARA B BEAD s
HBERG R EEBLARRBREELF RS
BB 336IEMEFTEMNECMAERSIAR

Percentage of

Shares of the Company" the total issued

RAQARBERNRBEENRGO share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage of the Company
ERATERT
BRRERE M2 BEHE R85 A BO RABERDL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#4) (BE4)
SND Company? Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 69,846,825 (L) 93.13% 69.12%
Hasmame EnEAA NER
Interest in a controlled Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (1) 6.87% 5.10%
corporation
REH AR ER NER
SND Chengjian® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (1) 6.87% 5.10%
Haamge EnEAA NER
Caitong Securities Co., Limited*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
corporation
BRERRNBERARFC RS EEERS HE
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.*®  Other H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
RESERERARO Hit HE
Chen Aihua*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
corporation
BR3E® REH AR ER Hi&
Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Beneficial owner H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
Co., Ltd.*®
BN RREREEBRAR EnEAA Hi&
Chen Jie® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
Rze REH AR ER Hi&
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Shares held in the relevant class of Percentage of

Shares of the Company" the total issued

REDAEBRERIRABENREO share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage of the Company
ERDRAERT
BRREE/HH BHEME R4 R 8B AR BRABEEA
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(BE4) (BE#)
Suzhou Qianmo Village Development Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.™
HMFRBEREERERARY EHABA Hi%
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.© Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
EFERBRITRGERREC Rt ZEER Hi%
Xiamen International Investment Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
Limited® corporation
EFEBRREBR AR REH AR RS H%
Chiyu International Financial Holdings Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
Limited® corporation
EREReRIZERBBRARC REH AR RS H%
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
ERBITERRAC REH AR RS H%
Chiyu International Capital Limited® Beneficial owner H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
EREBERBRARO ERBEA H%
SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*? Trustee H Shares 4,076,500 (L) 15.65% 4.03%
ERRREFLERAA XFEA HR
CCB Principal Asset Management Investment manager H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd.*®
BREESERBRAANA® REKE HIk
Jin Weikang*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
Eal R ZEER HER
Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd.*®
Rl SR Vol UNGIE EHABA Hi%
Liu Chunming"® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
ElE=t 0 Rt ZEER HE
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Shares held in the relevant class of
Shares of the Company®

Percentage of
the total issued

REDAEBERIRABENREO share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage of the Company
L NGRS
BREE®/ HH BHEME R4 R B B BRABEEA
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(%) (BE4)
Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Co., Ltd.*0
TEBERRZREERRE EHABA Hi&
Lu Jianchao*" Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
3= 0 Rt EE R Hi&
Suzhou Zhonggang Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Co., Ltd.*
BMmRBRERRDA EHABA Hi&
Shanghai International Trust Co., Ltd. ¥ Trustee H Shares 6,764,000 (L) 25.97% 6.69%
FRRRETERAR ZFEA Hi&
Wu Xiangying Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
RER EHABA HE
Yu Chaoguan'™® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
R REHEE R HE
Zhao Guo™ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
RO ZEHEEER HIR
Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
Enterprise Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)*"¥
LERRRELEERABLE LN HE
(BRAE)
Zheng Weidong*¥ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
corporation
BER REHEE R HE
Suzhou Dongyu Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
Development Co., Ltd.*™
BNRFRIBRABR AR EHABA Hi&
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Shares held in the relevant class of
Shares of the Company®

Percentage of
the total issued

REDAEBRERIRABENREO share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage of the Company
L NGRS
BREE®/ HH BEEtE R4 R 8B AR RABERD L
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(BE4) (BE#)
Zhou Gang"® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
[ER 0 ZEHEEER HIR
Suzhou Guanglin Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
Co., Ltd.*(
BMNERERBRELRAY ERBEAA Hi&
Chen Hongguang"® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
R4y 00 e EEES HIR
Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group  Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd.*(®
BNRrERERBR AR ERBEAA Hi&
Xu Xuelei Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
HEE ERBEAA Hi&
Wu Ye*(? Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 2.67%
corporation
REE ZEHEEER HIR
Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Beneficial owner H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 2.67%
Technology Co., Ltd.*"
BN EHRERMBR AR ERBEAA Hi&

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares, and the letter “S”
denoted a short position in the Shares.

(2) SND Chengjian is wholly-owned by SND Company. By virtue of the SFO, SND
Company is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by

SND Chengjian.
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(©)

)

5)

(6)

8)

©)

Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 40% by Caitong
Securities Co., Limited.*. By virtue of the SFO, Caitong Securities Co.,
Limited* is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*. According to the disclosure of interests filed by
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*, as an asset manager of Caitong Fund Yuanrong
Overseas No. 160 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*, Caitong Fund
Smart Select Overseas No. 161 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*,
Caitong Fund Special Overseas No. 162 (QDII) Single Asset Management
Plan* and Caitong Fund Yitong Overseas No. 163 (QDII) Single Asset
Management Plan*, held 1,335,000 H Shares, 1,335,000 H Shares,
2,682,000 H Shares and 1,300,000 H Shares of the Company through these
QDI asset management plans, respectively.

Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 84% by
Chen Aihua*. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Aihua* is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

Based on publicly available record, Suzhou Qianmo Village Development
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85% by Chen Jie. By virtue
of the SFO, Chen Jie is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou
Qianmo Village Development Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.*.

Chiyu International Capital Limited is wholly owned by Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited, which is in turn owned as to 69.63% by Chiyu
International Financial Holdings Limited. Chiyu International Financial
Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Xiamen International Investment
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd.. By virtue of the SFO, each of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.,
Xiamen International Investment Limited, Chiyu International Financial
Holdings Limited and Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Chiyu International Capital Limited.

According to the notice of equity disclosure filed by SDIC Taikang Trust Co.,
Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*, as a trustee of SDIC
Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 40 QDII Single Fund Trust, SDIC Taikang Trust —
Ruijin No. 41 QDII Single Fund Trust and SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 42
QDII Single Fund Trust, held 1,358,500 H Shares, 1,359,500 H Shares and
1,358,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interests filed by CCB Principal Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, the Shares are held by CCB
Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.* for the No.91 Nuggets Fund*
managed by it.

Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co.*, Ltd is owned as to 62.37% by Jin
Weikang*. By virtue of the SFO, Jin Weikang* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.
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(10)  Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd*. is owned as to 90% by Liu
Chunming. By virtue of the SFO, Liu Chunming is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd.*.

(11)  According to the disclosure of interests filed by Lu Jianchao* on 30 August
2022, Lu Jianchao* is interested in the Shares through the corporation
controlled by him.

(12)  According to the disclosure of interests filed by Shanghai International Trust
Co., Ltd.* on 21 September 2022, Shanghai International Trust Co., Ltd.*, as
a trustee of the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum
Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22010)*, the Single Fund Trust in Hong
Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-
22011)*, the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum
Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22012)* and the Single Fund Trust in
Hong Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-
22013)*, held 1,351,000 H Shares, 2,702,500 H Shares, 1,351,000 H Shares
and 1,359,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

(13)  Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* is owned as to 80% and 20% by Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan,
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*, a corporation controlled by
them.

(14)  Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 80%
by Zheng Weidong*. By virtue of the SFO, Zheng Weidong* is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development
Co., Ltd.*.

(15)  Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85.01% by Zhou
Gang. By virtue of the SFO, Zhou Gang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.*.

(16)  Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd.* directly holds 2,682,000
H Shares. Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd. is owned as to
90% by Chen Hongguang. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Hongguang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Chenguang
Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

(17)  Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* is owned as to
70% by Wu Ye*. By virtue of the SFO, Wu Ye* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.*.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any person
(other than the Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

(1)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(17)
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the purchase of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such
rights exercised by them. Also, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained liability insurance for the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management to protect them from any legal
liability to any third party arising from corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2022 and remained in force as of the date of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not make
charitable donations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of SND Company and SND Chengjian, both being controlling
shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 3 August 2022 in favour of the Company. Please
refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus for
more details.

Each of the abovementioned controlling shareholders confirmed that,
since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2022, it had complied
with the non-competition undertaking. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with the deed of
non-competition by SND Company and SND Chengjian for the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, and are not aware that
the above controlling shareholders have not complied with the non-
competition undertaking.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer
accounted for 46.4% and 22.3%, respectively, of the Group's total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier accounted for 45.5% and 23.4%, respectively, of the
Group's total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SND Company, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, is one of the
largest customers of the Group. Save for disclosed above, none of the
Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (whom, to the best knowledge and belief
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s total issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed under “Continuing Connected Transactions” in
this section, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries entered
into any significant contracts with the controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2022.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with parties
who, upon the Listing, become connected persons of the Company,
and the transactions disclosed in this section constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon Listing.

1. Master Water Supply Agreement

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master water
supply agreement (the “Master Water Supply Agreement”)
with Gaoxin Water, pursuant to which the Group will purchase
water from Gaoxin Water for use in its operation and services.
Gaoxin Water is a licensed municipal water supply company
responsible for supply of tap water in Hugiu District, Suzhou.
The Master Water Supply Agreement has a term commencing
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by the Group under the
Master Water Supply Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2024 shall not exceed RMB6.3 million, RMB6.3 million and
RMB6.4 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount of water charges payable by the
Group for the purchase of water from Gaoxin Water amounted
to RMB3.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
Gaoxin Water, being a subsidiary of SND Company, is therefore
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Master Property Management Services
Agreement

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master
property management services agreement (the “Master
Property Management Services Agreement”) with SND
Company, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
property management services to SND Group and its associates,
including but not limited to (i) city services including but not
limited to municipal infrastructure services and public facility
management services; (i) property management services for the
commercial and residential properties owned or used by SND
Group and its associates; (iii) value-added services including but
not limited to carpark space management services, customized
cleaning, maintenance and security services (the “Property
Management Services”). The Master Property Management
Services Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by SND Group and its
associates in relation to the Property Management Services to
be provided by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December 2024
shall not exceed RMB48.9 million, RMB61.1 million and
RMB66.8 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount of fees payable to the Group for
the provision of the Property Management Services amounted
to RMB33.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
is therefore a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing connected transactions reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors

According to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they are:

(1)  entered into in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group;

(2) conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) conducted in accordance with the respective terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged by the Board to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company
confirmed to the Board that nothing has come to the attention
of the auditor that causes the auditor to believe that the above
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

The Company has lodged a copy of the auditor’s letter with the
Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the
related party transactions set out in the note above do not fall within
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not
engaged in any material litigation or arbitration which could have a
material effect on its financial condition or results of operations. So
far as the Directors are aware, no such litigation or arbitration of
material importance is pending or threatened against the Group.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants, which will be subject to nomination for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and to the
knowledge of the Directors, for the period from the Listing Date and
as of the date of this annual report, the Company maintained
sufficient public float in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s customer
base primarily consists of property developers, property owners,
residents, tenants, industrial and other corporate entities, local
government and public authorities.

The Group prioritizes quality in its services and believe that quality
control is crucial to the long-term success of its business. Through
both the online monitoring and off line supervision, the Group’s
quality control team controls the quality of various aspects of its
services, including customer service, security service, maintenance
service and environment service. The Group has established internal
policies and procedures for responding to and recording customer
feedback and complaints, and following up with its customers for
reviews on the Group’s responses. In designing such a feedback and
complaint management system, the Group seeks to maintain the trust
and confidence of its customers.

Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the suppliers of the Group
are primarily subcontractors located in China which provide cleaning,
security and maintenance services to the Group.

The Group outsources certain such services to lower its cost of services
while maintaining high service quality. Subcontractors specialize in the
services they perform and operate in an efficient manner, and such
sub-contracting arrangements allow the Group to leverage the human
resources and technical expertise of the sub-contractors, hence reduce
labor costs and enhance overall profitability.
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Employees

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The Group
proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with relevant
working experience in property management to support the
sustainable growth of its business. The Group provides various
training programs to its employees to improve their satisfaction.

As of 31 December 2022, employees of the Group formed labor
unions and the Group did not experience any material strikes,
accident relating to work safety or labor disputes with its employees,
or got involved in any material accidents in relation to work safety,
nor did the Group receive any complaints, notices or orders from
relevant government authorities or third parties.

PENSION SCHEME

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

In addition, the Group has maintained an enterprise annuity scheme
for certain subsidiaries. The expenses required for the enterprise
annuity are jointly paid by the enterprise and employees. Employees
may choose to join the Company’s enterprise annuity scheme on a
voluntary basis. The expenditure is included in the current profit or
loss or the cost of related assets when they are incurred.

As of 31 December 2022, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to environmental protection and the
Directors believe that the establishment and implementation of sound
environmental, social and governance principles and practices will
help increase the Group's investment value and provide long-term
returns to the Group's stakeholders.

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to transparency and
accountability to its stakeholders, the Company will issue separately
an Environmental, Social and Governance Report under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The report will present the
Company’s commitment to sustainable development during the year
under review, and it will cover the significant economic,
environmental and social achievements and impacts arising from the
activities of the Company and its joint ventures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 24 March
2023. The Company proposed to dispose of the 49% equity interest
held in SND Yiyang by the Company through public tender at the
Suzhou Public Resources Exchange Centre. The successful bidder is
required to enter into an asset transaction agreement with the
Company in accordance with the regulations of the Suzhou Public
Resources Exchange Centre.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material events undertaken by
the Group subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
Cui Xiaodong

Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

*  for identification purpose only

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
B EFEERBEROERAA T - —FFR

B R REARS

AEBHAORRERE  EERR BURE
BRIFHIRE e RERRULERGHE
REBFAAEENREEEL SANEE N ER
ERU RO

ARG B 5 R 25 A8 78 & (F B B E e ]
BN E 2 AR - AR BRI TR R 8
27FRERE - e MERAMERESIER M
BIYMRE HEREARE - ZBEHED
ARBREBEFENE A RER R ZAE - 75
BERRNRBREGECEZAFELECE
R  RERMMERRARTE -

\

s>

e B =R

WARMA AR BHIA2023F3 A24BHAE o
RAREFEHMNTALERZZHLBEAA
FHEREHERARMEHMNIEEN49% K
o FIZEABREBEHMNTALERZZH LM
BMOIEARRFILEER D °

B EXFrIEEESN - 2022812 A31 BEER
MEHE  AEBWHEBEEFTNEHNF -

REESFE
FHXFEERERDERAT
EFRRUTEF

ERL

&% 202343 A28H



REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is pleased to present the
Report of the Supervisory Committee of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

During 2022, the Supervisory Committee fulfilled its duties and
obligations in a serious manner by various ways including participating
in Shareholders’ general meetings, meetings of the Board in
accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee
for the interests of the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee
reviewed the Company’s financial accounts, and monitored its
management and operation, implementation of resolutions of the
shareholders’ general meeting, directors’ and management’s
compliance with laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association when performing their respective duties.

The Supervisory Committee is of the view that, during 2022, the
Company operated strictly in accordance with the requirements of
relevant laws and regulations, such as the Listing Rules, and the
internal control management system, such as the Articles of
Association, and the Directors, senior management of the Company
performed their duties diligently and faithfully in accordance with
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association, thereby effectively
protecting the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report include:

Mr. Feng Jingen (&1 )
Mr. Huang Wei (&)
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (IRAL%8)
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

ESERE

MAJOR WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE IN 2022

Earnestly performing supervisory duties

As the Company was listed on 24 August 2022, during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022, the Supervisory
Committee did not hold any meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the members of the
Supervisory Committee conducted comprehensive supervision of the
procedures to convene meeting, agenda and resolutions of the
Shareholders’ general meetings and meetings of the Board,
implementation of the resolutions of the Shareholders’ general
meetings by the Board as well as the duty performance of the
Directors, managers, and senior management by sitting on in
Shareholders’ general meetings and meetings of the Board and
participating in the major decision-making procedures of the
Company.

Evaluation on behaviors of the Board and the senior
management in 2022

The procedures for making major operating decisions by the Board
were legal and valid, and the resolutions of the Shareholders’ general
meetings and meetings of the Board were implemented effectively.
The internal control system remained sound and comprehensive. The
Directors and senior management of the Company performed their
duties honestly and diligently in strict compliance with the relevant
national laws and regulations, Listing Rules and the rules and policies
of the Company. Despite the challenges posed by the complex and
evolving external conditions and the impact from COVID-19
pandemic, they fulfilled their responsibilities and completed various
tasks set at the beginning of the year. As of 31 December 2022, there
was not any corruption lawsuit filed and concluded involving the
Company or its employees.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE COMPANY’S OPERATION

Lawful operation of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed the risk
management report of the Company as of 31 December 2022. The
Company has integrated risk management into all business and
decision making procedures, including the formulation of strategies,
business development, business planning, fund allocation, investment
decisions, internal control and daily operation. The Directors and
senior management always performed their duties responsibly in the
business operations and management processes, and they were not
found to have breached any laws, regulations, or the Articles of
Association or harmed the interests of the Shareholders.

Financial report of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company conducted a careful and
detailed inspection of the Company’s financial condition, and
reviewed the Group's audited financial report for the year ended 31
December 2022 and other financial information. The 2022 annual
report of the Company has reflected the Company’s financial position
and operating results in a truthful manner. They were not aware of
any violation of the relevant accounting standards and legal
requirements by the personnel who were involved in the preparation
of the report.

MAJOR INITIATIVES OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE FOR 2023

In 2023, the Supervisory Committee will work diligently and faithfully
under relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee,
implement effective supervision on the Company, Directors and senior
management, closely monitor the operation and management of the
Company, pay attention to any significant development of the
Company to promote sustainable development of the Company, and
faithfully safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company as a whole. Meanwhile, the Supervisory Committee will
further integrate supervision resources, procure improvement in
management, assist in and ensure successful realization of the
Company’s work targets for 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B B E RS

To the shareholders of Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suxin Joyful
Life Services Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 108 to 230, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 3 % B ¥R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BEEITEE

FRET =R (®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWFFNAEEARENSE

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

EZRURARMEEHRERE

As at 31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately RMB193.5 million,
against which an allowance for impairment of RMB17.0
million was made, and the net carrying amount of the
trade receivables was approximately RMB176.5 million.

2022512 A31 0 - EZRUWHENEREEN /A
R¥193588 7T ErltsHERERBARK 1708
&7 BHRBGIEREFENRARK 176 588TT °

Management applied the simplified approach in
calculating expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) of trade
receivables, based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected credit loss rates. It involved significant
judgments and estimates when management made these
assumptions and selected the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, ageing
profile of the receivables, existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables was identified as a key
audit matter.
EREREBEROERMEBEEFEENRR  EAK
e EFEBSRRFIATRBMEEEE - EEENRE
HARRE SSENBEES - BEFENRERKRL
WAEMR LA ERFHEEZFRE MOEEAERMERN
WABIER - BIELERHAE K- Bt BFRK
FIHTEEEEER A RET AHERENSEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BERRBHNRAMBHERME24 3218
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Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included, among others,
the followings:

B AEZRURFEREEBEEREHNETIZERF (HP
BEIWMT

° Understanding, evaluating and testing management'’s
key controls in relation to the assessment of the
expected credit losses on trade receivables;

o TE MERARETEESEEFEEBEEER
BHNEEE RS

° Assessing the credit loss provisioning methodology
adopted by management;

o FMAEEERANEREERBEL:

o Assessing the forward-looking factors and the
estimated credit loss rates by considering historical
cash collection performance and movements of the
ageing of trade receivables, and taking into account
the market conditions;

o  BBEERELWKRKRIRNEFEKGIARKNES
WERETZMRR - AR EREREFEERE
R

° Testing, on a sample basis, ageing analysis of trade
receivables prepared by the management;

o MEAHEEERENEWFTRRE DN ;

o Checking the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance; and

o  REHEREMNEBRERNBEERE K

° Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
o  FHh EEERASMBWMERPEENRESME -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREESEE

VR 2 TTE s

FARETER®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEFOMNEERRETSR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying amount
of the investment properties was approximately RMB353.0
million.

R2022F12A31H > REVMENREEAEBNSARE
353.08&7T °

The Group's investment properties were stated at fair
values based on valuations carried out by independent
external valuer. Significant judgement is required to
determine the fair values of the investment properties,
which reflects market conditions as at the end of the
reporting period. The use of different valuation techniques
and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of fair values. Accordingly, the valuation of
investment properties was identified as a key audit matter.
ERENKREMERBBLINIMEEMETHHERR
FEIE BEEREVMENDTFEFTEELERHE -
i B R R TSRO o SRA TR EETER
BRAIGHEETIRN R FEMRT - Bk - REWER
HERET RERESAEER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BERRBEHEN R REME24 - 3K%14-

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included, among others, the
followings:

BASREMEN[BENTHEZRF (EFReF) T

° Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the valuer, as well as obtained an
understanding of valuation approach and key
assumptions used by the valuer;

o AHMAMMERIMER  FEEEREVM - URT#EMG
ERMEFEANBEREREEZREK

o Assessing the validity of the key data used as inputs for
the valuations, and involving our internal valuation
experts to assist in evaluating the valuation
methodology and key valuation parameters used in the
valuation by benchmarking them to relevant market
information on a sampling basis; and

o FMERERERABURNBREEEN AL - WEE
BN EER BB MR EE S E R
RAGEFTE AR R E2 S AR T I B RHEREE
LEE - AT B R TR 5 &

° Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
related to the valuation of investment properties in the
consolidated financial statements.

o M ERERGEMBHRIRTEREMELEEH
IREH TR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENRE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

= A4S 3L
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &= 202212 A31 HILtFE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥ET T ARETIT
REVENUE Uk &% 5 521,965 461,981
Cost of sales S EE Ak AN (400,618) (355,756)
Gross profit EF 121,347 106,225
Other income and gains N NS € 5 17,753 9,681
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EHMAX (2,981) (2,762)
Administrative expenses TEAX (33,115) (29,001)
Other expenses Habkx (1,125) (714)
Finance costs EURGID RN 7 (11,343) (3,867)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E— KB R RE 18 (2,013) (3,009)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B& %4 A0 KU 6 88,523 76,553
Income tax expense PSR 2 10 (22,801) (20,036)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERFE 65,722 56,517
Profit attributable to: AT AT FEAEFE
Owners of the parent ISYNETEZYEIN 64,763 55,465
Non-controlling interests FEIERERE RS 959 1,052
65,722 56,517
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B R B & BB EE AELESR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ZX|
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted (RMB) AERKEE(ARET) 0.77 0.74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEW AR

Year ended 31 December 2022 = 2022412 B31 B ILFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Ht2EER
Other comprehensive loss that will not be REBIRBTEERsEEEEN
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Eb2mEEE -
periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value EEABNATEY AR MEEY AL
through other comprehensive income: fEAERE
Changes in fair value NEEES (21,767) (2,367)
Income tax effect Stz & 5,442 592
(16,325) (1,775)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMZEEE @ KRB
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (16,325) (1,775)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAEZEBALRE
FOR THE YEAR 49,397 54,742
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AR A LEEREUALELE
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ DN 48,438 53,690
Non-controlling interests FEE AR 959 1,052
49,397 54,742
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE ARET T ARKETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WME  BENREE 13 409,570 359,815
Investment properties "B 14 352,981 349,930
Other intangible assets Hipmp & E 694 344
Investment in an associate R—REENRHIEE 16 4,778 6,791
Equity investments designated at fair EEBAAFEAEMEE I
value through other comprehensive AR IR IER E
income 17 70,673 92,440
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 15 10,026 10,258
Time deposits FHTFER 21 1,937 -
Deferred tax assets BT IEEE 25 5,622 5,359
Total non-current assets IEmBEEMLE 856,281 824,937
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 111 177
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIR 18 176,503 101,222
Prepayments, other receivables and TEFTFRIE - H A EUGRIE R H A
other assets BE 19 32,589 51,115
Due from related parties FE UG BE s 5 3008 33 19,008 35,123
Restricted cash ZMRHIR e 21 845 442
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEED 21 350,909 302,644
Total current assets MEVEEBE 579,965 490,723
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEME
Trade payables B HENRE 22 211,820 192,532
Other payables and accruals EH A S 0B N B AT R 23 95,169 103,106
Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITER 24 11,250 11,250
Due to related parties FETREESE 5 1A 33 10,394 65,675
Tax payable FERTFIIR 3,449 2,666
Contract liabilities aHEE 20 39,828 75,019
Total current liabilities R BEARE 371,910 450,248
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 208,055 40,475
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERRDAE
LIABILITIES 1,064,336 865,412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

2022 2021
2022 5 2021
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®BTFT ARBTE

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 24 111,250 122,500
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 25 18,434 21,311
Other liabilities HEMmER 26 170,974 168,074
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EETE 300,658 311,885
Net assets FEE 763,678 553,527
EQUITY e
Share capital A% AR 27 101,047 75,000
Reserves ERE 28 655,907 474,152
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AEGER
of the parent 756,954 549,152
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M = 6,724 4,375
Total equity RS 1aE 763,678 553,527
Cui Xiaodong Tang Chunshan
EEBEX B&EY
Director Director
2 E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HAERBBR

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E 2022412 A31 BILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRBARL
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
through other Asset Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained comprehensive  revaluation controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits income reserve’ Total interests equity
NATESIA
B 2ERAL
SREED EEEf
& REE BRGE EERE BFNE  ATEER R At FERER BHAH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  AR%Tn  ARETR ARETn  ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28)
(Hzk27) (Hf3t28) (HizE28)
At 1 January 2022 R20251A18 75,000 - 263,160 19,693 181,104 8,579 1,616 549,152 4375 553,527
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - 64,763 - - 64,763 959 65,722
Other comprehensive loss FREMEZERE
for the year - - - - - (16,325) - (16,325) - (16,325)
Total comprehensive income FRLARANAE
for the year - - - - 64,763 (16,325) - 48,438 959 49,397
Capital contribution by FERBRRTE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 1,390 1,390
Issue of shares ikt 26,047 168,927 - - - - - 194,974 - 194,974
Share issue expenses Rip%TEY - (35,610) - - - - - (35,610) - (35,610)
Transfer from retained profits BEAEENE - - - 6,626 (6,626) - - - -
As at 31 December 2022 R025128318 101,047 133,317* 263,160* 26,319* 239,241* (7,746)* 1,616* 756,954 6,724 763,678
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of — * ZEREBERBESAMERARP OGRS EME
RMB655,907,000 (2021: RMB474,152,000) in the consolidated statement of B A R #655,907,0007(2021F : A B &

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Y=Y

Attributable to owners of the parent

4

Em

E B

Year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE 2022412 A31 B ILEfE

BATEEAEL
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at fair
value through
other Asset Non-
Paid-in Share Capital Merger Statutory Retained  comprehensive revaluation controling Total
capital capital reserve reserve reserve profits income reserve* Total interests equity
ATEFIA
Et2ERAR
SHEEN BEEf
BAEK e BARE aftiE EEEE BEHE  ATEER Gkt Ai HHiRER BRlE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
(note 27) (note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
() (e (e (M) (H3t28)
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1818 43,662 - 43,145 129715 18311 248659 10354 1616 495,462 333 498,785
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - - 95,465 - - 55,465 1052 56,517
Other comprehensive loss for the year  FREH2TEE - - - - - - (1,775 - (1,775) - (1.775)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EUALE - - - - - 55,465 (1,779 - 53,690 1052 54,742
Transfer of subsiciaries EE LN - - 195,836 (129,715) - (66,121) - - - -
Conversion into a joint stock company 2 ARGHERAT 43,662) 75,000 21,179 - (4.279) (51,238) - - - - -
Transfer from retained profits BRATERE - - - - 5,661 (5,661) - - - -
As at 31 December 2021 R2021E12A318 - 75,000 263,160% - 19,693 181,104 8579* 1616* 549,152 437 553,527
#

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-

occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value before 1

January 2021.

AESHHEERETEAYMENR2021F1A1H
ARG E AR N TEYIRZIREMEEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il‘/-.r\/\IE%/J“J%%

Year ended 31 December 2022 &= 202212 A31 HILtFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE ARET T ARKETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBNRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: MR R R - 88,523 76,553
Finance costs B 75 Ak 2N 7 11,343 3,864
Interest income FBUA (2,747) (1,485)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  MELREBEE W
plant and equipment 518 935 28
Share of loss of an associate R —KE & R RIEE 2,013 3,009
Changes in fair value of investment BEYEN DT EES
properties 14 (3,051) (4,563)
Depreciation of items of property, W BERZREEENTE
plant and equipment 13 19,648 12,573
Depreciation of items of right-of-use FREESEBEBENINE
assets 15 232 432
Amortisation of other intangible assets — H b 2 & A2k 6 172 44
117,068 90,455
Decrease/(increase) in inventories A, (3 hn) 66 21)
(Increase) in trade receivables E%FEHQ RIE (3% 50) (75,281) (4,863)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERRIE - 12e REMER
deposits and other receivables v\lﬁﬁld >,/ (3 h0) 4,326 (3,301)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due FE U BE RS 5 B > (3 n)
from related parties 16,115 (13,120)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due e AR 77 SR IB G A0, CRiA)
to related parties 1,719 (15,621)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables Z S e RIEE I CFid) 10,586 (1,040)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables B0 FE A BIE R FE R R O )
and accruals ye: i (7,937) 8,596
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & 418 & (G4 ), & hn (35,191) 33,117
(Increase) in restricted cash xﬁﬁ%‘lfﬁﬁ (420) (403) (442)
Cash generated from operations BT Iﬁé 31,068 93,760
Income tax paid ERATEH (22,300) (23,495)
Net cash flows from operating activities #&& /EBFTSIR G R E F5E 8,768 70,265
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GeRETRER

Year ended 31 December 2022 = 2022412 B31 B ILFE

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 €
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR®BTFT ARBTE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBNRERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWHE BEKREEER

plant and equipment (56,960) (60,790)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  BEKIEE

property, plant and equipment 18 B 1S 50E 84 38
Additions to other intangible assets HibEmPEEELE N (522) (221)
Investment in an associate R—KEE QAR E - (4,900)
(Increase) in time deposits FHIFER (38 h0) (1,937) -
Interest received U E 2,747 1,485
Net cash flows used in investing activities & AR & m & %58 (56,588) (64,388)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHNRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIR 0 PTG 5RIE 194,974 -
Share issue expenses R FHITHZ (23,812) (13,043)
Repayment of advance from related EEERNE) Aok E

parties 33 (57,000) -
Advance from related parties =Nk O - 41,500
Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans (8 Z5F B IR1TE R 24 (11,250) (6,250)
Principal portion of lease payments MENRORRES 15 - (226)
Interest paid ERFLE (13,203) (13,424)
Capital contribution from IR FRTE

non-controlling shareholders 1,390 -
Net cash flows from financing activities gt & /EBFTSIR SR 2 F58 91,099 8,557
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBEESEWEMTER

CASH EQUIVALENTS 43,279 14,434
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRENRESEEY

beginning of year 302,644 288,210
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ &R &F) g & %58

net 4,986 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRAIEE KRS EEY 350,909 302,644
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GeREREBR

Year ended 31 December 2022 &= 202212 A31 HILtFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE AR®T T AREFT
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HEeRBEESZEWEHR DM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRTTHEE 21 172,471 303,086
Non-pledged time deposits with RUERREH R DR =1{E A&
original maturity of less than three AR HATE RN
months when acquired 179,283 -
Restricted cash ZR&R S 21 (845) (442)
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReEED 350,909 302,644
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) on 12 April 1994. The
registered office of the Company is located at Suzhou Gaoxin
Plaza, 28 Shishan Road, New District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
24 August 2022.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
provision of city services and property management services.
The controlling shareholder of the Company is Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd. ("SND Company”), a wholly state-owned
company established in the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

BrAERaR M AT

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H
ARIEH

NAFR—FKN19945F4 12 BfEhEE
RAMBE([HE ) KIZHERA A
Ea s E i A BT & & g N ™
SRR 28 AN S FES - XA
AR 20228 A24 B EBAHAX S

BRAF([HRAT]) ERET -

FR-AEBETERERUBTEDE
BERE - ARANEZERBRABRHE
Rz E2EACEHMNFERHEEEGR
~A([HEH AT ) -

fE A RER
ARAREBMBARZEEWMT :

Place and date of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and place  registered share interest attributable
Entity name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ EMEER  ERTEE/ZR
ERER ABREEL RAEE  AAREGEREAL  EEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef A
% %

Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development PRC/Mainland China RMB104,271,300 100 - Provision of property
Management Co., Ltd 28 October 1992 management
("Suzhou Golden Lion")

(notes (a) and (b))
FILHABSRERERAT (HNGH)) 08/ BA% NE 100 - ppyEEE
(B3 (a) R (b)) 1992410428 104,271,300

Suzhou Xingang Municipal Greening Service PRC/Mainland China RMB12,000,000 100 — Provision of city services
Co., Ltd ("Xingang Municipal Greening") 13 April 2011
(notes (a) and (b))

FMME TR CRBERAR hE/RER, ARE 100 - AR
(B mBEL ) (@) R (b) 2011547138 12,000,0007C

Suzhou Keshang Property Service Co., Ltd PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 80 — Provision of property
("Keshang Property Service") 31 December 2014 management
(notes (a) and (b))

FIREERBERAR ((NENERSE]) FE/ AR ARE 80 - REMEER
(B3 (a) R (b)) 201412 A318 5,000,0007C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

1

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) The English names of the entities registered in Mainland China
represent the best efforts made by management of the Company to
directly translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

(b) Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"),
which comprise all standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASB”), and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in RMB and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

MRBIELE )
REEXE (&)

—RME - EEZBRERTEAES
o MARFERXEERBEINRE
HEAZERELEUEN - AIAREE
RAGREREHEREHRNENES
ER—IMEAEERER B

(a) HEREHRMEMEEETAAN
BRI

(o) EHMEHWTHMELNERN &
@ AEENERERMEBERFE-

B 2~ ] 5 ER A BN R R AR R e e H
—REFRRRBREM B HRER - HWEA
B RAN AR B RS 5 2 B 4R
BARR BEEEGIERIEZAL-

BakEte2EmEANSEAKED R
BRAKREGRRER ARIEZERE
o AEE S HIR AR h IR B A
Eeh e TASEARRHEEERAR -
s WA AXURBERAEERKER
AfRZEENESRE  BREa A
AR BAEH -

fidl =8 S B BRR | SRRt = TR I A
R -HEIZELREL  AREEE
MAEERTIERREHR - EXLHEX
ERHENBERT - RERRNMAE
RESEPHARRRHAK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 16
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards
2018-2020 accompanying IFRS 16,

and IAS 41
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual
Framework”) issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to
IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should
refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that
occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no
business combinations during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items as
determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The
Group has applied the amendments retrospectively to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of
items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

22 S BREEERE

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

(&)

ERNAR BRI FT BIFR A 7% s 2
AlMEE R EMamT

(a)

BIPR B H5 3R &5 RIS 35R 2 (B R A
B3I 201849 3 AEMMEI 5k
R EZE ([ ER ) BRI A
KR BREBRER ZIIER -
MEBARNEEREERTE - ZE 5
AP ERES A SIERETEK
BEXBBEZZ 2HERRAEBE
B 53R 25 2E R 85 35 3 Rk — B IS
BER o ZBIIMERAT - HRBE
@t 248 BI| 28 37 57 ok B BR B 75 3R
EREZESF2IHRHEANE
BERLEEENS  WZZAER
BEEEMIFREBEHRESE -
Bl e BB B 5 3R 5 2RI SB35 A9
BEREENFSZEFHENE
JVHKER M B RERBRLZE Y
E215RMIEBESAELE - BoN - 3%
ZEFTMANBEERKER BT
HEERER - NEBB 32022
FI1AVARZBBEMNEREH
ATBE M FE A FIEE] - ARNF RN
BEBEO  MZEEITEHAEE
BB Mk R RIR W AT -

FER e 2R F 1658 2 BT AR
IFERYME - BERRZEEERN
RARIBREEEEREMAERE
BEHNAFRNETHVENMNE X
B RRTAEEEE ZHEHME
A AR BEERANIBRTER
HEMWRE ST LB 2R EFE
FEEMNEMIER ZSRIENZ
FIFH 2K o AEE B $2021
F1AV sz AEERE
BERZEBEERBNERAZSE
F] o BRNEWE - BB KRR
2 AT 48 L P A EEMIER -
HEZ SIS T A S B R B Ak S sk
RIRW T MFE -

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
BHEFEEREROERAA I T - —FFR

121



122

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(0

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled
all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and no onerous
contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are applicable to the Group are as
follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in the

financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts'*

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments”)**

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the 2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the

2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024.

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,
IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of IFRS 17

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures in dealing with the loss of control
of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint
venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is
recognised when a transfer to an associate or joint venture
involves a business as defined in IFRS 3. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not
constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e.,
1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, in particular the determination over
whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. In 2022, IASB issued the 2022
Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which
an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect
the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures
by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments and
whether existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an
effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to
ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(¢)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

If the investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in an associate (Continued)

When there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investment in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2%-3%
Vehicles 9%-19%
Machinery and others 18%-33%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and plant and
machinery under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Other
intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease components, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease components
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 50 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group'’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments. Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit of loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit of loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as
a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing bank loans
and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and other
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The net
realisable value is estimated based on current market situation
and historical experience on similar inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or
at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

Commercial property management services

Under the commercial property management and
operational service segment, the Group provides (i) basic
commercial property management services offered to
industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and
commercial complexes and (ii) value-added services, such
as carpark space management services, resource
management services, property agency services and other
customized services.

For basic commercial property management services, the
Group charges property management fees in respect of
basic commercial property management services on a
lump sum basis and on a commission basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During
the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is
not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay over
a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management work.
In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In the
event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and

consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes
temporary parking service and housing repair services
recognised at a point in time when the service has been
provided.

Residential property management services

Under the residential property management, the Group
provides (i) basic residential property management services
and (ii) value-added services, such as carpark space
management services, resource management services,
property agency services and other customized services.

Similar to basic commercial property management, for
basic residential property management services, the Group
charges property management fees in respect of basic
residential property management services on a lump sum
basis and on a commission basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Residential property management services (Continued)

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During
the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is
not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Residential property management services (Continued)

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay over
a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management work.
In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In the
event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes
temporary parking service and housing repair services
recognised at a point in time when the service has been
provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(©

@

(e)

City services

City services include (i) municipal infrastructure services; (ii)
public facility management services and (iii) construction
and operation of municipal waste collection centers.
Revenue from city services is recognised over time or at a
point of time when the relevant services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or

a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before

the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are

recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the

customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s Financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group'’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involves estimates
and assumption on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources or estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash
flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on the
market approach or asset-based approach. The valuation
requires the Group to determine the comparable public
companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the
Group makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and
size differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note 35 to
the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes commercial property management
services, residential property management services, city services
and rental income for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group’s resources are integrated. Therefore, no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
further operating segment information is presented.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUpy R E U

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year, the Group operated within one geographical
location because all of its revenue was generated in Mainland
China and all of its non-current assets/capital expenditure were
located/incurred in Mainland China. Accordingly, no further
geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of
approximately RMB116,638,000 (2021: RMB25,732,000) was
derived from the provision of city services, rental income and
the provision of commercial property management services to a
single customer. Except for the above, no revenue from other
customers accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
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An analysis of revenue is as follows: WSHmT

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

Revenue from contracts with customers BB &AW
Commercial property management services 5 ¥ )% & 1% iR % 184,562 204,378
Residential property management services (X =29 % & 18 R 7 65,622 60,550
City services 9T AR % 248,158 169,353
498,342 434,281

Revenue from other sources H it KR Y 25
Rental income EE N 23,623 27,700
Total @t 521,965 461,981
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 ¥k Y

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

(a)

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

4

5. Y& - A A R Es )

Revenue from contracts with customers BES AU
Disaggregated revenue information (a) #HoWEER
Commercial  Residential
property property
management management
services services  City services Total
[HEZ/ES e
EERE EE R W @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR®TR AR%Tn AR%Tr
For the year ended HZ202512A31B81LEE
31 December 2022
Rendering of services RURS 184,562 65,622 248,158 498,342
Geographical market WEHE
Mainland China FEIA 184,562 65,622 248,158 498,342
Timing of revenue recognition W& HARHE
Services transferred over time FE R B 10 R 7S 179,853 60,338 248,158 488,349
Services transferred at a point ERAREREL RS
in time 4,709 5,284 - 9,993
Total revenue from contracts ERANGESE
with customers 184,562 65,622 248,158 498,342
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15 M

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. gz~ EUqg A RIKNES @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWE &)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) Mo WBER ()
Commercial Residential

property property
management management

services services  City services Total
[BEIUES st/
EERE B RS 90 AR TS st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTL  ARETT ARBTT ARETR

For the year ended HE2021F 12831 BILFE
31 December 2021
Rendering of services RERTS 204,378 60,550 169,353 434,281
Geographical market wE TS
Mainland China R 204,378 60,550 169,353 434,281

Timing of revenue recognition  EHEREE

Services transferred over time BERS B R R 195,858 59,365 169,353 424,576
Services transferred at a point in time 72 3 [ fE BE 82 75 60 FR 75 8,520 1,185 - 9,705
Total revenue from contracts ERAN GBS
with customers 204,378 60,550 169,353 434,281
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

5.

K

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

4

W A RS @)

EEEH W= &)
() MOUWBER (&)

TRIIFARS BERRGOKES
H o RESEHARSBNOAL
B WIBEBMER BT
TR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Revenue recognised that was included ARG HIB VN A LB ED
in contract liabilities at beginning BRI ¢
of the reporting period:
Rendering of services RER 75,019 40,591

Performance obligations

For commercial property management services, residential
property management services and city services, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which correspond directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance to
date, on a regular basis. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligation for
these types of contracts.

(b)

BHE®

HRBEBERMEEERE FEWE
BIE RS R T AR - AR E H
RN RSN EERALERNE
B HEAKELZS RIENENY
REFPHNEBEEXYE -A&EC
BEERNEE 2 UBBAR
BOREZFRLANRBENE
BRI S B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEE SRR MY EE

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(b) Performance obligations (Continued)

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5.

Wz~ b A B zs )

EEEH W= &)

(b) BEREK(E)

HA AR WS

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P AR®TRT ARBTET

Other income Hig A
Interest income F B2 A 2,747 1,485
Government grants* BT A B * 5,335 2,878
Foreign exchange differences, net  4ME Z= 58558 4,986 -
Others Hih 1,634 755
14,702 5,118

Gains Wz
Fair value gains on investment BEMENAFERT

properties 14 3,051 4,563
Other income and gains R NS 17,753 9,681
* The amount represents subsidies received from local %4 RBIE BT BUR R R B

government authorities in connection with certain financial
support to local business enterprises. These government
subsidies mainly comprised subsidies for listing incentives,
subsidies for employment promotion and other miscellaneous
subsidies and incentives for various purposes. There are no
unfulfilled conditions relating to such government subsidies

recognized.
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6.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. EBRIAIFE
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEE R ATFBES R, (GEA) T
(crediting): £IF -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

i & AR¥TRT ARBTET

Cost of services provided RERB KA 400,618 355,756
Depreciation of property, M - BRERBETE
plant and equipment 13 19,648 12,573
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 15 232 432
Lease payments not included in the  (tEHEBERFTRNEE
measurement of lease liabilities INEN 15 1,033 39
Loss on disposal of items of property, REWE - MELXREBEEHN
plant and equipment 18 935 28
Auditor’s remuneration % B5 A & B 2,000 505
Interest income FEUA (2,747) (1,485)
Employee benefit expenses EERMNAY (TREESRE
(excluding directors’ and chief ZITHRABRFB) *
executive’s remuneration)*:
Wages, salaries and other allowances T & - #& MEfbERL 119,672 114,172
Pension scheme contributions and RS EMESR R EA
social welfare 29,321 28,261
148,993 142,433
Reversal of allowance of trade BEE 5 EUGRIERE
receivables 18 (1,793) (1,422)
Changes in fair value of investment & ¥ N FEE S
properties 14 (3.051) (4,563)
* An amount of RMB129,538,000 of employee benefit expenses was * RERMNEXZSTEARK129,538,0007T

included in cost of services during the year ended 31 December 2022
(31 December 2021: RMB124,173,000).

SFAEZE 2022412 A31 B EFENRE
o AQ021%FE12831H: A B ¥
124,173,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BrEE SRR MY EE

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

YR DN

WA DT
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETET

Interest on bank and other borrowings 1T R EAE KT S 16,103 16,035
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEFE - 3

Total interest expense on financial liabilities I FFLARAFEFTIABZHN G/ EE
not at fair value through profit or loss BB F B RS 16,103 16,038
Less: Interest capitalised W BREEREFE (4,760) (12,171)
11,343 3,867

* Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of waste
collection centers are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

8.

* PR SR 12 v 3 SRS PP 0 T B R R T VS AR
o —BERERRFEENBOKAE
—BEERHAHEERENLE A
RERKATBETER -

EEZNTR2ITHA B 8% B

FRESRITETHRABNFTHBE L
MRA - BB ARNEAEIZE383(1)a) * (b)
OFROERAR(EBRESFZER) R
EPEE G UNNE

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Fees: we - —
Other emoluments: Hi 4
Salaries, bonuses, allowances e el EEBRREYREA
and benefits in kind 1,461 1,362
Performance related bonuses ERIREBHIIEAL - -
Pension scheme contributions IRIREETEIE R 282 251
1,743 1,613
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. BEFENTBITHAEHEH
REMUNERATION (Continued) (%)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHITESE
Ms. Zhou Yun, Mr. Liu Xin and Ms. Xin Zhu were BELZ+ -~ Bl R FE%R TR
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the 2022416 BEZERARNT
Company on 16 April 2022. There was no emolument WY IERTES - RER - WEMR
payable to the independent non-executive directors during BYIERTESZ NS -
the year.
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Pension
Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance contributions

and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
EiREE

Fe o ORER  RREAH HAR
e ENERN WAL  HERR BEH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR ARETxR

Year ended 31 December &% 2022%F 12 5318

2022 ILFE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong EEALs - - - - _
Mr. Zhou Jun B - 657 - 107 764
Mrs. Zhou Lijuan ABfa L - 536 - 107 643
- 1,193 - 214 1,407
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15 M

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEXNFEITIAERE N
REMUNERATION (continued) (&)
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) HITEE(H)
Pension
Salaries, scheme

allowances  Performance  contributions

and benefits related and social Total

Fees inkind bonuses welfare  remuneration
BINEEE
e 2R BREAW HTK

ik EWiEn #fEAL el wEm

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Year ended 31 December  E(Z 2021412 A31H

2021 IEFE
Executive directors: WTEE:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong EELEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun BExE - 589 - 91 680
Mrs. Zhou Lijuan ABETt - 519 - 98 617
- 1,108 - 189 1,297
There was no arrangement under which directors waived FRWEEEWREN R B REER
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. N L HE
() Non-executive directors () FHITE=E
Mr. Tang Chunshan, Mr. Cai Jinchun and Mr. Zhang Jun M2022%F47816H @ BHEELAE -
were appointed as non-executive directors of the HEHLENRBLEEERT AR
Company on 16 April 2022. There was no emolument NEFERITESE - FAMERIEHR
payable to the non-executive directors during the year. TEE Y ERIERBN -
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFENFEBITHABRH B
REMUNERATION (continued) (&)
(d) Supervisors (d) E=
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Performance contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
BREE

Fe RER  RRBEH HRRAE
we  BUEAN WAL EEA g
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR AR®TR

Year ended 31 December  EZ 2022412 A31H

2022 FEE
Supervisors: o

Mr. Feng Jingen BEREAE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Wei BERE - - - - -
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan REBRE - 268 - 68 336
- 268 - 68 336

Pension

Salaries, scheme

allowances  Performance  contributions

and benefits related and social Total

Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
Rk E5TE
e RERk  ARIEH HHR

e BT T4 HeRil aEm

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETE

Year ended 31 December  EZE2021F 125318

2021 IEEFE
Supervisors: .
Mr. Feng Jingen BERTE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Wei BERE - - - - -
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan RUBRT - 254 - 62 316
- 254 - 62 316
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

Sk

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one

director (2021: one director), details of whose remuneration are

set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the highest paid employees who are neither a director nor

chief executive of the Company are as follows:

A FMESRES
FRAEMNFHESNREESE —NES
Q021F : —(UEZF)  EFMFBER
EXHiEs - FRFHERSEE GEAR
REZEERTEITHAL)MFIFES I
—|T :

2022 2021
2022 5 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREFT

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and benefits 4 - 7641 « 28 REWIEH
in kind 2,380 2,552
Performance related bonuses HRIBEHEAEA - -
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHR 421 371
2,801 2,923

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

band is as follows:

BN A THENFESTRIFERT
BABESHFHEEHABLT

Number of employees

EEA™
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2% 1,000,000/87C 4 4
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FR1SHE
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits AEBBARANEBKE QR TEREE
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of FrErfEERELSOREEMNTE
the Group are domiciled and operate. REREE LTS
Mainland China Bl A 3t
Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and the RERBDEMERERABER (T4
respective regulations (the “CIT Law"), the subsidiaries which EFMEBEHRE]  ERBERMEEHNHE
operate in Mainland China are subject to CIT at a rate of 25% N AARERTUAR 25% B RGN
on the taxable income. ESH -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Current — Mainland China: BNEY — A

Charge for the year FARZH 20,499 17,879
Deferred tax (note 25) EIERIA (B 5E 25) 2,302 2,157
Total tax charge for the year FARIAS HR%E 22,801 20,036
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before FERAREEAEBRZENBR A EMN R E
tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax FY EIRERR R IERA S HEREDT ¢

rate is as follows:

2022 2021
2022 & 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBTE

Profit before tax B 25 BT R 88,523 76,553
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEERERMNTIE 22,131 19,138
Expenses not deductible for tax IS RTHIB R TE #) B 2 94 74
Tax losses not recognised RERBTIAEE 73 72
Losses attributable to an associate 2N B e EE 503 752
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate 1R~ & B B B 5 & K9 5 18 2 H 22,801 20,036
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

11. DIVIDEND 1. KB
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
Proposed final — RMBO0.17 (2021: Nil) ERARE —gRETER
per ordinary share AR#0.177T(2021 4 : £&) 17,440 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 84,131,000 (2021: 75,000,000) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially diluted ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 ¥k Y

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR BERAE ARG
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE glEa ﬂ (4&)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based FREARNREEZFTIREL TS
on: &
2022 2021
2022 5 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Earnings: B
Profit for the period attributable to owners .;I'””’_Hx%$ FESERF ATERR
of the parent, used in the basic and AT A AEGERFE
diluted earnings per share calculation 64,763 55,465
Number of shares
TR
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
‘000 '000
TR TR
Shares: A7
Weighted average number of ordinary STHERERREERFIFERM
shares in issue during year, used in the FAREETTRRINET I
basic and diluted earnings per share
calculation 84,131 75,000
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31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - MR NERE

rE
Machinery Construction
Buildings Vehicles  and others in progress Total
EF RE  KEREM HEIR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE AR%®TR AR%TR AR%®TR AR%TR
31 December 2022 202212 A831H
At 1 January 2022 20221 A1 R
Cost B A 225,137 44,014 99,983 33,017 402,151
Accumulated depreciation Z:inE (6,777) (24,355) (11,204) - (42,336)
Net carrying amount REFE 218,360 19,659 88,779 33,017 359,815
At 1 January 2022, net of R2022F1A1H
accumulated depreciation (MR 25t E) 218,360 19,659 88,779 33,017 359,815
Additions NE - 5,864 432 64,126 70,422
Transfers of property, nE - BERSEER
plant and equipment 64,999 - 32,144 (97,143) -
Disposals RE - (621) (398) - (1,019)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRFHEITE (Hi:E6)
the year (note 6) (5,585) (4,824) (9,239) - (19,648)
At 31 December 2022, netof #2022 12 A318H
accumulated depreciation (% 25HTE) 271,774 20,078 111,718 - 409,570
At 31 December 2022 #2022F 12318
Cost BR 290,136 49,257 132,161 - 471,554
Accumulated depreciation Z:tinE (12,362) (29,179) (20,443) - (61,984)
Net carrying amount REFE 277,774 20,078 11,718 - 409,570
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

13. % - BENEE @)

(Continued)
Machinery  Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others in progress Total
BT AE BEREM EETRE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT AR®ETT ARE®ETT AREFR
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
At 1 January 2021 R202141R1H
Cost AR 120,068 38,680 37,353 133,059 329,160
Accumulated depreciation Z:tinE (3,003) (20,362) (7,021) - (30,386)
Net carrying amount BEE 117,065 18,318 30,332 133,059 298,774
At 1 January 2021, net of R2021F1A1H
accumulated depreciation (B ETE) 117,065 18,318 30,332 133,059 298,774
Additions NE - 21 372 73,287 73,680
Transfers of property, ME  BENEREEZE
plant and equipment 105,069 5,607 62,653 (173,329) -
Disposals RE - (43) (23) - (66)
Depreciation provided during S REHEHE (Fi:T6)
the year (note 6) (3,774) (4,244) (4,555) - (12,573)
At 31 December 2021, netof 2021512 A31H
accumulated depreciation (MR 25t E) 218,360 19,659 88,779 33,017 359,815
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H
Cost B 225,137 44,014 99,983 33,017 402,151
Accumulated depreciation ZIE (6,777) (24,355) (11,204) - (42,336)
Net carrying amount REFE 218,360 19,659 88,779 33,017 359,815

Certain of the Company’s buildings with net carrying amounts
of approximately RMB37,152,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB38,591,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to a subsidiary of the Company (note 24).

M2022F 12 A3THEEFENAAR
#37,152,0007C (20215 : A R &
38,591,0007C) ARG HE TEFEHE
| MERTFARRWEBRARE TIRT
B (M 24) 2 4EM o
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LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 EW=E

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

Commercial properties HEL/ES AREF T AR
Carrying amount at 1 January »1 A1 BRERMEE 349,930 345,367
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N ERBEENNRFE 3,051 4,563
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31 BHNEREE 352,981 349,930

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China. The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2022 based on valuations performed by China Tong
Cheng Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., independent professionally
qualified valuers, at RMB352,981,000. Each year, the Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer decide to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB20,051,000 (2021: RMB28,910,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group
(note 24).
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties uses significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H
14. IREW X &)
ANFEER

AEEBEMERAFEAEEREAT
ABRGABIR(E=A) -

FROUAREBRANEN A TFE 2
B

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

M2022F12 A3 BN ATLEFEIFERUNT&EEY

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

ERME  EATEE EARTER

HE BAYE BAHE

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

‘st E R EZR £

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥BTR AR®TR ARETxR

Commercial properties [EESES 352,981 - - 352,981

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

2021512 A31 R AFEFETNERN TRIEEL

Quoted Significant Significant

prices in observable  unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

ERMS  BAAEE BATAEE

HE AR WABE

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Bt £ F-H F=H

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AR%TR

Commercial properties EEZ/ES 349,930 - - 349,930

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

14. KRBV #)
ATEBRE)

AT R EYE A ERM B G ER &

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: TEHASIEE -
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
fRE I ERTUEHERABE =
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
Commercial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value 25 to 108 25to 108
method (per sg.m. and per month)
[EEZUES W& AMEE WM E b S 25Z108  25%108

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the

fair value of the investment properties.
15. LEASES
As a lessee

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

(B KEEA)
BB RS EEARLA (TR &8
BIREMEATFERE LA (CTE) -
15. &
EBAEA
(a) FEAREE

FAERAEEEREEBERESN
T

Leasehold land

HELH

RMB’000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H 10,258
Depreciation charge hES (232)
As at 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H 10,026
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15. LEASES (Continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

15. & &)

As a lessee (Continued) ERABA (&)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) EAEEEE)
Buildings  Leasehold land Total
BF HE L w5t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREEF T AREET T AREFT
As at 1 January 2021 7R2021F1H1H 213 10,477 10,690
Depreciation charge TeEs (213) (219) (432)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F 12 A31H - 10,258 10,258
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (not included under
interest-bearing bank loans) and the movements during
the year are as follows:

FREERE(TFAGERTE
FIAT)EEEREFHNT

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BREREE - 226
Accretion of interest recognised FNRER A FIE LN

during the year - 3
Payments (NES - (229)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31 BRERMEE - -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

15. LEASES (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation

15. & &)

ERAEMBA )

(0 REZABRIEEEFBENZEN

to leases are as follows: T:
2022 2021
2022 5 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREETIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE - 3
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FFREEEITEE 232 432
Expense related to short-term leases R ERERAX 1,033 39
Total amount recognised in profit or loss FA 8% AR HI 4258 1,265 474

The Group as a lessor rEBEREBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) for rental
in Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Details of rental income
recognised by the Group during the year are included in note 5
to the financial statements.

The undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

AEERBEEHELHETBEANMH
MEREYE (ME14) (- HEKRTB
BEREHEPXMNRES  RIREBEERT
NERRBEHEE - AEERFREZH
HEWAF BN HHRERMES -

7 BRI BAS 0 N T B G R
& RR R KA R BB RE R
m -

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARKETFT

Within one year —F R 12,614 12,247
After one year but within two years —FREMFR 2,881 4,136
After two years but within three years MEBREB=FNRN 762 1,619
After three years but within four years =FRENFRN 654 654
After four years but within five years MHERERFA 654 654
After five years AFi& 9,149 9,803
26,714 29,113
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16. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

16. R—RE=RAIHNKRE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Share of net assets EIEFEE 4,778 6,791
(a) The Group's associate is as follow: () XEEHLEQATWT :
Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the
Registered Place of registration Group as at
Name capital and business 31 December 2022 Principal activity
R2022%F
12A31H
AEBERL
£ AMEAR R Q&R FEREERES TEER
SND Yiyang Health Management RMB20,000,000 Mainland China 49% Provision of elderly
Company Limited care service
HeiaERREEERARA AR RER 49% Rt AERRHG
20,000,0007T
The associate has been accounted for using the equity 2 E N a2 AR AR A
method in this financial statements. RN
(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) TR AEEH LN RWAET
information of the Group’s associate: BER -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Share of the associate’s loss for the year S {5E#& R FIE A EE (2,013) (3,009)
Share of the associate’s total AMEBE AR EEBEERE
comprehensive loss (2,013) (3,009)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBEARIRER
Group's investment in the associate AREEAE 4,778 6,791
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR  17. 8 F AL A FEH| A H b2

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AR RERE
INCOME
Percentage 2022 2021
of equity 2022F 20215
attributes RMB’000 RMB000

EERERDL ARETR ARETT

Equity investments designated at fair value i EB A A FENA L2 EKAMN
through other comprehensive income RERE

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value I EmkERE (RATE)
BEMNEREKEREERAA HMEREKERERAE 3.17%
("Suzhou Huirong Business Travel
Development Co., Ltd.") 59,469 71,300
HINMEREBHELEREBAR HINM S REBHELEREBAR 8.00%
("Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land
Development Co., Ltd.") 11,204 21,140
70,673 92,440
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at iR A N R B R TE B A AT
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group BIAHEMBEEKA @ BEERNERR
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. B EREBNEMED -
18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 W I1E
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Trade receivables g 5 WA 193,484 119,996
Impairment B (16,981) (18,774)
176,503 101,222
Trade receivables mainly arise from the provision of city services BoEWARIETERAREEMTRSE R
and property management services. The Group seeks to YIEERIRTS - NEE N RERIEHIHE
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a RERWHIE - WRBEEESIEBFT LA
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue EAREREEERR 2R EEETE
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and HEESHHES FANEPNEER
credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a month. BT — IR - B HEMATEBRE & -
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cContinued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H
B 5 EIGKIE (&)

KRB EMRRAAEEE ZREFIRN
BRI (BN BR B HGREE) 1

net of provisions, is as follows: -
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEFIT
Within 1 year —F R 162,889 67,100
1 to 2 years —EMF 12,858 32,853
2 to 3 years ME=F 756 1,269
176,503 101,222

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

SRR RENERREZEIT

2022 2021

2022 & 20214

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFIT

At beginning of year F1) (18,774) (20,196)
Reversal of allowance of trade receivables  4F A3 [ 5 5) i I 2008 ¢ 8

for the year 1,793 1,422

At end of year ER (16,981) (18,774)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

RERSARERBBEEETRED
1 Lt ERHEEEE - ﬁ’éﬁmﬁﬁ
RAREFRUBENZEEFS D 8E
TToMAmARN A E - R ERBR
BRI £ Eﬁ@ﬂ%fﬁﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ
HIR SR ARBESE - BRI ER
REEANRTBAN SRR A SFER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 M

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

E 5N FIE )

TXHIERRERENAEEE 5 E
WHIREERBRHEREER -

7A2022%F12A31H

Current to
one year 11to 2 years 2to3years  Over3years Total
HHE-F —EMF ME=F ZENE @zt
Expected credit loss rate AHEEHEX 4.43% 16.46% 72.41% 100.00% 8.78%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #EEE(AERT ) 170,431 15,392 2,740 4,921 193,484
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  BEREEHE(ARETT) (7,542) (2,534) (1,984) (4,921) (16,981)
As at 31 December 2021 "2021%12A31H8
Current to
one year 1102 years 2 to 3 years Over 3 years Total
MiE—£ —EWE ME=F =ENE ast
Expected credit loss rate BHEERER 7.95% 18.46% 63.37% 100.00% 15.65%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  2EEE(ARETT) 72,898 40,289 3464 3345 119,9%
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) ~ BHEEBB(ARKT L) (5,798) (7,436) (2,195) (3,345) (18,774)

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

19. FARFRIA « E A WA &
Hih&E

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Advances to suppliers A {4 FE P Y TR 3K 9,069 9,078
Listing fee ETER - 16,484
Value-added tax deductible A HRIE(E T 9,736 16,800
Other receivables H b B IR 13,784 8,753

32,589 51,115
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19.

20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The balances are not secured by collateral.

Other receivables had no historical default. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables were
categorized in Stage 1 at the end of the year. In calculating the
expected credit loss rate, the Group considers the historical loss
rate and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.
During the year, the Group estimated that the expected credit
loss rate for other receivables and deposits was minimal.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

19. FART IR « E At fE W IR &
H i & &= )

AERRID SR G A -

Hit RUGRIEDR B ESL R » Ll 84
THESERKFEEENEREER
FROF—HEERFDE - EFFERYE
EBEREXE  AKREEERELER
T WEH TR RB L EBIEETTH
B RNFAR - NEEGFE M EKRRIEA
RIFFOBEMEEBRRE ) -

20. B4EE

2022 2021
2022 5 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR¥TE

Contract liabilities EHEE

39,828 75,019

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the service contracts. A portion of
payments is usually received in advance of the performance
under the contracts.

The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

A& BRIk WA TE M B I R R
WENE PSR o B0 [ AR E R IE
BRBITIERIASEUER -

TA SR o H ) R B 52 Wb ) T B B R 8851
(I

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBTE

Within 1 year —F A

39,828 75,019
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. ReE LB EFED

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Cash and bank balances IRE MIRIT4EH 172,471 303,086
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ RAUERREHBE LR =@AZ
maturity of less than three months AR BTN
when acquired 179,283 -
351,754 303,086
Less: N
Restricted cash SRRHIR S (845) (442)
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEEY 350,909 302,644
Denominated in: AT ERHE -
HKD BT 216,873 -

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Certain bank deposits are pledged for the issuance of letters of
guarantee.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximated to their fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. BB RENTIA
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the R BRAAREE S BN FIENRE D
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: MERBEZAEMAT :
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBTE

Within 1 year —FR 194,586 176,190
1 to 2 years —EWF 10,699 12,606
2 to 3 years ME=F 4,482 2,133
Over 3 years =FLAE 2,053 1,603
211,820 192,532

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled B EMNTIERE  BELA180KEH

on 180-day terms. PR4EE o
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. E{th fE TR 1B K FEE B

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARBTE

Deposits received BUR® 37,416 40,583
Payroll and welfare payable FER T& KRAEF| 26,909 24,488
Receipts on behalf of customers REZ PR 19,111 21,872
Maintenance funds wIEES 8,803 9,235
Other tax payables HAbERTRIE 2,930 6,928

95,169 103,106
Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. H e Z8 ARy EIREREE -
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BrEE SRR MY EE

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 24. 5T EIRITER
2022 2021
Nk 1%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
EBAIZ (%) HHA ARBTT  BBFE() 55 ARETTL
Current Ik
Current portion of long-termbank —~~ REFFTE S DHDA
loans — secured —EfA 455470 2023 11,250 490 202 11,250
Non-current )
Bank loans — secured FOEH — A 455-4,70 2024-2028 111,250 490 2023-2028 122,500
Tota 5t 122,500 133,750
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Analysed into: SeRiv=1E
Bank loans repayable: FEEENIRITER
Within one year or on demand N—FE AN EEK 11,250 11,250
Within two to five years, inclusive RRERAFA(BREEEMF) 78,250 58,500
Beyond five years AELE 33,000 64,000
122,500 133,750

The Group's borrowings are all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB122,500,000
(2021:133,750,000) were guaranteed by the Company by
mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a fair
value of approximately RMB20,051,000 (2021:28,910,000), and
by mortgages over the buildings with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB37,152,000 (2021:38,591,000).
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25. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

EAEBIHEE

Change in fair

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

25. IEAERIE

value of equity
investments
designated at
Change in fair fair value
Impairment value of  through other
of financial investment  comprehensive Lease Accrued
assets properties income liabilities expenses Total
REANATE
SINEA
2EBAD
REME RERE
SREEHE ATESE ATESE HESE EStEIX @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL AREFTT ARETT ARETTL AREFT ARBTL
At 1 January 2021 202151 A1 5,050 - - 56 3,209 8315
Deferred tax credited to the R ABREH)
statement of profit or BRI
loss during the year (355) - - (56) (658) (1,069)
Gross deferred tax assets at 722021412 A31H
31 December 2021 MEEHEEELRE 4,695 - - - 2,551 7,46
Deferred tax credited to the /95t AR R H)
statement of profit or EREHE
loss during the year (614) 1,078 2,581 - (925) 2,120
Gross deferred tax assets at 722022412 A31H
31 December 2022 METHEEELE 4,081 1,078 2,581 - 1,626 9,366
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 25. EEFIA ()
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEARE
Change in fair
value of equity
investments
designated
Change in at fair value
fair value of  through other
Right-of-use investment  comprehensive
assets properties income Total
EERUATE
FIAE At
ZEBAKR
REW* RERE
CREEE AV EEE AFEED st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AERETFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 52 19,197 3,453 22,702
Deferred tax charged to the FRRIBR K DG
statement of profit or FIE IR I8
loss during the year (52) 1,140 (592) 496
Gross deferred tax liabilities 7 2021%12 A31H
at 31 December 2021 MELEHEAE
k) - 20,337 2,861 23,198
Deferred tax charged to the FRRPNIBR K DMK
statement of profit or BIEEF 18
loss during the year - 1,841 (2,861) (1,020)
Gross deferred tax liabilities 72022412 A31H
at 31 December 2022 HELERIBAE
Hg - 22,178 - 22,178
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 25. EEFIA ()
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and 2N ms ATELEHREBEEENEBE
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position. ERFBARRRANE S - U TN ERYTTE
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the HEMS ZAEBRELEFRBEES O :

Group for financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the A44SR E EREBRIERIE

consolidated statement of BEFE

financial position 5,622 5,359
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R45& B FEHA IR 2= MR HY IR A7 18

consolidated statement of BEFE

financial position 18,434 21,31
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these VWEGRZEEEEREEHRBEE A
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss- EXEEBRBEEENNBAREEIE—
making for some time and it is not considered probable that B WRATAAEEELRRE
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can S A $8 n] B BB B B TE B 1S o
be utilised.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the IR 518 B MERIRETRIBE E

following items:

2022 2021
2022 5 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT AR®TRT

Tax losses not recognised M AR MR IR 18 73 72
Losses attributable to an associate B N E eGSR 503 752
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the Wit B EREENBEE -
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits AE e A I8 B 8RR E MR
will be available against which the above items can be utilised. BAKAIRE IR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

26. OTHER LIABILITIES

The Group’s other liabilities represented an earmarked

governmental loan with a nominal value of RMB200,000,000

and an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37% p.a. to be paid in

ten years. The carrying amount of other liabilities were
RMB170,974,000 and RMB168,074,000, respectively as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. The other liabilities are dedicated to
the construction of the waste collection centers.

27. SHARE CAPITAL

26. EWE1E

AEEHNEMEBEREEEARAARY
200,000,000 STHYFETE S BB E X -
INEZHEMRIIT%ETE - AR TER
At e 522022 F 2021412 A31H -
HthBENEEES NI AARE
170,974,0007t & A E ¥ 168,074,000
TL e B EARERLIFEERL

27. IR

2022 2021
2022 & 20215
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR¥TRT

Share capital

LN

101,047 75,000

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

follows:

ARTRAEHEEOT :

Number of
shares in issue Share capital

ERTROHE [N
Notes RMB’'000
B 5t ARETT
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A1 H - -
Transformation into a joint stock HHl AR D ERAR
company (i)
— Conversion into share capital — BB AR 43,662,000 43,662
— Capitalisation of retained profits ~ — B1ZFE RETE B AR
and statutory surplus reserve R S N 31,338,000 31,338
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12 A318 R
1 January 2022 2022F 1 A1 H 75,000,000 75,000
Issue of shares TR (ii) 26,047,000 26,047
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H 101,047,000 101,047
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

28.

Notes:

@

(i)

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution of the Company in April 2021,
the Company was converted into a joint stock company with
75,000,000 shares, with a nominal value of RMB1 each, issued to the
then shareholders of the Company in proportion to their capital
contribution to the Company. The excess of the net assets converted
over the nominal value of ordinary shares issued was credited to
capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 26,047,000 ordinary
shares of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1 each, were
issued in connection with the Company’s initial offering on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration
received, net of share issue expenses.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group includes the share
premium contributed by the shareholders of the
Company, the equity interest of Suzhou Golden Lion and
Kejin Property Service transferred to the Company
pursuant to the equity transfer agreement in January
2021, and the share premium arising from conversion of
the Company into a joint stock company in April 2021.

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

27. IR )

28.

Wi

@

(ii)

BEARRRN2021 E4 AR RES
AABRHBIRHBRAE - WIRAARA
AR H & LBl M AN A R E B IR R AT
75,000,000 R FREEARKE1THR
7 DEBREEFEBL BT RRE
BREH T AERGEE

HZE2022F12A31BILFEE - AR
AIREBBIMERNEEMmET
26,047,000 R ZREEARE 10K E@
f% o

fé e

AR B RAE B M R
BHSEEMEEDEPIIR -

(a)

(b)

A s E

BB BTRMMWEEED
WHREZREZRR - KRR ET
FASE °

CENE

AEBEABERREARARRER
AR R E - BN S/ B
2 PR 75 AR 1 AR R B R 15 R 72 2021
F1ABEARRAINKRIERARAR]
720215 4 Al ARk BRR A
EERIRG EHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contribution of the then shareholders of Suzhou Golden
Lion and Kejin Property Service.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Suzhou Golden
Lion and Kejin Property Service in 2021, merger reserve
has been transferred to capital reserve, and there was no
merger reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2022.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits
after tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting
Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the
subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase paid-
in capital, provided that the balance after such conversion
is not less than 25% of the registered capital of the
respective entities. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.

Fair value reserve of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

The fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income represents
unrealised fair value gains or losses for equity investments
designated at FVOCI.
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28. )

(9]

(d)

(e)

BOt A

AREBN G G S s N 25 &R
BYERBERBRROLE -

72021 4 58 B U B B N 5 0 2 B
WYERGE  GHREEEEEE
A BR2022912 A31HA
S B A ]S OF R o

EERBRREE

RIBH B R BDE R B SZ A
BRARMAREREMAA AEEA
HRIE B & 5t R B E M H R
& F M Z 10% BAEEE B 84
B EERHEBEHREZHES0%E
MEAR - RIFARE T BDER MK B
NAEBERAR P ATEE TR
B OREBBRFEER AN EHEER
HEREMBEHERS - EBRRE
BIBINEEER2%EME
Ko EENERARERILE /SN
A% B TMEAREREDIK °

UAFESAHEZEKRA
MEMEENDTFERE

AAFEIAEMEZEBANS B
BENATHERBRIEER/ARTF
BIARMEEBANBREREZ
RBHRAFEEELEE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 ¥k Y

31 December 2022 7220224 12 A31 H

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. A BRI Em 2 50
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS HEEME AT
2022 2022 %
Percentage Profit
of equity for the year Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
TEE
FEREREE iR FiZR R
ZREBEDH ZERFE RETEERR
% RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARETR ARBTR

Keshang Property Service L ¥ RS 20 964 5,338
2021 2021 %

Percentage Profit

of equity for the year Accumulated

interest held by allocated to balances of

non-controlling ~ non-controlling  non-controlling

interests interests interests
DEEE

SR A IR IR R

ZHEB D ZEAME RetiEer

% RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT

Keshang Property Service e 4 % AR 75 20 1,052 4,375
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT HR AR Y

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. MAERIFIERER 2 787
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS HEWNB AR @
(Continued)
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARKETT
Revenue e zs 77,244 60,438
Total expenses M E5E (70,818) (53,429)
Income tax expense Frisfif = (1,609) (1,753)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAMEREZERALE
for the year 4,817 5,256
Current assets REEE 101,053 60,341
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 1,278 902
Current liabilities mEIARE (70,812) (34,543)
Non-current liabilities FERBBEE - -
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHFFRESNE T 1,602 (4,418)
Net cash flows from investing activities WEEE S fﬁ%m = -0 95 72
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHSRES =R - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIR S ZEYILINELE 1,697 (4,346)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b E e

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. L& 4 ns X W

OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing () AEETHELENEESEH

activities

Due to related

companies
Bank loans  Other liabilities (non-trade) Total
FEfT AR A )
BITEX HitBE MEGEES) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBFR

At 1 January 2022 202261 A1 133,750 168,074 57,000 358,824
Changes from financing ﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁ;‘}rj%a’]ﬁ@

cash flows (17,713) (6,740) (57,000) (81,453)
Interest expense FIBFS 6,463 9,640 - 16,103
At 31 December 2022 W2022%12831H 122,500 170,974 - 293,474

Due to related

Bank Other Lease companies
loans liabilities liabilities (non-trade) Total
FERTRER A A

RITEMN Hthafs MERE FHGEES) @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTRT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2021 202141 H1H 140,000 165,463 226 15,500 321,189
Changes from financing  EIEBR & RENED

cash flows (12,934) (6,740) (226) 41,500 21,600

Interest expense FEFRL 6,684 9,351 3 - 16,038
Interest paid classified as D HEAKLHETE

operating cash flows MERFE - - (3) - (3)

At 31 December 2021 #2021 12 831H 133,750 168,074 - 57,000 358,824
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 M

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30. #2828 &M =T @)
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSRHALTE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Within operating activities LEEBIA 1,033 42
Within financing activities B &SRB - 226
1,033 268
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEHF
Details of the Group's assets pledged are included in notes 13, ERAANEBE DR EEMNZER SR
14 and 21 to the financial statements. EMARMFE13 14821 -
32. COMMITMENTS 32. AHE
(@)  The Group had the following capital commitments at the (@ AEERREHEREEUTER
end of the reporting period: AHE
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEENEESZT -1
Buildings and machinery EFRHEE 3,923 72,633
204 Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. EBE TR 5

(@) Name of related parties and relationship () BB AFEBREXNEENE
with the Group 1%
Name Relationship
£B £2RE
BiNEZaTEBER AR The controlling shareholder of the Company
SND Company
HMNEmFEEAR AR A RIRIER AR
M AR NEERERAE Company controlled by SND Company
(“Suzhou Xinhesheng Technology Small Loan Co., Ltd."”)
BINTHE BRI NEERER AR SRS N e N
BNEHalxREs R N EERERER AR Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Gaoxin Venture Capital Group SME
Development Management Co., Ltd.”)

BMNEHAIEREEET N EEREEERAT A Bk = #T A AlE I A A
#HMEEFEREBR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.")

BEMNmFnEERER AR H &R = 2T A LA A A
BNHe T ETFEBEEXERERAA Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Digital Economy Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

BNEa T TR EEEERARAA HE=SIT R EHESIB QA
HMNEHIREEZESEFR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Tourism Industry Group Co., Ltd."”)

M EFIREEZEEFR AR & = TR EHESI B A A
N FFE B RKER AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Gaoxin Water Supply Co., Ltd."”)

M =R B KKBR AR s NG ke = NG
HENBIRRREFTRMEXRERER AR Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou National Environmental Protection
High-tech Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd.”)

HMNBERRRSIRMNEXERERBRAF H& =R EERIR QA
Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022 205
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. B A X 5 #)
(a) BB LT EBMREXREENER

&E)

Relationship

A

HNBREMEXRREEEGRAT

("Suzhou Medical Device Industry Development Group

Co., Ltd.”)
HNBREMEXRREEEGRAT

M RAR R NEERBERAR

("Suzhou Juchuang Technology Microfinance Co., Ltd.")

B AN EE AR AT

HMNTREREREBRAA]

("Suzhou Juxin Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd."”)

FNTREREREBRAA]

FMNBME R ERARAR

("Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai Innovation Development

Co., Ltd")
HNSHERAFHRER AT

HMNFERREXRERABR AT

("Suzhou High-tech Industry Development Co., Ltd.")

MR REXRRERAR

BB EZRETIZER AT

("Suzhou Sutong Kejia Electromechanical Engineering

Co., Ltd."”)
ERINERIA R 2 E TR AR A F]

FMKHe A ERERER AT

("Suzhou Taihu Jingu Construction Development

Co., Ltd.”)
FMKHe A ERERER AT

MK BERRAR

("Suzhou Taihu Jingu Hotel Co., Ltd.”)

MK HEBEERAT

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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Company controlled by SND Company

MER =T A FES AR

Company controlled by SND Company

&R = BT A RIE S 2 B

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = T R AR A )

Company controlled by SND Company

XS PNCIEe VNG

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = TR AR A )

Company controlled by SND Company

&R = BT A RIE S 2 B

Company controlled by SND Company

MER =T A FES AR

Company controlled by SND Company

XS PNCIEe VNG



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H
33. BBt AR 5 )

() B S EBMRESSENE
& (&)

Relationship

A

BN LRI ER AR A A
("Suzhou West Eco City Development Co., Ltd.")
BN PR ERE IR R B R A A

BN EBRREREERAF
(“Suzhou Xinhesheng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd."”)

FMNFARBEBERRAA]

M REFTRHRIREEEFRAA

("Suzhou New Area Chuangxin Technology Investment
Management Co., Ltd.")

M REFTRHRIREEEFRAA

IR SR EZER N BR AR
("SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.")
BMNFRESFTENEERHDBR AT

BN KT EH AR AT
("Suzhou Yongxin Land Co., Ltd.")
FMKFEMAR A A

Kiea (M) EERMERAR

("Taihu Golden Valley Suzhou Information
Technology Co., Ltd."”)

K a (FM)EERMERAR

KA (BN E AR AR

("Taihu Digital Valley Suzhou Information
Technology Co., Ltd."”)

KA (BN EE AR AR

BENEFEANERREEEREFR AR
("Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources
Service Industrial Park Co., Ltd."”)

gFMNEHRANERREEXEER DA

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = FT R AR A )

Company controlled by SND Company

MEk =T A BESI AR

Company controlled by SND Company

&R = FT R RIE IR A )

Company controlled by SND Company

E2E AP PNCIE VNG

Company controlled by SND Company

XS PNCIEe VNG

Company controlled by SND Company

HER =T A BES AR

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = TR AR A )

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = T R AR IR A )

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
BHEFEEREROERAA I T - —FFR

207



208

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship

33. B A X 5 #)
(a) BB LT EBMREXREENER

with the Group (Continued) &E)

Name Relationship
=t BiE
BafHBEEXEREFMN)ERAA Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry Development Suzhou

Co., Ltd."”)

U
B =)

K

MBBEEFEREN)ERQT]

A (M) ZERBR AT

Taihu Jingu

PN

ER N

("Suzhou High-tech Asset Management Co., Ltd.")

#RM
e
)

yE—

A (BN BERER AT
SMAEEEBERAT
SMEEEBRERAA

B R (BN BERAA

ugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.”)

AR ER (M) BR AT

.
BR N

("Suzhou Gaoxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.”)

BRM
aR M
("Su
BR N

ERM

("Suzhou Taihu Wetland World Tourism Development

SHREEIRAR AT
SHREEEARR AR
SMERRAR

zhou Gaoxin Products Co., Ltd.”)

SMMEERIQT

Kpig it RREERER AR

Co., Ltd.")

M
#RM
(“Su
ERMI

ERN

("Suzhou Jusheng Asset Management Co., Ltd.")

RN

Kifgptt RiREHERBR AT
TRBERARAT

zhou Jinhesheng Holding Co., Ltd.”)
TRRERAERIQT

RREEBTEARAA

EREEEERARLAA
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& = TR BTG R A
Company controlled by SND Company
& = BT R BRI 2 A
Company controlled by SND Company
H &R = FT A AT AR
Company controlled by SND Company
& = TR BTSN R A
Company controlled by SND Company
& = BT R B S E Q A
Company controlled by SND Company
AR Nk g W]

Company controlled by SND Company

R = IR A R
Company controlled by SND Company
& = #T R BRI R A
Company controlled by SND Company

MR = A FHES AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. @it A R 5 (#)

() B S EBMRESSENE

&)

Relationship

A

HMNSHERIREEEFR AT
("Suzhou Gaoxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd.”)
HMNEMAEREEEBRAF

#NER S F LR RIE AR A A
("Suzhou High-tech Energy Service Co., Ltd."”)
#RN ER =T RER RIS B IR A 7

MBIl RASREXERARAF

("Tongren Wanshan District Su High-tech Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

MECTELRFERNRREXERERAF

FHNKEFEMEREBR AR
("Suzhou Yonghua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.")
MK EFEERERR AR

HMEmEP NEXBERRBER AT

("Suzhou High-tech Zone SME Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd.")

gMNEmET N EERERRERAF

FNSES TR RELEFRARAA

(“Suzhou Zhihui High-tech Industry Development
Co., Ltd.”)

FNREBH R ELERARAR

L ESERBRAA
("Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development Co., Ltd.")

NI ESERER AT

BNEFEEREERNNAELRERERAA

("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Taihu
Golden Valley Capital Management Co., Ltd.")

HMNEMEAEREEBORCAERNERFRAA

Company controlled by SND Company
& = #T R TSI R A
Company controlled by SND Company
& = BT R EHE S R A

Company controlled by SND Company

HE =T R EHESIB A A
Company controlled by SND Company
R &= AT A AR I A A

Company controlled by SND Company

HER =T A BES AR

Company controlled by SND Company

& = #T R BRI A A
Company controlled by SND Company
&R =R A A R

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = T R AR IR A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @Et R 5 (&)

(a) A A BB REAEEMNE
&)

Relationship

A

BMNEE N EERARLDA
("Suzhou Embroidery Town Development Co., Ltd.")
NER R EBERER AR

EMNEMBIZRFTBRA A
(“Suzhou Huahe Creative Design Co., Ltd. ")
BMNEMEIZ R BRAT

HMNFERHEEERABRAA

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Commercial Development Co., Ltd. ")

FMNEGED T EEERERATF

#gMEFRANERAEAR AT

("Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources Development

Co., Ltd.")
BNEFEANERABEER AR

BN ERmERBRA A
("Suzhou Gaoxin City Development Co., Ltd. ")
g ERmERERA A

BN E R AR AT
("Suzhou Xinxu Investment Development Co., Ltd.")

FMFFREBRRBER AT

#MEHEERMEHERRAR
("Suzhou Gaoxin Furui Finance Leasing Co., Ltd."”)
gMNEFEnEREREERAR

FMNEAHEREEEER AR
("Suzhou Gaoxin Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.")
M HEREIRAR AR

#MNEHeEIRERERGR AT

("Suzhou High-tech Golden House Engineering
Construction Development Co., Ltd."”)

BENEFeEIREREREARAA

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022
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Company controlled by SND Company
& = #T R EIE S R A
Company controlled by SND Company
& = BT R EHE S R A
Company controlled by SND Company
mER =T A AR

Company controlled by SND Company

XS PNCIEe VNG

Joint venture or associate of SND Company
and its subsidiaries (“SND Group”)
HaAaEMBAR ((HEHEE])
VA B ERBEAT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
HaEENSERENBERT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
HEMEENEERENHE AR

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

FaEENSEERABE QT

hij

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HeEENE XKL AR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @it A R 5 (#)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship () BT EBREXREEMNEE
with the Group (Continued) &E)
Name Relationship
28 [£2EES
BNESMEEENBEERBR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group

("Suzhou High-tech Means of Production Business
Development Co., Ltd.”)

HNEMEEENAEERER AT HeEENGEEEAMERT
MM ERERABR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou New Lion Reconstruction and Development

Co., Ltd."”)
BMNFMERERARADA HeEENSE LRI ENT
BN RRAIEREEEAR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Management

Co., Ltd.”)
HMNEMARAEREEEFRAF] HeEENSEERABENT

BINEFaREEERBMERAR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Ronglian
Management Co., Ltd.”)

NS EEERBERER AR BalEBERNaELELME AR
BN M ERERAF Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Sugaoxin Urban Renewal Co., Ltd."”)

BMNERTEmERER AR SIS RN (o = /N
RN = F R R R IR R B B PR A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group

("Suzhou High-tech Zone Zhenzhong Tourism
Development Co., Ltd.”)

FMNEMERPIREREFRAA HeEENGEEERAMERT
#INEREIRERAR QA Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Huirong Business Travel Development Co., Ltd.")

FMNERBEKRBERABR DA HEMEENEERENHENF]
EINFTEREAR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou Xurun Investment Co., Ltd."”)

BN FERERRAT HeaMEENEERENBLE AT

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2022 211

REEHEERBROGRAT / T - —FFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R Y At

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @Et R 5 (&)

(a) A A BB REAEEMNE
&)

Relationship

A

HMNSHEERRESERBIREEEARAR
("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Rongsheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd."”)

HNBHMEXRERERRREETEBRAT

AN SHAZEIEREEEFR AT

("Suzhou Gaoxin Mingxin Venture Capital Management
Co., Ltd.")

HMNEMPABREREEEERAF

BINARBEXERAER AT

(“Suzhou Public Science and Culture Development
Co., Ltd."”)

BEINAHBEXrBERARAA

BSMNBERCBHERRAR
("Suzhou Diamond Metal Powder Co., Ltd."”)
mMNERSEMERATR

EMNTMLRTRERAR A A

("Suzhou Shishan Headquarters Park Development
Co., Ltd.")

MTmLEBEERBERAR

BN R RS EZRRBR AR

("Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land Development
Co., Ltd.")

BN R REABHERRER AR

ERIMEIFTRETEET LD ERBR AT
(“Suzhou Innovation Design and Manufacturing
Center Development Co., Ltd.")

BB RATRETOERER AT

ERINESE SRR D AR A A
("Suzhou Gangyang New Energy Co., Ltd.")
&N ERG LRI AR AR
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Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HeNEENEELERBERR

el

i1

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HaMEEnG S

JiE]

E9:k NG

Bl
>

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

+

B

i
i

Iy

SR RS S TNy

ot

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
e EENEEbEIBERT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HeNEENEELERBERR

0]

el

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HeNEENEELERBERR

g
el

i1

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

ki
it
S
W
]
=
)
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>
HE
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e
B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @it A R 5 (#)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship () BB AFEBREXAEENE

with the Group (Continued) &E)

Name Relationship
£ £2RE
BINFTRaREERERARA Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou new green constructlon development Co., Ltd.")

BINFaaRERERARA HarsEna e hElmE N
FNRUM IR R B RA R LD A E R EISEE Joint venture or associate of SND Group

("Suzhou Rongzhou Tourism Development Co., Ltd.
Huirong Plaza Hotel")

FMNBNIREBERER A RIERESBE HEMEENEERENHE AR
BINRITEHEFTHBERAR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Fresh Service E-commerce Co., Ltd.”)

HENRITEHEFEBARAA e EEN G EhEIBMERT
EINFRIERBERAR LA Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Xinchuang Construction Development Co., Ltd.”)

N RIRRBERAR AR HeEENGEEEAMERT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LUpy R E U

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. B A X 5 #)

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (b) BB BEREMID RS
financial statements, the Group had the following N REB RGN HE R T T A
transactions with related parties during the year: TS

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TRT

Property management service and ¥ EEERKE R TIREWA :
city service income:

Companies controlled by A&k = 5T A Bl S| HY A 7]
SND Company 39,286 30,262
Joint ventures or associates of B EERAE S
SND Group /NS 12,022 16,169
The controlling shareholder of the iN/NESIE e
Company 2,073 2,156
53,381 48,587
Rental income: HEWA -
Joint ventures or associates of HoMEENS S EgE
SND Group NS 826 6386
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R AREETIT
Lease payments: HEMAR:
Joint ventures or associates of amEENGEDER
SND Group i /NC] - 136
Other purchases from related RE A TR E AL IS
companies:
Companies controlled by = NSNS
SND Company 6,413 8,118
Joint ventures or associates of e EENGEDEL
SND Group rdlNS) 131 767
6,544 8,885
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

33. @it A R 5 (#)

(c) ERREBEETS ARMEER

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Due from related companies: PEUR BE B A RIFRIE ¢
Trade related =YL
Companies controlled by & =T A AIEGIR AT
SND Company 11,610 23,094
Joint ventures or associates of HaTEENGEhEL
SND Group LN 7,398 12,019
The controlling shareholder of the R EHE R IR
Company - 10
19,008 35,123
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBF T
Due to related companies: TR A RRE
Trade related =YL
Companies controlled by SR NG IE 2 [EO NG|
SND Company 8,212 6,077
Joint ventures or associates of HamEENeEPER
SND Group i NG 1,863 2,228
The controlling shareholder of the PAN/NETEL 3 S
Company 319 370
10,394 8,675
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBF T
Due to related companies: FETRARR A RIFNIE -
Non-trade related FE ZHHE
Joint ventures or associates of meTEENA e
SND Group NS - 57,000

Balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

B ERE -

Rl R R EER R B AYE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT HR AR Y

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

2022

Financial assets

HIM R BRE (B

34. ARSI e/ T
EEReMIARES
ZIDT-
2022 &
TREE

Financial assets
at fair value

through other Financial
comprehensive assets at
income  amortised cost Total
BUAFEFIA
Htt2EWAN  REBHEREANE
TREE NERMEE wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET ARBT R
Equity investments at fair value AAFEIAEMEZERA
through other comprehensive HI R E
income 70,673 - 70,673
Trade receivables B 5 W EE 176,503 176,503
Financial assets included in BSEGERERE:T i
prepayments, other receivables R R A B EE Y
and other assets (note 19) SREE (FIFE19) - 13,784 13,784
Amounts due from related parties  JEU B 77 7708 - 19,008 19,008
Restricted cash ZRHIIRS - 845 845
Time deposits FHER - 1,937 1,937
Cash and cash equivalents HERELZEEY - 350,909 350,909
70,673 562,986 633,659
Financial liabilities cHaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R A
ARNEMEE
RMB’000
ARBTR
Trade payables = 211,820
Financial liabilities included in other payables and ;d')\ﬁ{‘@ﬂgﬁ RIEREFTFIEN SR AE
accruals (note 23) (3£ 23) 95,169
Interest-bearing bank loans ETRERITER 122,500
Other liabilities HtafE 170,974
Amounts due to related parties e BA RS 5 5RIE 10,394
610,857
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

4. mEME TN TR I A

(Continued)
2021 20216
Financial assets THREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through other Financial
comprehensive assets at
income amortised cost Total
AR EFIA
H2EBAR  IREHENAAR
SREE NEeREE BEt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETF T AREET T ARET T
Equity investments at fair value AR FEIAE b2 EA
through other comprehensive R IER &
income 92,440 - 92,440
Trade receivables B S EWGRIE - 101,222 101,222
Financial assets included in STATER R - Efn R
prepayments, other receivables RIERHEMEEDN
and other assets (note 19) eHEE (M7 19) - 8,753 8,753
Amounts due from related parties  J&E Ut B35 5 2B - 35,123 35,123
Restricted cash XRERE - 442 442
Cash and cash equivalents BeERBLEEY - 302,644 302,644
92,440 448,184 540,624
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REE S AR
AEHSRAE
RMB'000
ARKET T
Trade payables 2 S ENFIE 192,532
Financial liabilities included in FTAEMENRIERETRENSREE
other payables and accruals (note 23) (PfF5E23) 103,106
Interest-bearing bank loans ETBIRITER 133,750
Other liabilities HithgE 168,074
Amounts due to related parties JE 1<) BB S 75 SR IE 65,675
663,137
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
15 M

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 35. Eﬂilﬂﬂ’\]@?@&@?@

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS JE A
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEBEEpT A GREERAFESER
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that R T AR WERmERAFED
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: T
2022 2022 F
Carrying
amounts Fair values
IREE DFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTR

Financial assets
Equity investments at fair value through

THEE
ARFEIIA R ZE A

other comprehensive income R & 70,673 70,673
Financial liabilities SRAE
Other liabilities HipaE 170,974 170,974
Interest-bearing bank loans FTRIRITEX 122,500 122,500
293,474 293,474
2021 20214
Carrying
amounts Fair values
AREE NEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments at fair value through AT ESAHMEEBAR
other comprehensive income IR & 92,440 92,440
Financial liabilities SRIAE
Other liabilities HEmaE 168,074 168,074
Interest-bearing bank loans TERITER 133,750 133,750
301,824 301,824
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables, time deposits, pledged bank
deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, trade payables, other liabilities, and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The finance manager of each subsidiary of the Group is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The Group's
finance manager reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at the end of the reporting period were assessed
to be insignificant.

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

35. @R T EMAFEMAFE

oz

BEEECHEREIASEEY E5
FEMHR - SEATENFRENEREE
H i YRR - EMER - EEMRT
R B B RITER R EMER
BHREMNFIA - HibBER LT AEM
RN EAREN SR BENRF
BREAEEEERE  T2REAA/ZET
B HIHR&E -

AEEEHBARNMBEEAREE
TRTARFEAENBRERER - K
SENMBLEERNI KRR REZ
ZEERE  -NERESEH BB
e T ABENZ S ETRANG
BENETEHABE - HEMMFEER
BINALE - BFP A RFEM B RE
HELZESHMERFRERETH

N b SA
IRETEm o

TREEMNBENAFENERR ST
(cREFBREERIN ERNRZF“ZT
BENARSERAR -

AHERITREAME R IEBN MO A
FEDEBERABUGK  FEAR
RFSIMEROSRTANE A
MEPRBEBHRKRSREMAE - F
AEBNRERERLE BRITREAM
18 BRP AT B N B 40 R T 2 A B R F
BEEPRHERTEK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Mainland
China. The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using the market approach based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks and
asset-based approach based on the general concept that the
earning power of a business entity is derived primarily from its
existing assets.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
fhER EXTAHERAHE

35. R T EMARFEMRAFE

&z

AREBRENIELETRE - AAPEA
WIRTTETHEMER - AEEDHRA
miEA (CAMER R EBRIEE 2 TRANTIS
NMERBER) REEEWE(ANEBER
ZENMENETERBEREEEN R
B RER) G RFHELTRENQF
B-

HRARFEIARMBEERANIE L
MEERENAFE  SEEEEHER
EELNTSIEEMAARENERBABE
BB -

TREINEZ2022F K% 2021F12 A 31
BemTEGABEZERTERE AR
ME -

Sensitivity of fair
Range value to the input

#HE AVEHBARBOHEML

Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

BT RALDTETIARLM
FERANBRERE

Market approach Discounts for lack of
marketability

Suzhou Huirong Business
Travel Development Co., Ltd.

(“DLOM")
BNERPRERARAR WHE B ERTER
(foLom)J)
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31 December 2022:

2022%12A318 :

31 December 2021:

2021512318 :

5% increase/(decrease)
30% in discount would result in
(decrease)/increase in fair
value by (RMB1,273,000)/
RMB1,273,000
wREM/ (RD)5% g
30%  EBEAFECRD)/E
(AR 1,273,0007T),/
AR1,273,0007T

5% increase/(decrease)
27.1% in discount would result in
(decrease)/increase in fair
value by (RMB1,300,000)/
RMB1,200,000
e,/ (Rd) 5%
27.1% BHRATECRD), L
(AE#1,300,0007T),/
AR¥1,200,000 T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 R A Y et

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 35. @M T EAEMAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) JZ &% #)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input Range value to the input
fEERM EXTAEERAZE §E AVEHSRARBOHHRM
Suzhou Xinjingtian Business ~ Asset-based Unit price 31 December 2022: 5% increase/(decrease)
Land Development Co., Ltd. approach (RMB per sq.m.) 4,136 t0 18,675 in discount would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value by RMB4,541,000/
(RMB4,541,000)
NS RABERR BEARE EE(BIITK 2022%12A318 Fra#gm/ Ond) 5% &
BRAH AR¥TT) 413618675  BEATEEM/ (L)
AR 4,541,0007T,/
(AR4,541,0007T)
31 December 2021: 5% increase/(decrease)

11,433 t0 20,000 in discount would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value by RMB2,970,000/

(RMB2,980,000)

20214128318 R,/ Ond)5% g
11433220000  BHAFEEM/ (D)
AR 2,970,0007T,/

(AR™2,980,0007T)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during FREF=ZFALEHENEHHOT :
the year are as follows:

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ETIT

At 1 January »1A1H 92,440 94,807
Remeasurement recognised in other REME2EWAERNETAE

comprehensive income (21,767) (2,367)
At 31 December »12 A31H 70,673 92,440
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there EHZE2022F N2021F12A31BIFEE -
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value NEEFEE—NEE _F T ERE
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair BRIV EERE A NERE AT EATEE
value measurements. =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR EE

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
finance leases, other liabilities, and cash and time deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and cash
equivalents and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
exchange rate of RMB against HKD, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)

36.

MR R EIE B MR

AEENTFESMIABERITER
MEHE  HEBERLBRE NERTF
R ZFERTANTIEZEANER /AN
SEELERES - AKEHEAZHA
feREERAR  PINERKXEHE
LHE FRUGRIARE SN FUR -

KEASEERTANTIERARASEY
Rl EERREEHESER EF
SEFNIAZEEZSSERBRNK
R B e

B mE kR

AEBERRE MRS FEMARGTER
17 B A A8 5K [ e 5 s

TREIEMA LR BRI TR
R+ AR EBETRIR R R (4
REBAERAENATEED) YAR
5B T A A A B B BB -

(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase
increase in profit
in HKD rate before tax
B ITE=R BiATFHE
CRA),#m  CEL), %
% RMB’000
ARETR
31 December 2022 202212 A31H
If RMB weakens against HKD MARBEABTRE (5 (9,686)
If RMB strengthens against HKD MARBEABTHE 5 9,686
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group'’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee
contracts.

Br A5 SRR MY AL

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

6. WEEMEEEEREE®

FERR

AEEERERTREERFNE=T
R BREAKENRE  FAEEER
EERETRINEPHARREER
AR o UESh - B RE R R R IR A
PROETTER TR - BUNSK BIE R A R AR AR
FTEKR - HRWIFABHEEEEME
AMERRIENRS  AREER
REEEZTEREHENBERATLT
REEEH -

RS AR R F R FTER R B

TREIIZBAEBNEEBRE DB
EEEZREREERR  ZEKRIE
BEPN AR (K BEBEINNAEE N
BENAI 45 2 ey H &R BR AN Rt 12 A 31
BOFEREBEDHE -

MEjeRrReREENRTRERS
BMERAAZHNEERR -
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15 M

31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BI B EMEIE B2 RS &)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EER &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BERBRERFAERER (Z)
2022 2022 F
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAES
FEEER 2HREEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-RE KR E=RE EtrE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Trade receivables* Z 5 e FUE * - - - 187,342 187,342
Financial assets included in -~ 5t AJENZUE « HofEl
prepayments, other TEREMEER
receivables and other assets £ EIEE
— Normal** —EE* 13,784 - - - 13,784
Due from related parties JE U B 7 0R
— Not yet past due — WRBEH 19,008 - - - 19,008
Restricted cash ZRARS
— Not yet past due — WRBE 845 - - - 845
Time deposits EHEH
— Not yet past due — ARG 1,937 - - - 1,937
Cash and cash equivalents ~ F4RHASZEY)
— Not yet past due — WRBEH 350,909 - - - 350,909
386,483 - - 187,342 573,825
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31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BB EMEIE B2 RS (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

&R #E)

RERBRFRAERR(E)

2021 20216
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAEH
FEER 2HRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Al 2 ERE E-R’E Bt it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFL ARBFL ARBFL
Trade receivables* B ARYTIE - - - 119,996 119,996
Financial assets included in -~ sF ATERZUE « Ef el
prepayments, other TEREMEEN
receivables and other assets £ EIBE
— Normal** —EF* 8,753 - - - 8,753
Due from related parties JE U B 0E
— Not yet past due — WRAEH 35,123 - - - 35,123
Restricted cash ZRHRS
— Not yet past due — WRBE 442 - - - 442
Cash and cash equivalents & RBLEEN
— Not yet past due — HREH 302,644 - - - 302,644
346,962 - - 119,996 466,958

* K

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

* %

SRR 0 A R R R 5 B HR
s+ SR RSB A KA B 7 SRR 3T 18
#E -

EeRBEEY KRB LI BEMKA S TIATHER
R REENEERBRAEEME - S AFEMNK
B HttEWRIBREMEENEREENEE
HBEWHEAIER - B 2RAENGEEER
WS TREE]
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31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18

to the financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer and
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed in different

regions.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the current ratio, which is calculated by comparing the current

assets with the current liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-
bearing loans. The Group's policy is that all the borrowings

should be approved by the chief financial officer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s

financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

b E e

31 December 2022 722022412 A31H

36. BIfEEMEEEENEE @)

REESEE#)

TEBAAEERSHRERAERIZEH
ATRARE SN REBENIHBER

2022 2022 F
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12months  1to5years Over 5 years Total
EZEXR 3AR 3Z12{BA 1855 5N L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®ET T ARBT T AR®TR AR¥FR
Interest-bearing bank loans ~ &FBR1TE R - 1,361 15,175 92,721 33,732 142,989
Other liabilities Hth&E - 3,370 3,370 30,330 215,730 252,800
Trade payables B HENHIE 211,820 - - - - 211,820
Due to related parties JERTRRRE 7B 10,394 - - - - 10,394
Other payables and accruals — E b fERT3RIE &

JER R 95,169 - - - - 95,169
317,383 4,731 18,545 123,051 249,462 713,172

2021 20214

Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Tto5years  Over 5 years Total
JEZR AR 32 121EA 185% SEME et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Interest-bearing bank loans 5 BB1TE R - 1,638 16,052 78,206 67,586 163,482
Other liabilities HinBE - - 6,740 26,960 222,470 256,170
Trade payables B HENHIE 192,532 - - - - 192,532
Due to related parties JERTRREE 7B 65,675 - - - - 65,675
Other payables and accruals — E b fERT3RIE &
JERT R 103,106 - - - - 103,106
361,313 1,638 22,792 105,166 290,056 780,965
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31 December 2022 742022412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. BI iR EIE B1Z &R (@)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management EXEE
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to AEEEAEENTEBZAERESE
ensure that it maintains a strong credit profile and healthy BRIFNEERILEBREAOE AN X
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise N IFEEKIWFERBEEBEZAL -
shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBRBELSERIANEFHEEELER
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or EEITHEERFAE - BEFHFAEE
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend RS KEE @ HAEIRAMNFRED
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue B IRIEBEAR TR RS EEITHRMD -
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or RER REBEEERANEEZ  BXK
processes for managing capital during the year. SNA2 P LA A ) -
The Group monitors capital using the debt/asset ratio, which is AREBFEFRHEEABRELER BE
total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt-to-asset ratios as BEXRRFTLEGEHRERNEERE-
at the end of the reporting period were as follows: WEHEANEEEBERNT :
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Total assets BERE 1,436,246 1,315,660
Total liabilities BERAR 672,568 762,133
Debt/asset ratio BEABX 47% 58%
FVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. R E MR EIER

37.

According to the announcement made by the company on 24
March 2023, the Company proposed to dispose of the 49%
equity interest in an associate, SND Yiyang Health Management
Company Limited, through public tender at the Suzhou
Exchange Centre. The final consideration for the proposed
disposal shall be subject to the final bid price made at the
Suzhou Exchange Centre, but in any event shall not be less than
RMB5,808,100.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. A/ BB AR UA R E
THE COMPANY
R85 5 RS R AR BRI R 2 MR

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: m
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEKRE 38,291 40,216
Investment properties wEMZE 22,126 31,030
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 694 344
Investment in an associate R—RKBLRRINEE 4,778 6,791
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A BRHRE 213,946 212,336
Deferred tax assets FEIERIAE E 2,843 3,654
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 282,678 294,371
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE - 34
Trade receivables B 5 R GIE 30,674 48,264
Prepayments, other receivables and FERTRRIA - Ho e kIR K EoAty
other assets BiE 13,182 25,633
Due from subsidiaries A NG E O E] 106,435 66,881
Due from other related parties JRE LR th B Bt 77 k1B 10,052 28,785
Restricted cash SRHIRE 432 432
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 258,021 113,062
Total current assets MENEEBE 418,796 283,091
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Trade payables SRR 40,321 75,991
Other payables and accruals HAth FE T 5B R IERT A 45,944 53,271
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE /S 34,621 26,212
Due to other related parties JE AT EL A BB 5 SR IE 6,980 4,837
Tax payable FERTRIE 625 588
Contract liabilities AHAE 18,468 38,475
Total current liabilities M B ERT 146,959 199,374
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 271,837 83,717
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBER
LIABILITIES 554,515 378,088
EQUITY R
Share capital P& X 101,047 75,000
Reserves & 453,468 303,088
Total equity TS 4E%R 554,515 378,088
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AR EAAEK )
THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABIEEER R T ¢
Paid-in Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital capital reserve reserve profits Total
EHER BA  BARRE  EERE  BEANE At

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRE

At 1 January 2021 M2021%181A8 43,662 - 43,145 4,327 68,602 159,736

Total comprehensive FREEBALZE

income for the year - - - - 22,516 22,516
Transfer of subsidiaries &2z [ff/EB A & - - 195,836 - - 195,836
Conversion into a joint ~ Ex I AR G A A

stock company (43,662) 75,000 24,179 (4,279) (51,238) -
Transfer from retained  E&EZEFFH

profits - - - 2,251 (2,251) -
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12H31H - 75,000 263,160 2,299 37,629 378,088

Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
BA&  BROEE EXRE  EERE BEAE &5t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB‘'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR AR®TR AR¥TR

At 1 January 2022 20221818 75,000 - 263,160 2,299 37,629 378,088

Total comprehensive FREEBALZE

income for the year - - - - 17,063 17,063
Issue of shares BT 26,047 168,927 - - - 194,974
Share issue expenses R n a7 X - (35,610) - - - (35,610)
Transfer from retained ~ E# 5 EFFH

profits - - - 1,707 (1,707) -
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12A31H 101,047 133,317 263,160 4,006 52,985 554,515

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  39. #t ) EM # il &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue PR EEFTEHN2023F3 A28 8L
by the board of directors on 28 March 2023. ERERETE
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PO B 75 1

2019 2020 2021 2022
20194 20204 20214 2022 &
Revenue KA 435,878 436,770 461,981 521,965
Gross profit EXH 88,421 92,068 106,225 121,347
Gross profit margin FE R 20% 21% 23% 23%
Profit before tax BAIAE 58,145 64,251 76,553 88,523
Income tax expenses 5% & A -14,591 -16,148 -20,036 -22,801
Profit for the year IREF 43,554 48,103 56,517 65,722
Total non current assets ERBEESE 638,907 763,020 824,937 856,281
Total current assets MBVEERR 1,444,820 441,499 490,723 579,965
Total current liabilities MENE FERE 1,186,332 383,819 450,248 371,910
Net current assets MENE EFRE 258,488 57,680 40,475 208,055
Total assets less current BEERERE
liabilities aftg 897,395 820,700 865,412 1,064,336
Total non current assets FRBABRE 532,542 321,915 311,885 300,658
Total equity of the Company ~ ZANA Bl ZS 4248 364,853 498,785 553,527 763,678
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
FIFRE 2

Location Nature Lease term

ih 24 =1 HEHR

91 Units of Golden Lion Building, 1156 Binhe Road, Gaoxin District, Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FETEREHMNTRIEEN K 11565 M AE 91 EE /N HEXERE

Block Nos. 1 to 11, 365 Heshan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Residence Leasehold
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEDT & & s M T =R LK 36551 2111 F= THEXE

Commercial Unit No. 14, Xinsheng Xinyuan, Xinyuan Second Road, Commercial unit  Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEITEHE SNSRI E B AT LR ES 1457 Bk HEXRE

Commercial Units C and M, Block No. 42, Xintai Huayuan, 99 Zhuyuan Road, =~ Commercial unit Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEDT#RE &N e RATE 995 ERIEIL 42 EE4 C XM [kl HEXRE

Commercial Unit Nos. 2A, 2B, 2C, 2E, 2F, 2G, 3A, 3B, 3C, 3D, 3E, DY, Commercial unit Leasehold
4 Huaihai Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FETaRE SN T RS HANEER2A - 2B~ 2C » 2E+ 2F* 2G &k e
3A+38+3C 3D 3EDYE

Level 4 to 6, Jinshan Waste Collection Centers, Jinshan Road, Gaoxin District,  Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIIFE#HN TSRS LB U REERLIZECE MNE HEXRE
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